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RAJASTHAN ELECTRONICS AND INSTRUMENTS LTD., JAIPUR

FIGURES AT A GLANCE

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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OVERVIEW OF PROFIT

HOW EARNED
Sales Revenue 11091.30 14744.20 16490.59 12018.53 18588.00
Other Income 120.78 122,13 170.56 118.44 333.54
Total Turnover 11212.08 14866.33 16661.15 12136.97 18921.54
HOW SPENT/RETAINED
Material Cost 6112.10 823523 10367.45 GBS 10288.65
Employment Cost 3528.35 3531.69 3418.63 3343.46 3256.61
Other Expenses 4193.07 4420.52 337385 3826.45 4665.04
Depreciation 183.27 436.08 189.31 192.64 191.04
Finance Costs 132.04 147.76 60.76 86.57 85.32
Total Expenses 14148.83 16771.28 17410.00 13806.89 18484.66
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax (2936.75) (1904.95) (748.85) (1669.92) 436.88
Profit/(Loss) after tax (1706.63) (1277.73) (846.24) (1006.06) 316.14
Dividend (including tax) - - - - -
WHAT WE OWN
Fixed Assets
Gross Block 5711.81 5562.30 5454.44 5463.34 5477.78
Less : Acumulated Depreciation 2023.05 2305.41 2390.27 2582.91 2771.78
Net Block 3688.76 3256.89 3064.17 2880.43 2706.00
Current, non-current Assets,
and Deferred tax Assets 23764.04 24007.13 22596.78 23478.77 22086.62
Total Assets 27452.80 27264.02 25660.95 26359.20 24792.62
Less : Deferred tax, Current and
non-current Liabilities & Provision 17999.12 19155.30 18366.56 20073.66 18231.58
Capital employed 9453.68 8108.72 7294.39 6285.44 6561.04
REPRESENTED BY
Share Capital 1225.00 1225.00 1225.00 1225.00 1225.00
Reserves & Surplus 8168.15 6883.72 6069.39 5060.54 5336.04
Net Worth 9393.15 8108.72 7294.39 6285.54 6561.04
Secured/Unsecured Loan 60.53 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9453.68 8108.72 7294.39 6285.54 6561.04
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilege to present the 42" Annual General Meeting
of Rajasthan Electronics and Instruments Limited. The year
2023-24 was an eventful and productive year for your
Company, wherein considerable progress was made in
terms of revenue, profitability, order book and productivity.
| take this opportunity to share the performance highlights
during the year.

Almost all nations felt the effects of global economic
uncertainty, including higher energy and food prices, inflation
rates and volatile markets. In the world where geo economic
fragmentation lingers, India continues to show resilience
against the backdrop of a challenging global environment.
This spirit was underpinned by robust domestic demand,
strong public infrastructure investment and a strengthening

financial sector.

A decade ago, India ranked as the ninth-largest economy
globally, recently it climbed to fifth position and now
projections indicate that India is poised to surpass Japan and
Germany, positioning itself as the world's third-largest
economy by 2027-28.

Your Company continues with its task to build business with
long term goals based on intrinsic strength in terms of its
powerful brands, quality manufacturing process, excellent
after-sales-service and customer relationships. It accords
high priority to rationalizing and streamlining operations to

bring about better efficiencies and reduction in costs.
HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR
FY 2023-24, REIL achieved a turnover of Rs. 189.22 Crore

as against Rs. 121.37 Crore in FY 2022-23, thereby
registering a growth of 56%. The growth was driven by strong

performances across all segments and regions. The Profit
after Tax (PAT) is Rs. 316.14 Lakh as against (Loss) of
Rs. (1006.06) Lakh in the previous year. Your Company
posted positive financial results after continuous loss from

lastfour years.

Sustainability remains one of the key pillars of our business
and we at REIL have been challenging ourselves every day
with new targets to better our sustainability performances.
We are tirelessly working to make our business model
sustainable throughout the entire value chain and we have
ensured that our sustainability priorities cover varying
geographical, economic and social contexts.

Your Company always strives to conduct the business with
integrity and in ethical & transparent manner and attain the
highest standard of Corporate Governance practice. The
Company has complied with the Guidelines on Corporate
Governance framed by the Department of Public Enterprises
(DPE). We are periodically reviewing the Policies and
Procedures of the Company and updating them to ensure
transparency in all aspects of the Company's working. Your
Company has been continuously rated 'Excellent' grade for
its compliances with DPE Guidelines on Corporate

Governance.

The Company successfully completed and executed the
largest ever Export order from Guyana Energy Agency
(GEA), worth Rs. 68.51 Crore (USD 8387462) having good
value addtion for supply of SPV Home Energy Systems in
rural households of Hinterland Communities of the
Cooperative Republic of Guyana Country by dispatching

30000 Nos. of systems.

The Company has aligned business operations to contribute



to various National Programmes such as Make in India,
Digital India, National Solar Mission, Drinking Water Mission,
Food Safety & Security, Doubling the farmer's income, FAME
India Scheme and Smart City Mission. REIL has strived for
Digital Transformation of the Company through Security &
Surveillance, Digital India, Automation, e-Governance,

Paperless Office, IOT and web-based solutions etc.

Under project of Geospatial Drone Survey and Development,
Implementation & Maintenance of Enterprise Geospatial
Solution for RIICO Industrial Areas (IAs), REIL completed
Drone survey (Flying Drones & Collecting Raw data &
images) and work of establishment of 1150 numbers of
Ground Control Points & Monumentations at 392 RIICO
Industrial areas (IAs) with drone survey of total area of more
than 40,000 Hectares and created GIS plans for 392 RIICO
Industrial areas (IAs).

The Company has received a work order from Rajasthan
Council of School Education (RCSE), Education Department,
Govt. of Rajasthan for implementation of 5 kWp Off Grid/
8 kWp grid Connected SPV Power Plant at 291 nos. Govt.
PM SHRI Schools in Rajasthan. The total cost of Project is
Rs. 1451.69 Lakh only. The Company has supplied the
materials at 222 nos. schools till date. The project shall be
completed by Dec 2024.

In Renewable Energy Sector, the Company signed an MOU
with Department of College Education, Govt. of Rajasthan
for “Design, Supply, Installation & Commissioning of Grid
connected SPV Power Plant in various Government
Colleges including maintenance for the period of five years
for cumulative 2830 kWp Grid connected SPV Power
plants”. Through this environment friendly step, electricity
bills of Government Colleges will be minimized, especially
where electricity consumption is higher.

The Company was awarded Certificate of Excellence' by the
Employers Association of Rajasthan for Excellence in
maintaining Employer-Employee relations and Adopting
best practices in Occupation, Safety & Health and Skill

Development.

In Renewable Energy Division, the Company has executed
projects for various CPSEs & Departments i.e. Power
Finance Corporation Limited, SEWA THDC, Power Grid
Corporation of India Limited, Hon'ble High Courts of
PHED department,
Education department Rajasthan and Shipping Corporation

Rajasthan, Forest department,

of India Limited etc.

| take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude to the
Government of India, particularly the Ministry of Heavy
Industries, Ministry of New and Renewable Energy, DIPAM,
CAG, State Government of Rajasthan, our esteemed
Customers, Auditors, Vendors and other authorities and
agencies who have provided continued support. Your

continuous support has been instrumental in our success

| am grateful to the members on the Board for their valuable
guidance and acknowledge the immense contribution and
dedication of the employees of the Company at all levels.

With best wishes,
Date:30.10.2024 Sd/-
Place : Jaipur CHAIRMAN



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors has pleasure in presenting the
42" Annual Report on the business and operations of the
Company together with the audited Financial Statements for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

Despite several challenges in the business, the Company
posted positive financial results after continuous loss since
last four years. The Company posted a growth of 55 % in
Revenue from Operations, achieving Rs. 185 Crore during
FY 2023-24 as against Rs.120 Crore in last financial year
and registering Profit After Tax achieving Rs. 3.16 Crore as
against loss of Rs.10.08 Crore in the previous year after a
gap of four years. The increase in revenue in FY 2023-24 has
been achieved despite challenges persisting for material
availability on account of geopolitical issues and scarcity of
key inputs such as semiconductors.

Other operational income, directly contributing to bottom
line, reached at Rs 3.34 Crore during FY 2023-24, which is
up by 182% over FY 2022-23. The increase in Profit After Tax
was also aided by continued stringent budgetary control on
Administrative and other indirect expenses reflecting strong
budgetary controls in the company.

The Company is committed to total customer satisfaction by
identifying their needs translating them into quality products
and providing dependable after-sales-services. REIL
addresses energy needs of the rural sector through Solar
Photo Voltaic, Milk testing and quality related needs of the
milk co-operative and dairy industry sector through it ON/AT
line milk analysis and automation solution and Information
Technology & Communication applications for e-
governance, dairy vertical, small business and Government
sectors.

The Company has aligned business operations to contribute
to various National Programmes such as Make in India,
Digital India, National Solar Mission, Drinking Water Mission,
Food Safety & Security, Doubling the farmer's income and
Smart City Mission. REIL has strived for Digital
Transformation of the Company through Security &
Surveillance, Digital India, Automation, e-Governance,
Paperless Office, Industrial IOT and Clouds etc.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Company's financial highlights are as provided below :

(Rs. in Lakh)
S.No., PARTICULARS 2023-24 | 2022-23
1. | Turnover & Other Income 18922 12137
2. | Material Cost 10289 6358
3. | Employment Cost 3257 3343
4. | Other Revenue Expenses 4665 3826
5. | Gross Margin (PBDIT) 711 (1390)
6. | Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (PBT) 437 (1670)
7. | Net Worth 6561 6286

STATUS OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

Your Company is holding the most prominent position in the
Dairy and Solar Industry through its customer focused
approach by way of ensuring prompt products deliveries and
after sales support.

The Company successfully completed and executed the
largest ever Export order from Guyana Energy Agency
(GEA), worth Rs. 68.51 Crore (USD 8387462) for supply of
SPV Home Energy Systems in rural households of
Hinterland Communities of the Cooperative Republic of
Guyana Country by dispatching 30000 Nos. of systems.

In Dairy sector, during the year, the Company has received
major orders of AMCU, ADPMCU, EMT, Milk Analyzers from
various milk cooperatives across the Country. The
Company's Dairy solutions are helping Milk societies to
operate confidently and work with utmost transparency and
efficiency. Due to Customer's faith, the Company is able to
getgood orders despite very competitive market scenario.

Automation, so far, has been the most significant boon for the
dairy industry. REIL's Automatic Milk Collection Unit (AMCU)
has been the harbinger of digitization and automation in the
Dairy Supply chain. The solution is helping the dairy farmers,
milk cooperative societies, and milk federations to boost their
milk collection and procurement processes as a result their
businesses are flourishing and farmers are getting right
value of their milk through transparent operations. This year
the Company received good orders for over 2000 AMCUs
from across the Country.



In Renewable Energy Sector, the Company signed an MOU
with Department of College Education, Govt. of Rajasthan
for “Design, Supply, Installation & Commissioning of Grid
connected SPV Power Plant in various Government
Colleges including maintenance for the period of five years
for cumulative 2830 kWp Grid connected SPV Power
plants”. Against this 1225 kWp has already been executed.
Through this environment friendly step, electricity bills of
Government Colleges will be minimized, especially where
electricity consumption s higher.

The Company also received prestigious order from
Rajasthan Council of School Education, Jaipur for
implementation of Off Grid & Grid Connected SPV Power
Plant(s) at 291 Govt. PM Shri Schools in the state of
Rajasthan worth Rs. 12.75 Crore.

A Prestigious order worth Rs. 13.09 Crore was executed by
the Company during the year for implementation of
500 numbers of Smart classes of Rajasthan Madarsa Board
across the state of Rajasthan aimed at upgrading learning of
minority students of the state. These classrooms will be
enhanced with technological equipment for the purpose of
interactive learning and teaching experience.

Under ongoing project of Geospatial Drone Survey and
Development, Implementation & Maintenance of Enterprise
Geospatial Solution for RIICO Industrial Areas (lAs), REIL
completed Drone survey (Flying Drones & Collecting Raw
data & images) and work of establishment of Ground Control
Points & Monumentations of 300 numbers for 100 RIICO
Industrial areas (IAs) with drone survey of total area of
17283.7 Hectares and created GIS plans for 251 RIICO
Industrial areas (1As).

Your Company continues with its task to build business with
long term goals based on intrinsic strength in terms of its
powerful brands, quality manufacturing process, excellent
after-sales-service and customer relationships. It accords
high priority to rationalizing and streamlining operations to
bring about better efficiencies and reduction in costs.

DIVIDEND

Though the Company has posted marginal profit of
Rs. 3.16 Crore for the F.Y. 2023-24 after a gap of four years
but considering the future capital investment plan for
expansion and in order to conserve the resources of the
Company by taking into account the prevailing liquidity
position and the need of resources for growth, it is proposed
not to recommend any dividend on the Equity Shares of the
Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024.

(6]

TRANSFER FROM GENERAL RESERVES

Itis proposed to transfer Rs. 3.00 Crore to General Reserve
of the Company from retained earnings for the year 2023-24.

CREDIT RATING

The Company has obtained its credit ratings from CARE. It
has been given a rating 'CARE BB+; Stable by CARE for its
long-term bank facilities. Similarly, for its short-term bank
facilities the Company has been assigned 'CARE A4+' rating
by CARE.

The ratings continue to derive strength from the established
operations with long track record and diversified product
portfolio.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Shri Sudhir Kumar Sharma,
IAS, Managing Director, Rajasthan State Industrial
Development and Investment Corporation Limited (RIICO),
has been appointed as Chairman & Director w.e.f.
24.05.2023 and Shri Shivprasad Nakate, IAS, Managing
Director, RIICO ceased to be Chairman & Director of the
Company w.e.f. 24.05.2023.

Shri Shivprasad Nakate, IAS, Managing Director, Rajasthan
State Industrial Development and Investment Corporation
Limited (RIICO), has been appointed as Chairman &
Director w.e.f. 27.02.2024 and Shri Sudhir Kumar Sharma,
IAS, Managing Director, RIICO ceased to be Chairman &
Director of the Company w.e.f. 27.02.2024

Dr. PN. Sharma, GM, REIL has been appointed as
Managing Director(Additional Charge) of the Company w.e.f.
01.08.2024 t0 31.10.2024 or till further orders.

Ms. Mukta Shekhar, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Heavy
Industries, Gol, New Delhi, has been appointed as nominee
Directorw.e.f. 10.04.2023

Smt. Anju Goyal, Financial Advisor, Rajasthan State
Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited
(RIICO), has been appointed as Director of the Company
w.e.f.20.03.2024.

Shri Manish Shukla, Financial Advisor, Rajasthan State
Industrial Development and Investment Corporation Limited
(RIICO), ceased to be Director of the Company w.e.f.
20.03.2024.

The Board of Directors places on record the deep
appreciation of the valuable services rendered as well as
advice and guidance provided by Shri Sudhir Kumar
Sharma, Chairman & Director and Shri Manish Shukla,
Director of the Company during their tenure.



Key Managerial Personnel

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Act, the key
managerial personnel of the Company are Shri Rakesh
Chopra, Managing Director, Shri Subhash Agrawal, Chief
Financial Officer and Shri Amit Kumar Jain, Company
Secretary.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The independent directors have submitted the declaration of
Independence, as required pursuant to section 149(7) of the
Companies Act, 2013 stating that they meet the criteria of
independence as provided in sub-section (6).

CORPORATE AWARDS / RECOGNITIONS AND
VISIBILITY

Continuing its tradition of bagging prestigious awards. The
organization won following awards during the year.

e Certificate of Excellence' by the Employers Association
of Rajasthan for Excellence in maintaining Employer-
Employee relations and Adopting best practices in
Occupation, Safety & Health and Skill Development.

e ShriRakesh Chopra, MD, REIL has been honoured with
PSU Samarpan Award 2024.

e Participation in the “Bharat Solar Expo 2024” organized
by Rajasthan Solar Association on 2" Feb 2024 at
Rajasthan International Center, Jaipur.

e The Company participated in 50" Dairy Industry
Conference during 04" - 06"March, 2024 at HITEX
Exhibition Centre, Hyderabad (Telangana)

e Aspecialmemento in commemoration of REIL's 25-year
association with DNV has been presented to MD REIL by
lead auditor of DNV.

QUALITY & RELIABILITY

REIL pursues continual improvement in the quality of its
products, services and performance leading to customer
satisfaction through commitment, innovation and team work
of all employees. REIL has established & maintained Quality
Management System & Environment Management System.

PRODUCTION

The Company has produced 10535 Nos. of Electronic Milk
Analysers as compared to previous year 9955 Nos. and 9.01
MW of Solar Photovoltaic Modules as compared to the
previous year of4.73 MW.

DEVELOPMENT OF SUPPORT UNITS & MSMEs

REIL as a policy puts emphasis on development of support

industries and is in close interactions with support them for
their technology up-gradation, which in turn helps in their
quality improvement and volume production. REIL is fulfilling
its requirement of raw material and components, from
MSMEs.

REIL is regularly developing support industries by
participating in the vendor development programmes
organized by MSME from time to time. Procurement from
MSMEs during 2023-2024 was of Rs. 58.77 crore. The
Company has procured approx. 57.30% of total procurement
of goods & services through GeM portal during the previous
year.

ANNUAL RETURN

Annual Return pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with Section 134(3)(a) and rule 12(1) of the
Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 for
the Financial Year ended 31st March 2024 is included in this
Report as Annexure-A and forms an integral part of this
Report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF
WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL)ACT, 2013

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment
Policy in line with the requirements of Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Committee has been set
up to redress the complaints received regarding sexual
harassment at workplace. The following is the summary of
sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off
during the current Financial Year.

1. Number of Complaints received : Nil
2. Number of Complaints disposed off : Nil

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as sub section (3) (m) of Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, are stated as under :

A. Sustainable Development and Conservation of
Energy

At REIL Energy conservation plays a crucial role in our
sustainable consumption strategy, extending beyond
mere cost reduction. It serves as a vital componentin our
efforts to preserve the nation's energy reserves and
mitigate the environmental impact of our operations. By
implementing various measures, we aim to optimize our
energy usage and contribute to a more sustainable future.



The company is making continuous efforts on ongoing
basis for energy conservation by adopting innovative
measures to reduce wastage and optimize consumption.
The Company is an Electronic Manufacturing Unit with
environment friendly processes. Being in Renewable
Energy sector, Sustainability is embedded in the
organization's culture with the objective of aligning the
interests of the Company with that of its Stakeholders.
Periodic testing of environmental parameters is
undertaken as per relevant legal requirements to make
sure that processes are operating within the permissible
limits.

The Projects & Impacts

Energy conservation initiatives in manufacturing units are
monitored to achieve higher efficiency of power & fuels
inputs. Some energy conservation measures taken during
the yearinclude:

>

>

Awareness generation amongst employees about the
necessity of energy conservation.;

Identification of potential to reduce use of energy,
arresting leakages, use of alternate sources of energy,
identifying wasteful use of energy and plugging them
and use of energy measurement system.

Technology and Research &

Development

Absorption

R&D is an important means for achieving future growth
and maintaining a relevant product in the market. It
significantly contributes towards organizational growth
and sustained market share.

R&D activities follow a systemic approach of converting
the market needs into technical specification,
developing a new prototype, field trial of the prototype,
Regulatory marketing & product development activities
like documentation & final launching of the product. R&D
activities also include improvement in existing products
& processes. R&D activities also protect its proprietary
rights of patents and non-disclosure agreements to
maximize the company's profit. Company's R&D
provides support to the various departments of the
organization to improve productivity.

Company's R&D is separate from the other parts of the
organization and equipped with the latest tools and
technology-based equipment & skilled manpower. The
company's R&D is registered with the Department of
Science & Industrial Research (DSIR), Government of
India. Company's R&D mainly works in the field of agro
dairy & renewable energy to provide solutions to the rural

masses via process innovation.

Major activities undertaken by R&D includes:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Design and Development of the SMD based EWS

Electronic Weighing Scale is a device which is used in
dairy village societies to measure the weight of milk
collected. It is an integral part of the DPMCU system.
Initially designed and developed EWS was based on
through hole components and cost was also very high.
To reduce the cost, integrate more features and start
inhouse manufacturing of the EWS, design and
development of the SMD based EWS design has been
taken.

Design and development of the Digital Stirrer

The Digital Ultrasonic Stirrer serves the vital role of
stirring milk samples before testing, eliminating micro air
bubbles that naturally occur during milking. This ensures
precise and reliable readings in milk analyzers relying on
ultrasonic sound principles.

Responding to the evolving market demands, the
Company has transitioned from traditional Analog
reading-based ultrasonic stirrers to innovative Digital
Ultrasonic Stirrer. Unlike analog counterparts, Digital
Ultrasonic Stirrer incorporates a digital indication system
for milk sample stirring timing. This feature not only
ensures accuracy but also allows users to set and
monitor stirring times for optimal results. The digital
interface of Ultrasonic Stirrer is designed with
user-friendliness in mind. Operators can easily set and
monitor stirring times, making the process more intuitive
and efficient.

Design and development of ADPU based on the
240x128 GLCD

Advanced Data Process Unit (ADV-DPU), is a dedicated
unit, which receives data from peripherals, processes
and transmits data to central server. It communicates
with Dairy peripherals such as Milk Analyzer, Electronic
Weighing Scale, and Remote Display Unit, Printer etc.
via serial cable or Bluetooth interface.

Analyzer-Stirrer with DPU :

As per the requirement design and development of the
all-in-one Analyzer-stirrer with DPU has been taken.
A cabinet of the SS has been designed which
incorporates the all components and PCBs. All the
components, PCBs, motor assembly, display, keypads
etc. has been integrated in the cabinet. The prototype
has been designed and itis under testing phase.



Product up gradation

ADPU PCB Design Update

4G modem based on EC200U

Alternate BLE design and development for ADPU
Advanced Features integrationin ADPU

BMC Data-logger design up-gradation

Barcode Implementation of the Company items

S L o

BMC Data-logger Trial Production
ENGINEERING & DOCUMENTATION

The product documentation plays a critical role in ensuring
consistency in manufacturing and operation. The R&D
center manages the Document Archive and extends support
to various divisions on a need basis. Besides above,
Engineering activities like re-engineering, cost optimization
through development of alternate sources, safeguarding the
intellectual property of the company etc are also undertaken
by the R&D Center. The R&D is also maintaining a library of
technical books, journals, standards etc for reference of the
developers.

R&D Expenditure

The expenditure on Research & Development (R&D) during
the yearis as under:

(Rs.inLakh)
(a) Capital 0.00
(b) Revenue 336.09
(c) Total m
)

(d) Total R&D expenditure, as a percentage of total turnover,
stoodat1.78%

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgoings

During the year the Company has earned a sum of
Rs. 6555 Lakhs in foreign currency. The Company has also
used total foreign exchange worth of Rs. 416 Lakhs.

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE
YEAR 2023-24

Governance reflects the culture and values of a Company's
board and management. For years, REIL functions within a
sound Corporate Governance framework, which underlines
its commitment to quality of governance, transparency in
disclosures, consistent enhancement of stakeholders' value
and corporate social responsibility. REIL endeavours to
transcend beyond the basic and regulatory requirements of
corporate governance, focusing consistently on building
confidence of its shareholders, customers, employees,

suppliers and the society at large. REIL's corporate
governance framework rests upon the cornerstones of
transparency, full disclosure, independent monitoring, and
fairness to all, especially minority shareholders.

The Company has promoted practices, standards and
resources to maximize the shareholder value legally,
ethically and on a sustainable basis while ensuring fairness,
transparency and accountability to benefit all stakeholders
comprising customers, vendors, investors, regulators,
employees and the society at large.

The Company's governance framework is based on the
following principles:

7

« Timely and accurate disclosure of all material matters
relating to the Company, including the financial
situation, performance, ownership, and governance of
the Company is ensured;

% Continuous and on-going focus on training,
development and integration of employees across all
levels to achieve Company's objectives;

+ Highdegree of disclosure and transparency levels;

+ Achievement of goals with compassion for people and
environment;

+ Full Legal and Regulatory compliance in all areas in
which the Company operates;

+ Recognition of obligations towards all stakeholders —
shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers,
society and robust systems and processes for internal
control.

The Company believes in conducting business in a manner
that complies with the Corporate Governance procedures
and Code of Conduct, exemplifies each of the core values
and positions REIL to deliver long-term returns to the
shareholders, favourable outcomes to the customers,
attractive opportunities to the employees, giving an
opportunity to the suppliers to partner the Company in
progress and enrichment of society

The Board of your Company constantly endeavors to set
goals and targets aligned to the Company's vision and
mission — “To be the Leader in the Rural Sector for business
area of Dairy Electronics, significant player in Renewable
Energy & Electric Mobility and in related areas of Information
Technology applications & Skill Development.” and “To Put in
efforts to meet the existing & emerging needs of customers
and serve them through development/marketing and
delivery of quality products and dependable after sales
service.”

(9]



T
BOARD AND COMMITTEES :

a) Board of Directors:

The Company is a Government of India Company
under the administrative control of the Ministry of
Heavy Industries. The Board of Directors has a
combination of Executive (Functional) and Non
Executive Directors. As on 31 March, 2024, there were
5 Directors on the Board comprising of one Managing
Director and Four Non-Executive Directors (including
one Independent Directors). During the year, four
Board Meetings were held on 19" June, 2023,
14" August, 2023, 12" December, 2023 and
20" March, 2024 respectively.

The details of composition of the Board as at
31.03.2024, the attendance record of the Directors at
the Board Meeting and at the last Annual General
Meeting (AGM), as also the number of Directorships,
Committee Chairmanships and Memberships held by
them in other Companies are as follows:

No. of |[No of Commit/
No. of| Whether |Director] tee positions
Name Meet-| attended | ships |held in Public
of the Category ings | last AGM |in other| Companies
Director at- held on Public M Chai
tended 22.09.2023 | Compa-| e~ (Lhalr-
. ber | man
nies
’ Chairman
Shri )
Shivprasad (P"Z‘Vrc Tme) 14 NA. 9 5 | -
Nakate | 7 02.2024)
Shri Chairman
Sudhir (Part Time) - _
Kumar (up to 3 Present N.A.
Sharma | 27.02.2024)
Shri Managing
léilc()ifg Director 4 Present NIL - -
Ms Director
Mukta (P?Vl;t_ él-rpe) 4 Not Present 8 - -
Shekhar | 10 04.2023)
. Director
Shri -
Manish (P?S;ge) 2 Present 2 - -
Shukla | 49 03.2024)
Director
Smt. g
Anju (P?” t”f“e) 1 NA. 1 - | -
w.e.f.
Goyal | 54 03 2024)
Dr Director
Renuka (P?S;'t;"e) 0 NA. N.A - -
Mishra | 40 04.2023)
Shri
Dinesh | Independent - -
Kumar Director 3 Present NIL
Sharma

b)

c)

d)

Board Procedure :

As a good governance practice and as per the guidance
note issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India, the Board approves in advance, a tentative
schedule of the Board Meetings to be held during the
ensuing financial year considering the requirements
under applicable laws w.r.t minimum number of meetings
and maximum permissible time gap between two
consecutive meetings. The Board agendaiis circulated to
the Directors in advance. The Board Agenda includes an
Action Taken Report comprising of actions arising from
the Board Meetings and status updates thereof. The
Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide
on business strategies/policies and review performance
of the Company. Video-conferencing facility as per
procedure mandated under the Act, is also provided to
facilitate the Directors participating in the meetings
conveniently.

Board's Responsibilities :

The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance,
objective and an independent view to the Company's
management while discharging its responsibilities and
ensures that the management adheres to ethics,
transparency and disclosures which ultimately serve the
long-term goals of all its stakeholders along with
achieving the Company's objectives and sustainable
profitable growth.

Audit Committee :

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is
entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the
Company's internal controls and financial reporting
process. The composition, quorum, powers, role and
scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. During the financial year ended
31" March, 2023, four Audit Committee Meetings
were held on 19" June, 2023, 10" August, 2023,
12" December, 2023 and 20" March, 2024 respectively.

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the composition of
the Audit Committee was as under:

Name of Category No. of Audit
Director Committee
attended meetings attended
ShriD. K. Sharma Chairman 4
ShriRakesh Chopra Managing Director 4
ShriManish Shukla  Director (Part Time) 3




The terms of reference of the Board Level Audit Committee
specified by the Board are in conformity with the
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

1. Oversight of the Company's financial reporting process
and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure
that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and
credible;

2. Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and
terms of appointment of auditors of the Company;

3. Reviewing, with the management, the Annual Financial
Statements and Auditor's Report thereon before
submission to the Board for approval, with particular
reference to:

i. Matters required to be included in the Director's
Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section
3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

ii. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices
and reasons for the same;

iii. Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

4. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial
statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the board for approval;

5. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and
performance and effectiveness of audit process;

6. Discussion with internal auditors on any significant
findings and follow up thereon.

7. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk

management systems;

8. Reviewing, with the management, performance of
statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
control systems.

e) Other Committees of Directors:

The Board has constituted the Committees of Directors
and delegated powers and responsibilities with respect
to specific purposes. The Committees such as Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, CSR Committee,
SD Committee, R & D Committee, Ethics Committee and
Steering Committee having representation of
Independent Director(s). Meeting of these have been duly
conducted as and when required. Company has a Whistle
Blower Policy where no personnel have been denied
access to the audit committee.

MANAGEMENT ANALYSIS AND DISCUSSION

The Management discussion and analysis statements are
attached to this report.

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT :

Human Resource policies and processes of the Company
have transformed and evolved over the years in order to stay
relevant to the changing environment, enhancement of

organizational agility and ensure compliance with the
changing rules and regulations from time to time. At the close
of financial year 2023-24 the total number of employees on
permanent rolls of the company is 182.

Training & Development

Training and development programs are integral to the
Company, emphasizing continuous learning for its
employees. The Company invests in and encourages its
employees to acquire both technical and behavioral skills to
enhance quality, productivity, and achieve excellence in their
respective areas, thereby staying abreast of changing
technologies and skills. In the financial year 2023-24, the
Company conducted a total of 81 man-days of training for
officers, supervisors, and workers.

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company conducted a
diverse range of training programs for employees both
internally and externally. These included workshops on
Procurement by CPSEs with focus on social inclusion in
procurement, Systems & Procedures of the Organization,
Prevention of sexual harassment & safety and security of
women at workplace Vigilance course Preventive Vigilance,
Joint surprise check, Departmental enquiry etc., Interactive
workshop on Procurement by CPSEs through GeM, Webinar/
Seminar on Disaster Management, Public Interest Disclosure
and Protection of Informers Resolution, Cyber Hygiene and
Security, Training on Ethics & Governance and Official
language policy and rules and common mistakes in use.

Promotion of Hindi Language

The Company is continuously making vigorous efforts for the
propagation and successful implementation of the Official
Language Policy. The Official Language Implementation
Committee regularly monitors and reviews the progress. To
inculcate the knowledge of official language, training
programme on Hindi Typing has been designed and
implemented. Various competitions, prizes and incentives
were declared by the Company for promoting the use of
Hindi language in the fortnight long “Hindi Pakhwada”.
Employees from non-Hindi speaking areas are also
motivated for the same. The Company has actively
participated in the various activities being organized by
NARAKAS, Jaipur during the year 2023-24.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Your Company believes that Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) plays a major role in the development of the country.
Therefore, it has made CSR an integral part of its ethos and
culture. For the financial year 2023-24 the Company has not
undertaken any CSR projects due to non-availability of CSR
funds as per the requirement of The Companies (CSR
Policy) Rules, 2014.

Right To Information Act, 2005

The Company has complied with the provisions of the Act
and has placed the details like — name of Public Information
Officer (P1O), Assistant Public Information Officer (APIO)
and Appellate Authority on its website.



THnm
Deposits :

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public
falling within the ambit of Section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013 during FY 2023-24.

OTHER INFORMATION

No disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the
following items as there were no transactions on these items
during the year underreview:

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

2. lIssue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to
employees of the Company under any scheme.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors,
to the best of their knowledge and ability, confirms that:

I. that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2024, the applicable
Accounting Standards have been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

Il. that the Directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company as at the end of the financial year
2023-24 and profit of the Company for that period;

[ll. that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

IV. that the annual accounts have been prepared for the
financial year ended 31st March, 2024 on a 'going
concern'basis'

V. that the Directors has laid down internal financial
controls to be followed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and were
operating effectively; and

VI. that the Directors have devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (CAG) has
appointed Y Chaturvedi & Co, Jaipur as Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24.

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have given qualified
report on the accounts of the Company for the Financial Year
2023-24. The Management response on the qualification in
the Statutory Auditors Report is as per annexure-B. The
emphasis of matter given in Statutory Auditor's report is
noted. Annexure-3 to the Independent Auditors Report

dated 06.09.2024 in respect of qualified opinion regarding
point (a) (b) is self-explanatory and do not call for any further
comments.

COMMENTS OF C&AG

The review of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st
March, 2024 has been carried out by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India (C&AG). Review and Comments of
C&AG forms part of this report.

COSTAUDITORS

As per the requirements of the Section 148 of the Act read
with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014
as amended from time to time, your Company is required to
maintain cost records and accordingly, such accounts are
prepared and records have been maintained relating to
division. The Cost Audit Report for the year ended March 31,
2023 of the Company was filed with the Central Government
within the prescribed time. M/s K G Goyal & Associates,
Jaipur were the Cost Auditor of the Company for the FY
2023-24.

The Board of Directors has re-appointed M/s K.G. Goyal &
Associates, Jaipur as Cost Auditors to conduct the Cost Audit
forthe year2024-25.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF SECTION
197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

There was no employee of the Company who received
remuneration in excess of the limits prescribed under the
Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, hence the information
may be treated as NIL.

APPRECIATIONS & ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors thank the Government of India, the State
Governments and various regulatory authorities for their co-
operation and support to facilitate ease in doing business.
The Board also gratefully acknowledges the support and
guidance received from various Ministries of the
Government of India, particularly the Ministry of Heavy
Industries, and from Management of RIICO, for their
continued support and guidance.

Your Directors also wish to thank its customers, business
associates, distributors, channel partners, suppliers and
bankers for their continued support and faith reposed in the
Company.

Your Directors wish to place on record deep appreciation, for
the contribution made by the employees at all levels for their
hard work, commitment and dedication towards the

Company.
FORAND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Place : Jaipur Sd/-

Date :30.10.2024 CHAIRMAN



Annexure to Directors' Report

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
a) CORPORATE OVERVIEW

The focus is on Shaping Rural India through Electronics,
Renewable Energy & IT Solutions. REIL provides technology
solutions for qualitative & quantitative analysis of milk across
all verticals of Dairy Industry sector, addresses needs of the
rural and related urban sector through Solar Photo Voltaic,
Information Technology & Security Surveillance
applications. The Company has diversified in the area of
Geospatial Drone Survey. REIL products contribute to the
social and economic welfare of the rural masses. The
Financial Year 2023-24 has been positive in terms of
acquiring good orders with futuristic scope, project-centric
operation and business diversification in key area that will
lead to growth in the current financial year in terms of
progress of the Company in stiff competitive business
scenario.

b) ECONOMY REVIEW
Global Economy and Outlook

The global economy remained resilient in 2023 despite the
escalation of geo-political conflicts, higher-for-longer interest
rates and demand slowdown. High interest rates have also
speculated a period of recession in the major economies like
the US and the EU, which have been outdone in CY2023.
After projecting global economic growth of 3.1% in CY2023
inits Jan 2024 outlook, the IMF has upgraded its projection to
3.2% inits April 2024 outlook.

However, several economies demonstrated resilience in
these times of adversity. Emerging markets and developing
nations such as India, Mexico and Vietnam observed robust
growth and foreign capital inflow. Furthermore, with
debottlenecking of supply chains and easing of restrictive
monetary policies, global inflation rate fell from its peak in
CY2022 to 6.82% in CY2023. Certain low-income and
frontier economies also reclaimed their position in the
market.

Indian Economy Overview and Outlook

Despite a sluggish global economy, India maintained its

trajectory as one of the fastest growing economies in the
world. This economic growth can be primarily attributed to
robust domestic consumption and less reliance on foreign
imports. While government initiatives facilitated domestic
demand, increased investments to bolster manufacturing
sector and improve digital and physical infrastructure
mitigated supply chain issues effectively. The government's
emphasis on improving infrastructure, as evident through
initiatives such as the PM Gati Shakti National Master Plan,
logistics upgradation and industrial corridors, is anticipated
to increase industrial competitiveness and spur future
growth. In FY2024, India's GDP touched 7.6% with Current
Account Deficit (CAD) at 1.9% of GDP.

c) Internal control system and its adequacy :

The Company's internal control system ensures efficiency,
reliability, completeness of accounting records and timely
preparation of reliable financial and management
information. In addition, it also ensures compliances of all
applicable laws and regulations, optimum utilisation and
protection of the Company's assets. In order to ensure that
all checks and balances are in place and all internal control
system are in order, regular and exhaustive internal audit of
various divisions are conducted by experienced firm of
Chartered Accountants.

d) Riskmanagementreport:
Overview

Risk is an integral and unavoidable component of all
businesses. REIL's Risk management Plan plays a key role
in supporting the business to deliver sustainable growth and
generating value for its customers, investors, employees
and other stakeholders. Though risks cannot be completely
eliminated, an effective risk management plan ensures that
risks are reduced, avoided, retained or shared. Risk
management is embedded within our operating framework
and we have a well-defined, internal financial control
structure. The Company's approach to addressing business
risks is comprehensive and includes periodic review of such
risks and a framework for mitigating controls and reporting
mechanism of such risks.



Risk Management Practices - The key risk management
practices include the following reporting process.

Risk Identification and Assessment

Risk Evaluation

Risk Reporting and Disclosures

Risk Mitigation and Monitoring

Integration with Strategy and Business Plan

Risks are governed by the Board of Directors, Managing
Director and the heads of concerned departments.

e) Analysis and Review

The Company is holding prominent position in the Dairy
Industry through its customer focused approach by way of
ensuring prompt products deliveries and after sales support.
Besides achieving business targets, the focus of the division
has been to satisfy its esteemed customers. The division
continuously provides best services to its customer through
deployment of accurate and reliable testing equipment at
village level / milk collection centre in the villages and
strategically manpower deployment throughout the country.

Electronics Division has contributed in Government's “Digital
India” Mission by way of introducing “Dugdh Sankalan Sathi”
Mobile App based on Android platform and “SIMCOS” for
milk collection and management of daily transactions in milk
unions of across country and majorly includes Milkfed-
Punjab,Ajmer Dairy-Rajasthan, Animal Husbandry
Department- Rajasthan and various milk collection societies
of Madhya Pradesh and other states to bring more
transparency among the milk producer regarding their milk
collection and payments cycle.

The Electronics Division achieved a turnover of Rs. 80.96
Crore during the Financial Year 2023-24 and deployed

approx 7429 nos. of Milk Analyser and automation solutions
including Electronic Milk Testers (EMT), Electronic Milk
Adulteration Tester (EMAT- Advance), Milk Analysers, Auto-
EMT, Automatic Milk Collection Units (AMCU), Advance
DPU based MCU, SPV Based Advance DPU MCU,
Integrated Milk Management Software, Electronic Weigh
Scales, Solar Power Pack for milk societies, etc.

During this year, in Renewable Energy Division, the
Company has executed projects for various CPSEs &
Departmentsi.e. Power Finance Corporation Limited, SEWA
THDC, GAIL (India) Limited, Forest department, Water
Shed, PHED department, Education department Rajasthan,
Court & Pvt. Module Sale etc.

During the year, the Company has received order of
cumulative 860 kWp Grid Connected SPV Power Plant(s)
capacity at various court complexes in Rajasthan and
executed 790 kWp capacity at 31 nos. Court Complexes.
The Company has also received & executed order of 131
nos.of 2HP/3HP/5HP/7.5HP /10 HP /20 HP SPV Water
Pumping Systems in Rajasthan through Forest department,
Water Shed & PHED department, Centre of Excellence &
MPLAD Programme for Pumps.

The Company has deployed its variety of green solutions viz.
SPV based LED Street Lighting Systems, SPV Power
Plants, SPV Water Pumping Systems, SPV based Smart
Classrooms (New) etc. under CSR initiatives of various
CPSEs across the Country, contributing to a business of Rs.
13.32 Crore during the year.

Under IT initiatives in the Dairy Sector, the Company has
received an order from Department of Animal Husbandry,
GoR for design, development and implementation of
Integrated Online Monthly Progress Report (MPR) Systemin
existing Pashuaushadh (IOMMS) software designed by
REIL. The integrated online MPR system will provide the
department with complete MIS of all the segments making it
easier to trace the progress of overall activities on monthly
basis.



Form No. MGT-9

Annexure-A

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2024

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN

U51395RJ1981G01002249

Registration Date

12" June, 1981

Name of the Company

RAJASTHAN ELECTRONICS AND
INSTRUMENTS LIMITED

Central Public Sector Enterprise / Company

Transfer Agent, if any

IV. Category / Sub-Category of the Company Limited by shares
V. Whether listed company Yes / No No
VI. Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and NA

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company are given below:-

Name and Description of main

NIC Code of the product/

% to total turnover of the

SL. No. products/services service * Company
2651 - Manufacture of measuring,
1. Dairy Milk Testing Equipment testing, navigating and control 43.55%
equipment
2. Solar Photovoltaic Modules / Systems. 3510- I.Ele.ctrlc powgr gengratlon, 56.45%
transmission and distribution
* As per National Industrial Classification — Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Holding / % of .
SL. Name of Address of - Applicable
CIN/GLN Subsidiary / Shares .
(o (o
No. ompany ompany Associate held section
1. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil




IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

(i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning
of the year (As on 01-04-2023)

No. of Shares held at the end of the

year (As on 31-03-2024)

% of
change
during
the year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
total
shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
total
shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF
b) Central Govt
c) State Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp.

e) Banks / FI
f) Any Other ......

Sub-total (A) (1):-

(2) Foreign

a) NRIs - Individuals
b) Other Individuals
c) Bodies Corp.

d) Banks / FI

e) Any Other ........

Sub-total (A) (2) :-

TOTAL
SHAREHOLDING
OF PROMOTER (A)
= (A)(1) + (A)(2)

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

6247500

6002500

12250000

12250000

6247500

6002500

12250000

12250000

51%

49%

100%

0.00

100%

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

N.A.

6247500

6002500

12250000

12250000

6247500

6002500

12250000

12250000

51%

49%

100%

0.00

100%

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt.

d) State Govt (s)

e) Venture Capital
Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FlIs

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total(B)(1) :-

N.A.

N.A.

0.00

0.00

N.A.

N.A.

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00




2. Non-Institutions | N.A. 0 0 0.00
a) Bodies Corp.
i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals
i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital upto
Rs.1 lakh
ii) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs.1 lakh
c) Others

Sub-total (B)(2):-

N.A.

0 0.00

0.00

Total Public
Shareholding

(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2):-

N.A. 0 0 0.00

N.A.

0 0.00

0.00

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

N.A. 0 0 0.00

N.A.

0 0.00

0.00

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

N.A. | 12250000 | 12250000 | 100%

N.A.

12250000

12250000

100%

0.00

(if) Shareholding of Promoters

SL.| Shareholder's Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the
No. Name the year (As on 01-04-2023) year (As on 31-03-2024) .
% change in
No. of % of % of Shares No. of % of % of Shares shar(-:\holdlng
Shares total Pledged / Shares total Pledged / during the
Shares |encumbered Shares |encumbered year
of the to total of the to total
company shares company shares
1. | The President of | 6247500 51 - 6247500 51 - -
India
2. | RICO 6002500 49 - 6002500 49 - -
Total 12250000 100 - 12250000 100 - -




(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding as on March 31, 2024 (Please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
(As on 01-04-2023) Increase / (01-04-2023 to 31-03-2024)
Decrease
Name % of Date in Reason % of
No. total Share- No. total
of shares holding of shares
shares of the shares of the
company company
The President of India 6247500 51 31.03.2024 No Change 6247500 51
Rajasthan State Industrial
Development & Investment 6002500 49 31.03.2024 No Change 6002500 49

Corporation Ltd. Jaipur

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

For Each of
the Top 10 Shareholders

No. of
shares

% of total shares of the

company

No. of
shares

% of total shares of the

company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifying
the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus / sweat
equity etc):

At the End of the year ( or
on the date of separation,
if separated during the year)

NIL

(v) Shareholding of Direc

tors and Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding during the year

For Each of No. of % of total shares of the No. of % of total shares of the
the Directors and KMP shares company shares company
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifying NIL

the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus / sweat
equity etc):

At the End of the year




V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

(Rs. in Lakh)
Tonchng | Unseorsd | popost |t
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
e Addition Nil Nil Nil Nil
e Reduction Nil Nil Nil Nil
Net Change Nil Nil Nil Nil
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii) Interest due but not paid Nil Nil Nil Nil
iii) Interest accrued but not due Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total (i+ii+iii) Nil Nil Nil Nil
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (Rs. in Lakh)

SL. No. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Managing Director

Shri Rakesh Chopra

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 42.19
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 0.85
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option -
Sweat Equity -
Commission - as % of profit )
- others, specify...

5. Others i.e. PF and Pension 3.63

Total (A) 46.67




B. Remuneration to other Directors :

(Rs. in Lakh)
Name of Directors
SL. No. Particulars of Remuneration
Shri D. K. Sharma
1. Independent Directors
e Fee for attending board / committee meetings 0.60
e Commission
e Others, please specify
Total (1) 0.60
2. Other Non-Executive Directors Nil
e Fee for attending board / committee meetings
e Commission
e Others, please specify
Total (2) Nil
Total (B) = (1+2) 0.60
Total Managerial Remuneration
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD (Rs. in Lakh)
Key Managerial Personnel
SL. No. Particulars of Remuneration CEO CFO (Shri Subhash| Company Secretary Total
Agrawal) (Shri Amit K. Jain) ota
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 36.75 13.89 50.64
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 0.1 0.22 0.33
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 Not
Stock Option Applicable - - -
Sweat Equity - - -
Commission - as % of profit _ _ _
- others, specify...
5. Others i.e. PF and Pension 3.12 1.24 4.36
Total 39.98 15.35 55.33
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Tvpe Section of the Brief Details of Penalty/Punishment/ | Authority (RD/| Appeal made, if
yp Companies Act | Description| Compounding Fees imposed [NCLT/ COURT)|any (give details)

NIL
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Annexure-B

The Management Response on the qualification in the Independent Auditors' Report

is mentioned below:

Observations

Management's Comments

a. Non reporting of cancellation of subsidy by GOl in relation to EV chargers
under FAME-II and non accounting of cancellation of subsidy and return of
goods by Magenta
The company has not accounted for the return of goods during the year by
M/s Magenta Power Pvt. Ltd together with resultant effect on subsidy
receivable. The details are as follows:

The company had allotted the work to M/s Magenta Power Pvt. Ltd. as
O&M partner for 10 years as per devised business model of the company
(i.e. investment by O&M partner- 30% on EV Charger cost under category
A + offered Upfront Payment + offered Revenue Sharing) under FAME-II
scheme of MHI. The company sold material worth Rs. 19.36 crore
(incl GST) to the party in FY-2021-22. The company recognized and
adjusted the government grant of Rs. 13.32 Crore towards this supply.

The company terminated the MOA with M/s Magenta Power Pvt. Ltd. due to
breach of terms of agreement; whereupon M/s Magenta Power Private
Limited filed S.B. Civil Arbitration Application no. 12/2023, 13/2023 and
14/2023 under Section 11(6) of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996
before Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur for seeking appointment of an arbitrator
for resolution of the disputes. On 06.10.2023 Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur
appointed a Sole Arbitrator to adjudicate the disputes between the parties.
As per the directions of sole Arbitrator M/s Magenta Power Private Limited
has handed over the material to the company. The material worth
Rs. 8.17 Cr.(excl. GST) has been received back in the factory at Kanakpura
while material worth Rs. 4.70 Cr. (excl. GST) is said to be lying in premises
of Bhopal City Link Ltd., Bhopal and material worth Rs. 4.70 Cr. (excl. GST)
is said to be lying in premises of Atal Indore City Transport Services Limited.

As the material has been returned back by M/s Magenta Power Pvt. Ltd, and the

company has itself stated that it has finalized new agency to work in place of M/s

Magenta Power Pvt. Ltd hence the company should have accounted for return

of goods from the party as well as resultant effect on inventory, subsidy and

expense heads. As aresult:

- Current Liabilities (Magenta Power A/c) has been understated by
Rs. 6.04 Crore (with amount of sale returnincl. GST).

- Salesis overstated by Rs. 18.43 Crore (in respect of return of material
by Magenta Power Pvt. Ltd)

- Inventory is understated by Rs. 17.56 Crore (Cost of material returned
by Magenta).

- GSTExpensesis understated by Rs. 0.92 Crore

- Subsidy Receivable from Government is overstated by Rs. 12.85 Crore
(amount outstanding in books) and Current Liability is understated by
Rs. 0.47 Crore (Difference of subsidy recognized in relation to Magenta
and the amount already shown as subsidy receivable from Govt.),

- Profit is overstated by Rs. 1.79 Crore ( amount of difference in sale
value and costand GST Exp. )

Further, looking to the period of delay of approx 3 years and fast technological

changes in the field of electric charging, the inventory received back from

Magenta might have suffered impairment in value but no such assessment has

been carried out by the company and we cannot comment thereon. Moreover

the warranty period has also expired by this duration.

Matter in respect of cancellation of sanction /
allotment of EV chargers under FAME-II
scheme has not been accounted for as
communication has been received from
Government of India on 04.09.2024 allowing
the Company for execution of EV Charging
Infrastructure project for 222 EV PCS
allotted under FAME 1l Scheme. Therefore,
Management is of the opinion that there is no
need for further accounting adjustments as
matteris pending in court of law.

As per Clause no. 14.2 of memorandum of
agreement with M/s. Magenta Power Pvt.
Ltd. “In case of early termination REIL shall
have the right to dismantle the charging
equipment and take control in its custody
the charging equipment”. Accordingly,
Hon'ble arbitrator ordered the Company to
take custody of the material and the
custody of the material without assigning
value to the same as title of goods are still in
the name of charge point operators had
been taken by the Company.

In this regard status has also been
disclosed at Note No. 7.2 of the financial
statements for the year 2023-24
reproduced as under:

“In FAME 1l scheme of Electric Vehicle
Charging Station, Grant of Rs 8.15 crore
was received for 680 EVCS to establish
222 nos of EVCSs. The Grant has been
utilized to the extent of 70% of EVCS
invoiced, further Rs 12.85 crore towards
the remaining unadjusted amount of EVCS
is receivable from Government of India.
The Memorandum of Agreement was
terminated due to breach of the terms of the
Agreements on the part of M/s Magenta
Power Private Limited & M/s. Tecso
Chargezone Pvt. Ltd. to fulfil their obligation
of submitting the Performance Bank
Guarantee. M/s Magenta Power Private
Limited has filed S.B. Civil Arbitration
Application no. 12/2023, 13/2023 and
14/2023 under Section 11(6) of the
Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 before
Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur for seeking
appointment of an arbitrator for resolution of
the disputes. On 06.10.2023 Hon'ble High
Court, Jaipur passed an order to adjudicate
the disputes between the parties. As per sole
Arbitrator directions M/s. Magenta Power
Private Limited has handed over material to
the Company. As final decision has not been
pronounced by the arbitrator yet, therefore
the adjustments of the same in the books of
accounts has not been carried out”




Insufficient Provision for bad and doubtful debts

We have been informed that out of total debtors of Rs. 177.10 crores, the
debtors amounting to Rs. 77.60 crore are outstanding for more than 5 years
which constitutes 43.60% of total debtors. We have observed thatin many
of these accounts the amount is said to have been withheld on account of
liquidated damages (LD) or non performance of contractual obligations.
Moreover, the company has represented that there is regular follow up for
recovery but in vain and that LD is not leviable on company for diverse
reasons. The company has not maintained consolidated detail regarding
specific reasons of non-recovery in these accounts including LD imposed
by debtors. The company has even sent legal notices in some cases after
the observation by C&AG inspection in case of few accounts.

Against the amount of Rs. 77.60 crore outstanding for more than 5 years
the provision for doubtful debts of Rs. 23.28 crore has already been made in
the books of accounts (as per policy of company) and creditors amounting
to Rs. 38.45 crore are said to be outstanding on back to back basis, which
leaves Rs. 15.87 crore the recovery of which is also not ascertainable.

Further more the total provision for bad and doubtful debts as on
31.03.2024 is Rs. 25.30 crore (incl. 23.28 crore in respect of debtors above
5 years), which shows that in respect of balance debtors outstanding for
less than 5 years, provision of only Rs. 2.14 crore.

The above facts indicate that the provision for doubtful debts is insufficient,
but due to lack of complete details and lack of reasonable ascertainment of
realisability of dues from debtors we are unable to quantify the same.
Moreover in absence of complete information and assessment of liquidated
damages imposed by various debtors we cannot quantify its effect on profit
and loss/reserves of the company.

The Company has made provision for
bad and doubtful debts as per consistent
accounting policy followed on year to
year basis. In opinion of the Management,
sufficient provision has been created for
bad and doubtful debts as apart from
total provision of Rs. 25.30 crore, most of
the old outstanding balances are duly
covered by receivable from customers
as well as payable to the vendors / sub-
contractors on back to back basis. In this
regard please refer to note No. 32.3(C)
of balance sheet for the year 2023-24 is
reproduced as under:-

“Trade payable includes Rs. 9593.19
lakhs as at March31, 2024 (Rs. 9602.02
lakhs as at March 31 2023) payable to
the suppliers/contractors only when the
payment is received from respective
customers.”

EESL-NimboniAdditional Site

The company had supplied SPV Power Plant to Energy Efficiency Services
Limited at Nimboni Additional Site (Maharashtra) in year 2019-20 for
Rs. 4.03 crore (incl GST). Thereafter credit note was issued for
Rs. 1.14 crore (incl. GST) in FY 2021-22 towards sales return out of this
sale. The material sold to EESL was purchased from M/s Powerone
Microsystem Pvt Ltd.. As per the information available the work could not
be started at this location. Apart from material returned to REIL (as
mentioned above), the balance material has been taken back by
M/s Powerone.

In this regard no accounting entries have been made in books of accounts
except for return of SPV power plant amounting to Rs. 1.14 crore
(incl GST).

The amount outstanding as due to be received from EESL in respect of this
project is Rs. 2.89 Crore which is actually not receivable and thus the
debtoris overstated by Rs. 2.89 Crore.

Further the creditor account of M/s Powerone is overstated by
Rs. 2.20 Crore which is in respect of material burnt at site and taken back
by Powerone Microsystem.

Legal notice has been issued to
M/s. EESL to complete the work order at
their risk & cost and to recover
outstanding balance. As the contract
was awarded to M/s Powerone
Microsystem Pvt Ltd. for execution on
back to back payment term basis,
therefore, accounting adjustments shall
be carried out after settlement of all the
issues.




COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
RAJASTHAN ELECTRONICS AND INSTRUMENTS LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31* MARCH, 2024

The preparation of financial statements of Rajasthan Electronics and Instruments Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India under section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the
Actbased on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This
is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 06 September, 2024.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the financial
statements of Rajasthan Electronics and Instruments Limited for the year ended 31 March 2024 under section 143(6)(a) of the
Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory
auditors and is limited primarily to enquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination of

some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit; nothing significant has come to my knowledge which would give rise to any

comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors' report under section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Sd/-
(S. Ahlladini Panda)
Director General of Audit
Place : New Delhi (Industry & Corporate Affairs)
Dated : 25 OCT 2024 New Delhi



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of
Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of
Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Limited (“the
Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31% March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on
that date, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other
Explanatory Information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us except for the
effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid Financial Statements
give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013(the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies
Act 2013, “the Act” read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“Ind As”)
and the other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31,2024, and its Profit including other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on thatdate.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under and we

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We, having obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence,
conclude that misstatements, individually or in aggregate,
are material but not pervasive to the financial statements.

We draw your attention towards matters specified below
on the basis of which we are expressing qualifying
opinion over the financial statements :

a. Non reporting of cancellation of subsidy by GOl in
relation to EV chargers under FAME-Il and non
accounting of cancellation of subsidy and return of
goods by Magenta

The company has not accounted for the return of goods
during the year by M/s Magenta Power Pvt. Ltd together
with resultant effect on subsidy receivable. The details
are as follows:

The company had allotted the work to M/s Magenta
Power Pvt. Ltd. (M/s Magenta) as O&M partner for
10 years as per devised business model of the company
(i.e. investment by O&M partner- 30% on EV Charger
cost under category A + offered Upfront Payment
+ offered Revenue Sharing) under FAME-II scheme of
MHI. The company sold material worth Rs. 19.36 crore
(incl GST) to the party in FY-2021-22. The company
recognized and adjusted the government grant of
Rs. 13.32 Crore towards this supply.

The company terminated the MOA with M/s Magenta
due to breach of terms of agreement; whereupon
M/s Magenta filed S.B. Civil Arbitration Application
no. 12/2023, 13/2023 and 14/2023 under Section 11(6)
of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 before
Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur for seeking appointment of an
arbitrator for resolution of the disputes. On 06.10.2023
Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur appointed a Sole Arbitrator to
adjudicate the disputes between the parties. As per the
directions of sole Arbitrator M/s Magenta has handed
over the material to the company. The material worth
Rs. 8.17 Cr.(excl. GST) has been received back in the
factory at Kanakpura while material worth Rs. 4.70 Cr.
(excl. GST) s said to be lying in premises of Bhopal City



Link Ltd., Bhopal and material worth Rs. 4.70 Cr. (excl.
GST) is said to be lying in premises of Atal Indore City
Transport Services Limited.

As the material has been returned back by M/s Magenta,
and the company has itself stated that it is going to
appoint new agency to work in place of M/s Magenta,
hence the company should have accounted for return of
goods from the party as well as resultant effect on
inventory, subsidy and expense heads but it has not
passed any entries in this regard. As a result:

- Current Liabilities has been understated by
Rs. 6.04 Crore (with amount of sale return net of
subsidy andincl. GST).

- Salesis overstated by Rs. 18.43 Crore (in respect of
return of material by M/s Magenta Power Pvt. Ltd)

- Inventory is understated by Rs. 17.56 Crore (Cost of
material returned by M/s Magenta).

- GST Expensesis understated by Rs. 0.92 Crore

- Subsidy Receivable from Government is overstated
by Rs. 12.85 Crore (amount outstanding in books)
and Current Liability is understated by Rs. 0.47
Crore (Difference of subsidy recognized in relation
to Magenta and the amount already accounted as
subsidy receivable from Govt.),

- Profit is overstated by Rs. 1.79 Crore ( amount of
difference of sale return and cost of goods returned
plus GST Exp. onsale return)

Further, looking to the period of delay of approx 3 years
and fast technological changes in the field of electric
charging, the inventory received back from M/s Magenta
might have suffered impairment in value but no such
assessment has been carried out by the company and
we cannot comment thereon. Moreover the warranty
period has also expired by this duration.

b. Insufficient Provision for bad and doubtful debts.

We have been informed that out of total debtors of
Rs. 177.10 crores, the debtors amounting to Rs. 77.60
crore are outstanding for more than 5 years which
constitutes 43.60% of total debtors. We have observed
that in many of these accounts the amount is said to
have been withheld on account of liquidated damages
(LD) or non performance of contractual obligations.
Moreover the company has represented that there is
regular follow up for recovery but in vain and that LD is
not leviable on company for diverse reasons. The

company has not maintained consolidated detail
regarding specific reasons of non-recovery in these
accounts including LD imposed by debtors. The
company has even sent legal notices in some cases
after the observation by C&AG inspection in case of few
accounts.

Against the amount of Rs. 77.60 crore outstanding for
more than 5 years the provision for doubtful debts of
Rs. 23.28 crore has already been made in the books of
accounts (as per policy of company) and creditors
amounting to Rs. 38.45 crore are said to be outstanding
on back to back basis, which leaves Rs. 15.87 crore the
recovery of which is also not ascertainable.

Furthermore the total provision for bad and doubtful
debts as on 31.03.2024 is Rs. 25.30 crore (incl. 23.28
crore in respect of debtors above 5 years), which shows
that in respect of balance debtors outstanding for less
than 5 years, provision of only Rs. 2.14 crore.

The above facts indicate that the provision for doubtful
debts is insufficient, but due to lack of complete details
and lack of reasonable ascertainment of realizability of
dues from debtors we are unable to quantify the same.
Moreover in absence of complete information and
assessment of liquidated damages imposed by various
debtors we cannot quantify its effect on profit and
loss/reserves of the company.

EESL-Nimboni Additional Site

The company had supplied SPV Power Plant to Energy
Efficiency Services Limited at Nimboni Additional Site
(Maharashtra) in year 2019-20 for Rs. 4,03 crore (incl
GST). Thereafter credit note was issued for Rs. 1.14
crore (incl. GST) in FY 2021-22 towards sales return out
of this sale. The material sold to EESL was purchased
from M/s Powerone Microsystem Pvt Ltd.. As per the
information available the work could not be started at this
location. Apart from material returned to REIL (as
mentioned above), the balance material has been taken
back by M/s Powerone.

In this regard no accounting entries have been made in
books of accounts except for return of SPV power plant
amounting to Rs. 1.14 crore (incl GST).

The amount outstanding as due to be received from
EESL in respect of this project is Rs. 2.89 Crore which is
actually not receivable and thus the debtor is overstated
by Rs.2.89 Crore.



Further the creditor account of M/s Powerone is
overstated by Rs. 2.20 Crore which is in respect of
material burnt at site and taken back by Powerone
Microsystem.

Although quantification of effect of qualifications
could not be made in the case of point no (b), but as
mentioned in Point No. (a) & (c) the Revenue is
overstated by Rs. 18.43 Crores & Expenses are
understated by Rs. 1.79 Crores. Similarly Current
Assets have been understated by Rs. 1.82 Crores &
CurrentLiabilities are understated by Rs. 4.31 Crores.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER

Without qualifying our opinion in this respect we draw your
attention towards matters specified below which are of such
importance that these are fundamental to the user's
understanding of financial statements.

a. Note No 7.1 & 19 B wherein balances of Trade
receivables and Trade payables have not been
confirmed. Consequential impact on confirmation/
reconciliation/ adjustment of such balances (which will
not be material as per management), if any, is not
ascertainable.

b. Note No. 8.1 regarding Deferred Tax Assets of Rs. 21.09
crores carried in books of account in view of the reasons
stated therein, the realization of which would depend on
generation of sufficient profits in the future as anticipated
/ projected by the management.

c. Note No 32.3(c) with respect to trade payables which
includes Rs 95.93 crores payable to contractors only
when the paymentis received from customers.

d. Note No 20.1.2 regarding non-disclosure of contingent
liability of interest claim by an MSME vendor (M/s Gan
sun Global Solutions India Private Limited) on an
amount of Rs. 14.75 lacs as the amount of interest is not
ascertainable.

e. Note No. 10.2 regarding writing down of inventory by
Rs. 56 lakh in respect of sale reversal. During the year,
the company has booked sales return of Solar LED
Street Light System amounting to Rs. 19223400/- in
respect of sales made in FY-2019-20. The material
included batteries which have got discharged and thus
their value has been written down by Rs. 56 lakh (80% of
cost). The quality check of other material of 800 street
light system was also pending and we cannot comment
on impairment in its value, if any. Further there is loss of

GST of Rs. 17.10 lakh as the GST on sale return after
4 years cannot be adjusted from GST liability of
company. Moreover it may also be seen that company
has accepted sale return after 4 years which shows that
there is no policy regarding accepting sale return.

f.  The Government had cancelled the sanction/allotment
of EVCS under Fame Il scheme due to non-
commissioning of chargers vide letter dated 31/07/2023
and had directed the company to refund the subsidy
amount of Rs. 8,15,08,000/- with interest thereon.
Although now after various representations of the
company the Government has issued a letter on
04/09/2024 that REIL may complete the execution of
222 numbers EVCS by 31/03/2025 and the release of
remaining subsidy will be done as per the Fame-ll
Scheme.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Financial Statement of current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have not determined the matters to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but
does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor's
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the
other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When
we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to report that



fact. On the auditor's report date, we have nothing to reportin
this regard, as the Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

THE

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (IND AS)prescribed under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended and the accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that
give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations or has no realistic
alternative buttodo so.

The Board of Director's are also responsible for overseeing
the Company's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement whether due to fraud or error and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if individually or in the aggregate they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

i) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

i) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by Board of Directors.

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors'
use of the going concern basis of accounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as agoing concern.

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the Financial Statements, including the disclosures
and whether the Financial Statements represent the



underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of Misstatements in the
Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (1) Planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results or our work (2) to evaluate the
effect if about udentified misstatements in the Financial
Statements

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure 1” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of section 143(5) of
the Act, on the basis of such checks of the books and
records of the company as we considered and according
to the information and explanations given to us, in the

"Annexure 2" on the directions issued by the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have soughtand obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper Books of Account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash
Flow Statement, the Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Changes in other Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements
comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended.

(e) The provisions of Section 164(2) of the Actin respect
of disqualification of directors are not applicable to
the company, being a Government Company in
terms of notification no. G.S.R.463 (E) dated June 5,
2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to

our separate Reportin “Annexure 3”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Reportin accordance with the requirements of
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

The provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of
the Act, relating to managerial remuneration are not -
applicable to the Company, being a Government
Company, in terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs
Notification no. G.S.R.463(E) dated June 5, 2015.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Amendments Rules,
2021, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending



Place

litigations on its financial position in financial
statement. - Refer Note 20.1 (b) ,(c) (d) ,and Note
35 (G) to the Financial Statements.

The Company has made provision, as required
under the applicable law or accounting standards,
for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts.

There were no amounts which were required to be
transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

(a) The Board of Director's has represented that, to
the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s) or entity(ies), incuding foreign
entities (,internediaries“)with the understanding
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether , directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Board of Director's has represented, that to
the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the acounts, no funds have
been received by the company from any person(s)
or entity(ies) including foreign entities (Funding
Parties) with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

: Jaipur
Dated : 06/09/2024

vi.

Vii.

(c) Based on such audit procedures we have
consideerd reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representation
under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
mis-statement;

The company has neither declared nor paid any
dividend during the year.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is applicable for the company w.e.f.
April 1,2023, reporting under this is not applicable.

Based on our examination, which included test
checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account for
the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a
feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility
(except in softwares for inventory and HR); however
the same has not been operated throughout the
year. The function of audit trails had been enabled
w.e.f. 31st March 2024 in the accounting software.
The audit trail had not been implemented in the
inventory and HR software. Further the audit trail
does not contain the detail of user who had made the
entry. Since the audit trail had not been maintained
throughout the year therefore we cannnot comment
whether the audit trail feature is being tampered
with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit
trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial year
ended March 31, 2024.

For Y CHATURVEDI AND CO
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 001912C)

Sd/-
(CA GOVIND PRASAD SHARMA)
Partner
M.No. 071893
UDIN : UDIN : 24071893BKEREZ2773



ANNEXURE '"1' TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE
MEMBERS OF RAJASTHAN ELECTRONICS AND INSTRUMENTS LIMITED,
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2024

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements”
section of our Audit Report)

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2020 issued by the Central Government of India in terms of
section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we report that:

(i)

In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment:

(@) A) The Company has generally maintained proper
records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property,
Plant and Equipment on the basis of available
information.

B) The Company has generally maintained proper
records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment have been
physically verified by the management during the
year at reasonable interval and no material
discrepancies were identified on such physical
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given
by the management and on the basis of our
examination of the copy of the title deeds, the
immovable properties disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company.
Although the original title deeds are said to be lying
with bank against loan taken by the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not
revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company as provided to us, there are
no proceedings initiated during the year or pending
against the Company as on March 31, 2024 for
holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 as amended
and rules made thereunder.

(ii) Inrespectofitsinventories:

(a) According to information and explanation given to us
and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the company the inventory has been physically
verified by the management at reasonable intervals
during the year. No discrepancy of 10% or more in
the aggregate of each class of inventory were
noticed.

(b) According to information and explanation given to us
and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the company, the company has been sanctioned
working capital limit amounting Rs 25 Crore from
bank during the year on the basis of primary security
of current assets. Necessary quarterly returns or
statements have been filed by the company with
such bank during the year.

(iii) Inrespectofloans:

a)

According to the information and explanations given to
us and on the basis of our examination of the records of
the Company the company has not made Investmentsin
and granted advances in the nature of loans during the
year to other parties. The company has not provided any
guarantees or securities, granted loans and advances in
the nature of loans during the year to companies, firms or
limited liability partnerships and other parties , details of
which are stated below

A) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and
as per the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not provided any loans or advances in the
nature of loans or has not provided any guarantee or
security to subsidiaries and joint ventures during the
year.

B) Based on the audit procedures carried out by us and
as per the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not granted advances in the nature of
loans to any other parties or employees during the year.
The company has not provided any guarantee or
security to other parties during the year.



b)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The company has not made investments, grant
advances or loans and give guarantee in respect
thereof provisions of clause (iii) (b), (c) (d) (e) and (f)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees
and securities, provisions of section 185 and 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with
in all material aspects.

According to the audit evidences obtained and
information and explanations given to us, the
Company has received advances from customers
amounting to Rs. 111268865/ - which are
outstanding for more than 365 days. Such advances
are deemed as deposits in terms of Section 73 of
The Companies Act, 2013 and rule 2(1)(c) of The
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

In respect of cost records:

We have been informed that the books of account
maintained by the Company are pursuant to the
rules prescribed by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
The Companies Act, 2013, related to manufacture of
electrical goods and electrical machinery and are of
the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed cost
records have been maintained. We have not,
however, made detailed examination of the records
with a view to determine whether they are accurate
and complete. We are reporting based on the
information provided to us and the report issued by
the Cost Auditor for the previous year.

(vii) Inrespect of statutory dues:

a. The Company is generally regular in depositing
with the undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance,
Service Tax, Income-tax, Custom Duty, Excise
Duty, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Cess and any other statutory dues, as recorded
in Books of Account, applicable to the Company.
Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year
end for a period more than six months from the
date they became payable except as follows:

1) Custom duty payable against export obligation
amounting Rs 49.86 lakhs. It had been
explained that no demand had been issued by
any authority in this regard.

b. According to the information and explanations given to
us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Service Tax, Excise
Duty, Value Added Tax, Custom Duty and Goods and Service
Tax which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute except the following:

Name
of
Act

Forum
where
dispute
is pending

Disputed
amount
(Tin
Lakh)

Period to
which
amount
relates

Nature
of the
dues

Central
Excise
Act

CESTAT
(Custom Excise
& Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal

3.82 |F.Y.2009-10
(Vide order

dt.24.07.12)

Service
Tax

CGST
Act

The Appeal
had been
rejected by
Commissioner
(Appeal).
The company
had taken stay
from
Rajasthan
High Court
against
recovery of
demand.
Further the
Appeal would
be filed with
Tribunal when
the tribunal
would be
constituted.

GST | 238.45 [F.Y.2019-20

CGST
Act

GST 2.32 [FY.2018-19| Appeal filed
with Addl.
Commissioner
(Appeal)

CGST

(viii)

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as Income in the books of
accounts, in the tax assessments under the Income
TaxAct, 1961 as Income during the year.



(ix) Inrespect of repayment of dues:

a)

f)

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not
defaulted in repayment of dues to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not been
declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not taken
any term loan. Therefore clause (ix) © is not
applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, no funds raised on short
term basis have been used for long-term purpose of
the company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not taken
any funds from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligation of its subsidiaries, associates
and jointventures.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the company has not raised
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held
in its subsidiaries, associates orjoint ventures.

(x) a) According to the information and explanations given

(xi) a)

to us, the company has not raised moneys by way of
initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting
under paragraph 3(x)(a) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

During the year the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence
reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the order is not
applicable to the company.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the

b)

c)

information and explanation given to us, we have
neither come across any instance of material fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor
we have been informed of any such case by the
management.

According to the information and explanations given
to us, no report under sub-section (12) of section
143 of the Act has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies(Audit
and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the central
government.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, no cases were received by
the company under Whistle Blower Policy of the
Company.

(xii) Inrespect of Nidhi Company:

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, this
clause is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In respect of Related Parties:

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with section 188 and 177 of The Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the Financial Statements etc. as required by applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv)a) Based on information and explanations provided to

b)

us and based on our audit procedures, the company
has an Internal Audit System but it does not
commensurate with its size and nature of business
and needs to be strengthened.

We have been provided and have considered the
internal audit reports of the Company for the year
2023-24.

(xv)In respect of Non-cash transactions with directors:

According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with
him and hence the provisions of section 192 of The
CompaniesAct, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) @) The Company is not required to be registered under

section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934.
Therefore clause (xvi)(a),(b),(c) and (d) of



(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

Place
Dated :

paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the
company.

The cash profitin currentfinancial yearis Rs. 507.18
lakhs and cash loss in preceeding financial year was
Rs. 1477.28 lakh. The Company earned cash profit
of Rs. 507.18 lakh during the year (subject to our
qualified opinion) while it incurred cash loss of
Rs. 1477.28 lakh in preceeding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory
auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii)
ofthe orderis not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of the financial rations, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination
of the relevant evidence, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that the company is not capable of meeting its

: Jaipur

06/09/2024

(xx)

(xxi)

liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

The company does not meet the criteria of Section
135 with regard to Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) hence clause (xx)(a) and (b) is not applicable
tothe company.

According to the information and explanations given
to us there is no any qualification or adverse remarks
by the respective auditor in the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the
companies included in the consolidated financial
statements.

For Y CHATURVEDI AND CO
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 001912C)

Sd/-
(CA GOVIND PRASAD SHARMA)
Partner
M.No. 071893
UDIN : 24071893BKEREZ2773



ANNEXURE-2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE

MEMBERS OF RAJASTHAN ELECTRONICS & INSTRUMENTS LIMITED,
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2024

Directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, indicating
the areas to be examined by the Statutory Auditors during the course of audit of annual accounts of Rajasthan Electronics &
Instruments Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2024:-

S.

No.

Directions

Action Taken

Impact on IND
AS Financial
Statements

Whether the company has system in
place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT system? If yes,
the implications of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT
system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if
any, may be stated.

Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per
the information and explanations given to us, no
accounting transactions have been processed/
carried outside the IT system except that the
accounting software and Inventory Software are non
integrated. However, there are no implications on the
integrity of the accounts.

NIL

Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write off
of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a
lender to the company due to the
company's inability to repay the loan? If
yes, the financial impact may be stated.
Whether such cases are properly
accounted for ? (In case, lender is a
Government company, then this
direction is also applicable for statutory
auditor of lender company)

Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per
the information and explanations given to us, there
was no restructuring of existing loans or cases of
waiver/write off of debts/ loans/interest etc. made by
the lender to the company due to the company's
inability to repay the loan.

NIL

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc)
received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central/State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted
for/utilized as per its term and
conditions? List the cases of deviation.

Based on the audit procedures carried out, it was
observed that the Company has accounted for
/utilized the funds as per terms and conditions laid
down by authority except as referred to in Qualification
no. (a) of Basis of Qualified Opinion mentioned in Main
Audit Report.

As per Main
Audit Report.

Place : Jaipur
Dated : 06/09/2024

For Y CHATURVEDI AND CO
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 001912C)

Sd/-

(CA GOVIND PRASAD SHARMA)

Partner

M.No. 071893
UDIN : 24071893BKEREZ2773




ANNEXURE- 3 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE
MEMBERS OF RAJASTHAN ELECTRONICS & INSTRUMENTS LIMITED,
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2024

Report on the Internal Financial Controls
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of RAJASTHAN ELECTRONICS AND
INSTRUMENTS LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31,
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company's
business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the Company; and



3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis of Qualified Opinion

According to the information and explanations given to us

and based on our audit, the following material weaknesses

have been identified in the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls

over financial reporting as at March 31, 2024:

(a) Keeping in view the size, nature and complexities of
the business, the company's internal audit system
needs to be strengthned along with periodic review
of financial statements of the company

(b) The Company do not have an appropriate internal
control systems in respect of movement of goods
which shows that there is lack of internal control
over issue and receipt of materal and for obtaining
external confirmation from Trade Receivables and
Trade Payables on periodic basis. During the year

Place : Jaipur
Dated : 06/09/2024

the company had issued account statement to Trade
Receivables and Trade Payable however it had not
been confirmed by them. Hence, we are unable to
comment on the operating effectiveness of this
system.

A 'material weakness' is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal financial control over financial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the Company's annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
maintained adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting as of March 31, 2024, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and except
for the effects/possible effects of the material weaknesses
described above on the achievement of the objectives of the
control criteria, the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting were operating effectively as of
March 31, 2024.

We have considered the material weaknesses identified and
reported above in determining the nature, timing, and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the March 31, 2024
Financial Statements of the Company, and these material
weaknesses do not affect our opinion on the Financial
Statements of the Company.

For Y CHATURVEDI AND CO
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 001912C)

Sd/-
(CA GOVIND PRASAD SHARMA)
Partner
M.No. 071893
UDIN : 24071893BKEREZ2773



COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

We have conducted the audit of accounts of Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Limited for the year
ended 31st March 2024 in accordance with the Directions/Sub-Directions issued by the Comptroller &
Auditor General (C&AG) of India under section 143(5) of The Companies Act,2013 and certify that we

have complied with all the Directions/Sub-Directions issued to us.

Place : Jaipur For Y CHATURVEDI AND CO
Dated : 06/09/2024 Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 001912C)

Sd/-
(CA GOVIND PRASAD SHARMA)
Partner
M.No. 071893
UDIN : 24071893BKEREZ2773



BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31" MARCH 2024

(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

: As at As at
Particular N
articulars OteS| March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Assets
. Non-current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 4 2,706.00 2,880.43
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 - -
(c) Investment Property = =
(d) Goodwill - -
(e) Other Intangible assets
(i) Technical Know How 5 - -
(f) Intangible Assets under development - -
(g) Biological Assets other than bearer Plants = =
(h) Financial assets
(i) Investments - -
(ii) Trade receivables 6 102.92 149.02
(iii) Loans - -
(iv) Other financial assets 9A 78.76 174.10
(v) Deffered Tax Asset ( Net ) 8 2,109.21 2,213.23
(vi) Other non-current assets = =
Total Non-current Assets 4,996.89 5,416.78
Il. Current Assets
(a) Inventories 10 1,913.05 2,074.80
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments - -
(ii) Trade receivables 7 15,180.16 16,515.03
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 1" 1,118.02 1,358.61
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 11A 307.58 196.52
(v) Loans
(vi) Other financial assets 9B 113.64 211.20
(c) Current tax assets 13 439.28 267.07
(d) Other current assets 12 724.00 319.19
Total Current Assets 19,795.73 20,942.42
Total Assets (I + 1I) 24,792.62 26,359.20
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
I. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 14 1,225.00 1,225.00
(b) Other Equity 15 5,336.04 5,060.54
Total Equity 6,561.04 6,285.54
LIABILITIES
1. Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings - -
(ii) Lease liabilities = =
(iiiy Trade payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19A o @
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 19A 48.52 7.59
and small enterprises
(b) Provisions 17A 292.22 284.74
(c) Deferred tax liabilities ( Net) - -
(d) Other non-current liabilities 18A 258.95 264.33
Total Non-current Liabilities 599.69 556.66
lll. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings - -
(ii) Lease liabilities = =
(iiiy Trade payables
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 19B 2,214.10 2,979.81
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 19B 12,161.79 11,993.06
and small enterprises
(iv) Other financial liabilities 16 372.97 444 .87
(b) Other current liabilities 18B 1,953.36 2,964.03
(c) Provisions 17B 929.67 1,135.23
Total Current Liabilities 17,631.89 19,517.00
IV. Total Liabilities (Il + 11I) 18,231.58 20,073.66
Total Equity and Liabilities (I + IV) 24,792.62 26,359.20

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements ( 1-36 )
As per our separate report of even date

For Y. Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountants

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-
(FRN. 001912C) (Anju Goyal ) (Dr. P. N. Sharma )
Sd/- Director Managing Director
(CA Govind Prasad Sharma) DIN : 10558241 DIN : 10729529
Partner

Membership No. 71893

Place : Jaipur
Date : 06.09.2024
UDIN : 24071893BKEREZ2773

Sd/-
( Amit Kumar Jain )
Company Secretary

Sd/-
( Subhash Agrawal )
Chief Financial Officer



STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2024

(Al amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

: Year ended Year ended
Particulars Notes| viarch 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
l. Revenue from Operations 21 18,588.00 12,018.53
Il.  Otherincome 22 333.54 118.44
lll. Totallncome (I+1I) 18,921.54 12,136.97
IV. Expenses

Cost of material consumed 23 10,199.78 6,173.41

Purchase of stockin Trade - -

Change in inventories of finished goods 24 88.87 184.36

Employee benefits expense 25 3,256.61 3,343.46

Finance costs 26 83.32 86.57

Depreciation, Impairment and amortisation expenses 27 191.04 192.64

Other expenses 28 4,665.04 3,826.45

Total expenses 18,484.66 13,806.89

V.  Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (l1l-1V) 436.88 (1,669.92)

VI.  Add: Exceptional items - =

VII. Profit/(Loss) after exceptional items and before tax 436.88 (1,669.92)
VIIl. Less: Tax expense 29

1. Currenttax - -

2. Provision Reversal - -

3. Deferred tax 120.74 (663.86)

Total Tax Expense 120.74 (663.86)

IX  Profit/(Loss)forthe period from continued operations (VII - VII) 316.14 (1,006.06)

X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations = =

Xl Taxexpenses of discontinued operations = =

XIl  Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) ( X-XI) - -

Xl Profit/(loss) for the period (IX + XII) 316.14 (1,006.06)

XIV Other Comprehensive Income - -

A (i) Itemsthatwill not be reclassified to profit or loss = =

(a) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (57.35) (3.93)

B (i) Income taxrelating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 16.71 1.14

Total other comprehensive income (XIV=A(i)+B(i)) (40.64) (2.79)

XV Total comprehensive income for the year (XIlI+XIV) 275.50 (1,008.85)
XVI Earnings per equity share 30

(1) Basic(inRs.) 2.58 (8.21)

(2) Diluted (inRs.) 2.58 (8.21)

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements ( 1-36 )

As per our separate report of even date

For Y. Chaturvedi & Co

Chartered Accountants Sd/-
(FRN. 001912C) ( Anju Goyal )
Sd/- Director
(CA Govind Prasad Sharma) DIN : 10558241

Partner
Membership No. 71893

Place : Jaipur
Date : 06.09.2024
UDIN : 24071893BKEREZ2773

Sd/-
( Amit Kumar Jain )
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Dr. P.N. Sharma)
Managing Director
DIN : 10729529

Sd/-

( Subhash Agrawal )
Chief Financial Officer



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31% MARCH, 2024

(Al amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. | Cashflows from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) for the year 316.14 (1,006.06)
Adjustments for:
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss 120.74 (663.86)
Allowances for bad debts 100.93 204.78
Assets Written-off 0.11 -
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss 83.32 86.57
Interestincome recognised in profit or loss (106.45) (98.13)
Depreciation and amortisation 191.04 192.64
Bad Debts / Subsidy receivable written-off - 6.48
Cash generated from operations before working capital changes 705.83 (1,277.58)
Movements in working capital:
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables 1,280.04 (1,052.88)
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (322.97) 125.78
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 161.75 50.39
Increase / (Decrease) in trade payables (556.05) 521.84
Increase / (Decrease) in provisions (255.43) 183.58
Increase / (Decrease) in other payables (1,087.95) 997.75
(780.61) 826.47
Cash generated from operations (74.78) (451.11)
Income Taxes (Paid)/ refund received (172.22) 256.60
Net cash generated by operating activities (247.00) (194.51)
B. | Cashflows frominvesting activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (16.72) (8.90)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - -
Interest Income 106.45 98.13
Net cash (used in)/generated by investing activities 89.73 89.23
C. | Cashflows from financing activities
Finance cost paid (83.32) (86.57)
Net (used in)/ generated in financing activities (83.32) (86.57)
Netincrease/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (240.59) (191.85)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year* 1,358.61 1,550.46
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 1,118.02 1,358.61
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement 1,118.02 1,358.61
Difference - -
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet ( Refer Note No. 11) 1,118.02 1,358.61

*Cash and cash equivalents include other bank balances as per Note 11

1 The above cash flow statement prepared under the "indirect method" as set outin the Ind AS 7 "Cash flow statement".
Figures for previous year have been regrouped wherever necessary for uniformity in presentation.

2
3 Brackets indicate cash outflow.
4

Cash & cash equivalents includes Rs. 0.14 Lakhs which is not available for use in normal business operations

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements ( 1-36 )

As per our separate report of even date

For Y. Chaturvedi & Co

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
(FRN. 001912C) ( Anju Goyal )
Sd)- Director
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UDIN : 24071893BKEREZ2773

DIN : 10558241

Sd/-
( Amit Kumar Jain )
Company Secretary

Sd/-
(Dr. P.N. Sharma)
Managing Director
DIN : 10729529

Sd/-
( Subhash Agrawal )
Chief Financial Officer



STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
A. Equity share capital

1. Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

Balance at the
beginning of the
current reporting period

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due
to prior period errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
current reporting period

Changes in equity
share capital during
the current year

Balance at the
end of the current
reporting period

1,225.00

1,225.00

2. Statement of changes in eq

uity for the year ended Ma

rch 31, 2023

Balance at the
beginning of the
previous reporting period

Changes in Equity
Share Capital due
to prior period errors

Restated balance at
the beginning of the
previous reporting period

Changes in equity
share capital during
the previous year

Balance at the
end of the Previous
reporting period

1,225.00

1,225.00

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements ( 1-36 )

As per our separate report of even date

For Y. Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountants
(FRN. 001912C)

Sd/-
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Sd/-
( Anju Goyal )
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DIN : 10558241

Sd/-

( Amit Kumar Jain )
Company Secretary

Sd/-

(Dr. P.N. Sharma)
Managing Director
DIN : 10729529

Sd/-

( Subhash Agrawal )
Chief Financial Officer




B. Other Equity

1. Statement of changes in other equity for the year ended March 31, 2024

(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

' Reserves and Surplus Debt Equity Exchange
Share | Equity Instruments| Instruments| - Effoctive Diff.on [ Otheritems| Money
application | component Other through | through | portion of | Revaluation| frenslating | of Other [ Received
money of Capital | Securiies | Reserve | Retained other other '::ashflow Surplus the financial| Compreh- |  share Total
pending cqmpoqnd Reserve | Premium (specify | Earnings | Compreh- | Compreh- Hedaes statements |  ensive against
allotment | financial nature) ensive | ensive ¢ of aforeign| Income | warrants
instruments Income | Income Operation
(Remeasu-
General rement of
Reserve net defined
benefit plan)
(a) Balance at the beginning of the current - - - 497345| 302.53 - - - - - (215.44) - 5,060.54
reporting period
(b) Changes in accounting policy or prior - - - - - - - - - - - - -
period errors
(c) Restated balance at the beginning - - - - - - - - - - - - -
of the current reporting period
(d) Total Comprehensive Income for the - - - - - - - - - - (40.64) - (40.64)
current year
(e) Dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - -
(f) Transfer to retained Eamings - - - 300.00] (300.00) - - - - - - - -
(g) Any other change (to be specified) - - - -| 31614 - - - - - - - 316.14
() Balance at the Current Reporting Period - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - 5273.45 | 318.67 - - - - - (256.08) - 5,336.04
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements ( 1-36 )
2. Statement of changes in other equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
' Reserves and Surplus Debt Equity Exchange
Share Equity Instruments| Instruments| - Effoctive Diff.on | Other items| Money
application | component Other through [ through | nortion of | Revaluation| fr2nslating | of Other | Received
money of Capital | Securities | Reserve | Retained other other '::ashflow Surplus the financial| Compreh- |  share Total
pending cqmpoqnd Reserve | Premium (specify | Earnings | Compreh- | Compreh- Hedaes statements |  ensive against
allotment | financial nature) ensive ensive g ofaforeign| Income | warrants
instruments Income | Income Operation
(Remeasu-
General rement of
Reserve net defined
benefit plan)
(a) Balance at the beginning of the current - - - 5973.45| 308.59 - - - - - (212.65) - 6,069.39
reporting period
(b) Changes in accounting policy or prior - - - - - - - - - - - - -
period errors
(c) Restated balance at the beginning - - - - - - - - - - - - -
of the current reporting period
(d) Total Comprehensive Income for the - - - - - - - - - - (2.79) - (2.79)
current year
(e) Dividends - - - - - - - - - - - - -
(f) Transfer to retained Eamings - - - |(1,000.00)| 1,000.00 - - - - - - - -
(o) Any other change (to be specified) - - - -1(1,006.06) - - - - - - - |(1,006.06)
() Balance at the Current Reporting Period - - - - - - - - - - - - -
- - - 497345 | 302.53 - - - - - (215.44) - 5,060.54
See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements ( 1-36 )
As per our separate report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For Y. Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountants Sd/- Sd/-
(FRN. 001912C) ( Anju Goyal ) (Dr. P.N. Sharma)
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(CA Govind Prasad Sharma)

Partner
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Date : 06.09.2024

UDIN : 24071893BKEREZ2773

DIN : 10558241

Sd/-
( Amit Kumar Jain )
Company Secretary

DIN : 10729529

Sd/-
( Subhash Agrawal )
Chief Financial Officer




3.1

General Information & Significant Accounting Policies forming part of
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

General information :

Rajasthan Electronics & Instruments Limited, Jaipur
(REIL) is incorporated and domiciled in India having
registered office at 2, Kanakpura Industrial Area, Sirsi
Road, Jaipur. The Company is a joint venture between
the Government of India (51% shareholding) and
Government of Rajasthan through RIICO with share
holding of 49%.

The Company was incorporated on 12" June, 1981 and
falls under the administrative control of Ministry of
Heavy Industries, Government of India and is a Mini
Ratna PSU. REIL is in the business of Electronic Milk
Analyzers and Solar Energy Equipment with minor
interest in Information Technology, Industrial
Electronics and Electric Vehicle Charging Station.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new
standards or amendments to the existing standards.
The amendments so notified are not applicable to the
Company during the period. Financial Statements have
been prepared as per requirement of Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly figures (amount)
infinancial statements have beentakenasRs. in Lakhs.
Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Statement of compliance

3.2

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ('Ind
AS'), including the rules notified under the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, amended from
time to time.

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value
amount:

i. Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities,

3.3

ii. Defined Benefit Plans —Plan Assets

The financial statements have been prepared on
accrual and going concern basis. The accounting
policies are applied consistently to all the periods
presented in the financial statements.

Current and Non-Current Classification The
Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance
Sheet based on Current/ Non-Current classification.

An assetis treated as Current wheniitis

i. Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or
consumed in normal operating cycle;

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iii. Expected to be realized within twelve months after
the reporting period, or

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

Aliability is current when:

i. Itisexpectedto be settledin normal operating cycle;

ii. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iii. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period, or

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the

settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as
non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
estimates, judgments and assumptions. These
estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. The principal



3.4

accounting estimates used have been described under
the relevantincome/expense and /or asset/ liability item
in these financial statements. The Management
believes that the estimates used in the preparation of
these Financial Statements are prudent and reasonable.
Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired by the
Company are reported at acquisition cost, with
deductions for accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any.

The acquisition cost includes the purchase price
(excluding refundable taxes) and expenses, such as
delivery and handling costs, installation, legal services
and consultancy services, directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the site and in working
condition for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss during the period
in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehold land is
amortized over the life of the lease.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost
less their residual values over their useful lives as
specified in the Schedule Il of the Companies Act 2013,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis. Assets costing X 5,000 or less are
fully depreciated in the year of purchase.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
assetand is recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.5

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for
intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are
disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of
recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less
accumulated amortization/depletion and impairment
losses, if any. Such cost includes purchase price,
borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for the
intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the entity and the cost can be measured reliably.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as
either finite or indefinite. Finite-life intangible assets are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the period of
their expected useful lives.

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible
asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and
other economic factors (such as the stability of the
industry, and known technological advances), and the
level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The amortization period and the amortization method
for finite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if
appropriate.Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an Intangible Asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognized.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Software
product development costs are expensed as incurred
unless technical and commercial feasibility of the
project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are
probable, the company has as intention and ability to
complete and use or sell the software and the costs can
be measured reliably. The costs which can be
capitalized include the cost of material, direct labour,
overhead cost that are directly attributable to preparing
the asset forits intended use



3.6

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other

3.7

than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Company
reviews the carrying amounts of its Property Plant and
Equipment and intangible assets or group of Assets,
called Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU towhich the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss to the extent, asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost of
disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risk
specific to the assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, or whenever there is an indication
that the asset may be impaired.

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not
exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized
in the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal
is treated as arevaluation increase.

.7 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. However, materials and other items
held for use in the production of inventories are not
written down below cost if the finished products in which

they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or
above cost. Cost is computed on a FIFO basis, Cost of
finished goods and work-in-progress include all costs of
purchases, conversion costs and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Cost of inventories comprises of all cost of conversion
and other cost incurred in bringing them to their
respective present location and condition and valued on
the basis of FIFO method.

The net realizable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

The inventory in which no transactions of purchases/
sales/consumption occurred during the financial year
are classified as non-moving inventory whereas the
inventories in which less than 20% transactions
occurred are classified as slow moving inventory. These
inventories are identified on the year end and
accordingly written down to the twenty percent of its
value. However, if realizable value is higher than the
actual costthan, noimpactis taken

3.8 Revenue Recognition

Company Recognises revenue from contracts with
customers based on a five-step criteria as set out in Ind
AS-115:-

(i) Identification of the contracts with a customer :- A
contract is defined as an agreement between two or
more parties that creates enforceable rights and
obligations and sets out the criteria for every
contract that must be met.

(i) Identification of the performance obligations in the
contract: A performance obligation is a promise in a
contract with a customer to transfer a good or
service to the customer.

(iii) Determination of the transaction price : The
transaction price is the amount of consideration to
which the company expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or
services to a customer excluding amounts collected
on behalf of third parties.

(iv) Allocation of the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract: For a



(v)

contract that has more than one performance
obligation the Company allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation in an amount
that depicts the amount of consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
satisfying each performance obligation.

Recognition of revenue when or as the Company
satisfies a performance obligation.

e According to Ind AS 115 which establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is to be
recognized.

e The Company recognizes revenue from contracts
with customers when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring promised good or
service to a customer. The revenue is recognized
to the extent of transaction price allocated to the
performance obligation satisfied. Performance
obligation is satisfied over time when the transfer
of control of asset (good or service) to a customer
is done over time and in other cases, performance
obligation is satisfied at a point in time. For
performance obligation satisfied over time, the
revenue recognition is done by measuring the
progress towards complete satisfaction of
performance obligation.

e Revenue is measured based on the transaction
price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
volume discounts ,service level credits,
performance bonuses, price concessions and
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with
the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes
collected from customers.

e Transaction price is the amount of consideration
to which the Company expects it to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer excluding amounts collected on behalf
of a third party. Variable consideration is
estimated using the expected value method or
most likely amount as appropriate in a given
circumstance. Payment terms agreed with a
customer are as per business practice and the
financing component, if significant, is separated
from the transaction price and accounted as

interestincome.

e Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when

all the significant risks and rewards of ownership
in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per
the terms of the contract, there is no continuing
managerial involvement with the goods and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The
Company retains no effective control of the goods
transferred to a degree usually associated with
ownership and no significant uncertainty exists
regarding the amount of the consideration that will
be derived from the sale of goods. Revenue is
measured at fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, after deduction of any
trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or
duties collected on behalf of the government
which are levied on sales such as Goods and
Service Tax etc

Revenue from services rendered is recognized
based on agreements/ arrangements with the
customers, over time by measuring the progress
towards complete satisfaction of performance
obligations at the reporting period and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably.

Use of significant judgments in revenue recognition

e The Company's contracts with customers could

include promises to transfer multiple products and
services to a customer. The Company assesses
the products / a service promised in a contract
and identifies distinct performance obligations in
the contract. Identification of distinct performance
obligation involves judgment to determine the
deliverables and the ability of the customer to
benefitindependently from such deliverables.

The Company uses judgment to determine an
appropriate standalone selling price for a
performance obligation. The Company allocates
the transaction price to each performance
obligation on the basis of the relative standalone
selling price of each distinct product or service
promised in the contract. Where standalone
selling price is not observable, the Company uses
the expected cost plus margin approach to
allocate the transaction price to each distinct
performance obligation.

The Company exercises judgment in determining



whether the performance obligation is satisfied at
a point in time or over a period of time. The
Company considers indicators such as how
customer consumes benefits as services are
rendered or who controls the asset as it is being
created or existence of enforceable right to
payment for performance to date and alternate
use of such product or service, transfer of
significant risks and rewards to the customer,
acceptance of delivery by the customer, etc.

InterestiIncome

Interest Income from a Financial Assets is recognized using
effective interest rate method.

3.9 Employee Benefits

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans are recognized as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of
providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out
at the end of each annual reporting period.
Re-measurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net
interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet
with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.
Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and
will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss in the
period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period
to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

e service cost (including current service cost, past
service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments) and

e netinterestexpense orincome; and

® re-measurement

The Company presents the first two components of

defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item

'‘Employee benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and

I
losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the
balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus
in the Company's defined benefit plans. Any surplus
resulting from this calculation is limited to the present
value of any economic benefits available in the form of
refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans. A liability for a termination
benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can
no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit
and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring
costs.

e Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognized as
an expense during the period when the employees
renderthe services.

Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Company in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date.

3.10 Financial instruments

Financial Assets:

Financial assets are recognized when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognized at
fair value, in case of financial assets which are
recognized at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
its transaction cost is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. In other cases, the transaction cost
is adjusted to the Fair value of the Financial Asset.

Financial assets are subsequently classified as
measured at:

e Amortized cost

e Fairvalue through profitandloss (FVTPL)

e Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI).

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their

recognition, except if and in the period the Company



changes its business model for managing financial
assets.

Trade Receivables and Loans:

Trade receivables and loans are initially recognized at
fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method net of any expected credit losses. The EIR is the
rate that discounts estimated future cash income
through the expected life of financial instrument.

The provision for doubtful debts @ 10% for outstanding
of more than 3 years and upto 4 years, @ 20% for
outstanding of more than 4 years and upto 5 years and
@ 30% for outstanding of more than 5 years have been
created.

DebtInstruments :

Debt instruments are initially measured at amortized

cost, fair value through other comprehensive income

('FVOCI') or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL") till

derecognition on the basis of

(i) The entity's business model for managing the
financial assets and

(i) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.

(a) Measured atamortized cost:

Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest, are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective
interestrate ('EIR') method less impairment, if any.

The amortization of EIR and loss arising from
impairment, if any is recognized in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

(b) Measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income:

Financial assets that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both, selling
financial assets and collecting contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest, are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). Interest income

measured using the EIR method and impairment
losses, if any are recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. On derecognition, cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to 'other income' in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

(c) Measured atfair value through profit or loss:

A financial asset not classified as either amortized
cost or FVOCI, is classified s FVTPL. Such financial
assets are measured at fair value with all changes in
fair value, including interest income and dividend
income if any, recognized as 'other income' in the
Statement of Profitand Loss.

Derecognition of Financial Asset

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of Financial Asset

e Expected credit losses are recognized for all
financial assets subsequent to initial recognition
other than financials assets in FVTPL category.

e Forfinancial assets other than trade receivables, as
per Ind AS 109, the Company recognizes 12 month
expected credit losses for all originated or acquired
financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk
of the financial asset has not increased significantly
since its initial recognition.

e The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial
asset increases significantly since its initial
recognition.

e For trade receivables Company applies 'simplified
approach' (Refer Point No. 3.10 “Trade Receivables
and Loans”) which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognized from initial recognition of the
receivables. The Company uses historical default
rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of
trade receivables. At every reporting date these
historical default rates are reviewed and changes in
the forward looking estimates are analyzed.

e The impairment losses and reversals are
recognized in Statement of Profitand Loss.



Financial Liabilities :

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognized when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at
the amortized cost unless at initial recognition, they are
classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of
trade payables, they are initially recognized at fair value
and subsequently, these liabilities are held at amortized
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Financial liabilities
carried at fair value through profit and loss is measured
at fair value with all changes in fair value recognized in
the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Derecognition of Financial Liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.11 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants actin their economic bestinterest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the assetin its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use

of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurementas awhole:

e Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurementis directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company
has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

3.12 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a
provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance
contract, the reimbursementis recognized as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any
reimbursement.



If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a
possible obligation arising from past events, the
existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a
reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

3.13 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for theirintended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in Statement of
Profitand Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

3.14Income Taxes

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax
and deferred tax. It is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss except to the extent it relates to an item
which is recognized directly in Other Comprehensive
Income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable/receivable on
the taxable income/ loss for the year using applicable tax
rates at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustment to
taxes in respect of previous years. Interest income/
expense and penalty, if any, related to income tax is
included in current tax expense.

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward
of unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities; and the deferred tax assets
and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

3.15Foreign Currency Transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency
closing rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognized in
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of
exchange differences which are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency
borrowings that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalized as
costof assets.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are recorded using
the exchange rates at the date of the transaction.



Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in OCI or Statement of Profitand Loss
are also recognized in OCI or Statement of Profit and
Loss, respectively).

3.16 Government Grant

The Government Grants (Grant in Aid) are accounted for
in accordance with Ind-AS 20. The entity shall consider
the conditions and obligations that have been, or must
be, metwhen identifying the costs for which the benefit of
the Grantis intended to compensate

Government grants are not recognized until there is
reasonable assurance that the Company will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received. Government grants are recognized in
Statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Company recognizes as
expenses the related costs for which the grants are
intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the company
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognized as deferred revenue
in the Balance sheet and transferred to Statement of
profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis over
the useful lives of the related assets.

3.17 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Company as Lessee

Right-of-Use (ROU) assets are recognized at inception
of a contract or arrangement for significant lease
components at cost less lease incentives, if any. ROU
assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.
The cost of ROU assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognized, initial direct cost incurred and

lease payments made at or before the lease
commencement date. ROU assets are generally
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
estimated useful lives of the underlying assets on a
straight line basis. Lease term is determined based on
consideration of facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or
not to exercise a termination option. Lease payments
associated with short-term leases and low value leases
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straightline basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at
the present value of lease payments to be made on the
date of recognition of the lease. Such lease liabilities do
not include variable lease payments (that do not depend
on an index or a rate), which are recognized as expense
in the periods in which they are incurred. Interest on
lease liability is recognized using the effective interest
method. Lease liabilities are subsequently increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. The carrying amount of lease liabilities
is also re-measured upon modification of lease
arrangement or upon change in the assessment of the
lease term. The effect of such re-measurements is
adjusted to the value of the ROU assets.

3.18 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net
profit after tax for the period attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares,
other than the conversion of potential equity shares that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.19 Non-Current assets held for Sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This



condition is regarded as met only when the asset is
available for immediate sale in its present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and customary for
sales of such asset and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets held for sale are neither depreciated
noramortized.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell and are presented separately in
the Balance Sheet.

3.20 Dividend

Dividends paid (including income tax thereon) are
recognized in the period in which the interim dividends
are approved by the Board of Directors, or in respect of
the final dividend when approved by shareholders.

3.21 Cash & Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents in the Balance Sheet
comprise cash at banks and on hand and Bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits,
margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks
and other bank balances which have restrictions on
repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being
subject to more than insignificant risk of change in value,
are notincluded as part of cash and cash equivalents.

3.22 Operating Segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of
the operating segments, has been identified as the
Corporate Management Committee.

Segments are organized based on businesses which
have similar economic characteristics as well as exhibit
similarities in nature of products and services offered,
the nature of production processes, the type and class of
customer and distribution methods.

Segment revenue arising from third party customers is

reported on the same basis as revenue in the financial

statements. Inter-segment revenue is reported on the
basis of transactions which are primarily market led.
Segment results represent profits before finance
charges, unallocated corporate expenses and taxes.
“Unallocated Corporate Expenses” include revenue and
expenses that relate to initiatives/costs attributable to
the enterprise as a whole.

3.23 Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method,
where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or
accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated
with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated.

3.24 Prior Period Errors

Prior period errors include omissions and misstatements
arising from a failure to use reliable information that was
available or could have been obtained when financial
statements for those periods were approved forissue.

Material prior period errors relating to the last
comparative period will be shown by restating the
comparative figures of Balance sheet and Statement of
Profit and loss, wherever necessary. Thus, it will be
disclosed in the comparative financial statements as if
the error had not even occurred.

3.25 Event after reporting period

The 'events after the reporting period' are classified into
two categories:

e Adjusting Events: Adjusting events are those that
provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period; and

e Non Adjusting Events: Non-adjusting events are
those that are indicative of conditions that arose
after the reporting period

Amounts recognized in financial statements are
adjusted to reflect adjusting events after the reporting
period. Amounts recognized in financial statements are
not adjusted to reflect non-adjusting events after the
reporting period. If non-adjusting events after the
reporting period are material, then such events are
disclosed along with the nature of the event and an
estimate of its financial effect.



Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 ( Contd.)
Note : 4 Tangible Assets

Current Year (Al amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Cost or Deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount
Particulars Balanc.e as B ) ) Balance at Balanc.e as Adjustm- Dep.recia- . ) Balance at As at As at
atApril 1, | Additions [Adjustments| Disposals | March 31, | atApril 1, ents tion Impairment | Disposals March 31, March 31, | March 31,
2023 2024 2023 expense 2024 2024 2023

Property plant and equipment

Vehicles 25.95 - - - 25.95 21.34 - 2.00 - - 23.34 2.61 4.61

Road, Drains &

water supply 26.34 - - - 26.34 25.02 - - - - 25.02 1.32 1.32

Building 1,838.43 - - - 1,838.43 256.21 - 31.39 - - 287.60 1,550.83 1,582.22

Furniture and fixtures 398.50 - - - 398.50 164.48 - 31.71 - - 196.19 202.31 234.02

Office Equipment 135.70 - - - 135.70 65.33 - 9.25 - - 74.58 61.12 70.37

Wind Power Project 580.00 - - - 580.00 551.00 - - - - 551.00 29.00 29.00

Temporary Structure 26.13 - - - 26.13 26.13 - - - - 26.13 - -

Plant and Machinery-

Imported 1,519.14 - - - 1,519.14 887.73 - 89.92 - - 977.65 541.49 631.41

Plant and Machinery-

Indigenous 495.50 - - - 495.50 302.80 - 19.02 - - 321.82 173.68 192.70

Computer and Printers; 217.67 16.72 2.28 - 232.11 190.51 (2.17) 6.46 - - 194.80 37.31 27.16

Leasehold Premises

Land 127.28 - - - 127.28 19.66 - 1.29 - - 20.95 106.33 107.62

Subtotal 5,390.64 16.72 2.28 - 5,405.08 2,510.21 (2.17) 191.04 - - 2,699.08 2,706.00 2,880.43

Capital work-in-

progress ° ° ° ) . ) N

Total 5,390.64 16.72 2.28 - 5,405.08 2,510.21 (217) 191.04 - - 2,699.08 2,706.00 2,880.43

4.1 Company is availing fund / non-fund based limits from Punjab National Bank, secured by way of Hypothecation of Raw Material, Stock in process, finished goods and book
debts and further collateraly secured by first charge over fixed and movable Capital Assets of the Company.

4.2 Theleaseholdlandincludes 40000 Sq.Mtrs. area situated at Kanakpura Industrial Area, Sirsi Road, Jaipur and 2500 Sq.Mtrs. area situated at Mansarovar, Jaipur.

Previous Year (All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Cost or Deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount
Particulars Balance as Balance at | Balance as Adiustm- Deprecia- Balance at As at As at
atApril 1, | Additions [Adjustments| Disposals | March 31, | atApril 1, tjants tion Impairment | Disposals March 31, March 31, | March 31,
2022 2023 2022 expense 2023 2023 2022

Property plant and equipment

Vehicles 25.95 - - - 25.95 18.44 - 291 - - 21.34 4.61 7.51

Road, Drains &

water supply 26.34 - - - 26.34 25.02 - - - - 25.02 1.32 1.32

Building 1,838.43 - - - 1,838.43 224.82 - 31.39 - - 256.21 1,582.22 1,613.61

Furniture and fixtures 174.80 - (0.09) - 174.71 130.83 0.09 33.74 - - 164.48 10.23 43.97

Office Equipment 135.61 - 0.09 - 135.70 5593 [ (0.09) 9.31 - - 65.33 70.37 79.68

Wind Power Project 580.00 - - - 580.00 551.00 - - - - 551.00 29.00 29.00

Temporary Structure 26.13 - - - 26.13 26.13 - - - - 26.13 - -

Plant and Machinery-

Imported 1,519.14 - - - 1,519.14 797.85 - 89.88 - - 887.73 631.41 721.29

Plant and Machinery-

Indigenous 718.81 - - - 718.81 281.96 - 20.84 - - 302.80 416.01 436.85

Computer and Printers; 209.25 8.90 - - 218.15 187.22 - 329 - - 190.51 27.64 22.03

Leasehold Premises

Land 127.28 - - - 127.28 18.37 - 1.29 - - 19.66 107.62 108.91

Subtotal 5,381.74 8.90 - - 5,390.64 2,317.57 - 192.64 - - 2,510.21 2,880.43 3,064.17

Capital work-in-

progress ° ° ° ) . ) N

Total 5,381.74 8.90 - - 5,390.64 2,317.57 - 192.64 - - 2,510.21 2,880.43 3,064.17
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Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 ( Contd.)

Note : 5 Intangible Assets

Current Year

(Al amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Cost or Deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount
Particulars Balance as| Additions | Additions [Disposals or | Balance as | Balance as | 5 .\ o rtisation Balance at As at As at
at April 1, |from separate| from internal | classified as |at March 31,| at April 1, expense Adjustments| March 31, March 31, March 31,
2023 acquisitions |developments| held for sale 2024 2023 2024 2024 2023
Technical Know-how 72.70 - - - 72.70 72.70 - - 72.70 - -
Subtotal (a) 72.70 - - - 72.70 72.70 - - 72.70 - -
Previous Year (All amounts in ¥, unless otherwise stated)
Cost or Deemed cost Accumulated depreciation and impairment Carrying Amount
Particulars Balance as| Additions | Additions [Disposals or | Balance as | Balance as | 5 .\ o rtisation Balance at As at As at
at April 1, |from separate| from internal | classified as [at March 31, at April 1, expense Adjustments| March 31, March 31, | March 31,
2022 acquisitions |developments| held for sale 2023 2022 2023 2023 2022
Technical Know-how 72.70 - - - 72.70 72.70 - - 72.70 - -
Subtotal (a) 72.70 - - - 72.70 72.70 - - 72.70 - -

6. Trade receivables - Non Current

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
(a) Unsecured, considered good 102.92 149.02
Total 102.92 149.02

7. Trade receivables - Current

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
From Related Party

(a) Unsecured, considered good 2,078.74 1,920.19
From Others

(a) Secured, considered good - -
(b) Unsecured, considered good 13,101.42 14,594.84
(c) Doubtful 2,529.74 2,428.81
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts 2,529.74 2,428.81
Total 15,180.16 16,515.03

7.1 The Company had sent letters to the customers for confirmation of the outstanding balance as at 31st March 2024, but the response of the same has not been received.

7.2 In FAME 1l scheme of Electric Vehicle Charging Station, Grant of Rs 8.15 crore was received for 680 EVCS to establish 222 nos of EVCSs. The Grant has been utilized to the
extent of 70% of EVCS invoiced, further Rs 12.85 crore towards the remaining unadjusted amount of EVCS is receivable from Government of India.

The Memorandum of Agreement was terminated due to breach of the terms of the Agreements on the part of M/s Magenta Power Private Limited & M/s. Tecso Chargezone Pvt. Ltd.
to fulfil their obligation of submitting the Performance Bank Guarantee. M/s Magenta Power Private Limited has filed S.B. Civil Arbitration Application no. 12/2023, 13/2023 and
14/2023 under Section 11(6) of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996 before Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur for seeking appointment of an arbitrator for resolution of the disputes. On
06.10.2023 Hon’ble High Court, Jaipur appointed a Sole Arbitrator to adjudicate the disputes between the parties. As per sole Arbitrator directions M/s Magenta Power Private
Limited has handed over the material to the company. As final decision has not been pronounced by the arbitrator yet, therefore the adjustments of the same in the books of accounts
has not been carried out.

8. Deferred Tax Asset (Net)
The following is the analysis of deferred tax Assets/(Liabilities) presented in the balance sheet:

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Deferred tax liabilities (368.42) (448.52)
Deferred tax assets 2,477.63 2,661.75
Net 2,109.21 2,213.23

8.1 In assessing the reliability of deferred income tax assets, the Management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not be realized. The
ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become
deductible. The Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this
assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred income tax assets are deductible, the
Management believes that the Company will realize the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount of the deferred income tax assets considered realizable, however,
could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.As per Management's estimate the company like in the current
year will now have taxable future profits over the future years on which this asset may be used. The Company's ability to recover defered tax assets is assessed by management at
the close of each financial year taking into account forecasts of future taxable results



Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 ( Contd.)

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024

(Al amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than | 6 Months | 1 Year to 2 Year to | More than Total
6 Months to 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 3 Years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 3,443.58 843.63 215.41 3,948.56 -] 8,451.18
Considered Good
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - 7,487.40 7,487.40
significant increase in credit risk
(iif) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - -
Credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Goods - - - - 1,771.32 1,771.32
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 3,443.58 843.63 215.41 3,948.56 9,258.72 | 17,709.90
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts - - - - 2,529.74 2,529.74
Total Trade Receivables 3,443.58 843.63 215.41 3,948.56 6,728.98 | 15,180.16
Trade Receivables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023
. Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than | 6 Months | 1 Year to 2 Year to | More than Total
6 Months to 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 3 Years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 4,869.07 1,185.87 3,531.81 589.02 - 110,175.77
Considered Good
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - 6,923.62 6,923.62
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - - - - - - -
Credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Goods - - - - 1,844.45 1,844.45
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired - - - - - -
Total 4,869.07 1,185.87 3,531.81 589.02 8,768.07 | 18,943.84
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts - - - - 2,428.81 2,428.81
Total Trade Receivables 4,869.07 1,185.87 3,531.81 589.02 6,339.26 | 16,515.03

Year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Opening balance Ef:f(i)tg::slggsm Egr%ToggLseends:Ceoit::;me Closing balance
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to :

Property, plant and equipment (346.29) 49.18 - (297.11)
Fair Value of financial assets 9.20 (1.26) - 7.94
Allowance for Doubtful Debts 707.27 29.00 - 736.27
Deferred revenue (102.23) 30.92 - (71.31)
Deferred expense 70.78 (27.66) - 43.12
Provisions for Employee Benefit 589.96 (89.78) 16.71 516.89
Tax on losses (Carry Forward Losses) 1,284.54 (111.13) - 1,173.41
Total 2,213.23 (120.74) 16.71 2,109.21
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Year ended March 31, 2023

(Al amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Opening balance Efcfm‘ci)tg:rnggsln E:;%?:Lseends:c:it:g;me Closing balance
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to :

Property, plant and equipment (344.40) (1.89) - (346.29)
Fair Value of financial assets 5.90 3.30 - 9.20
Allowance for Doubtful Debts 645.82 61.45 - 707.27
Deferred revenue (100.82) (1.41) - (102.23)
Deferred expense 78.95 (8.17) - 70.78
Provisions for Employee Benefit 582.24 6.58 1.14 589.96
Tax on losses (Carry Forward Losses) 929.14 355.40 - 1,284.54
Deferred Grant (248.60) 248.60 - -
Total 1,548.23 663.86 1.14 2,213.23

9. Other financial assets

9A. Other financial assets - Non current

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
From Related Party

- Security Deposit 0.40 0.40
Others - - -

- Security Deposit 75.60 67.88

- Loans & Advances to employee 2.76 2.42

- Cash and bank balance not available for immediate use (See Note below) - 103.40
Total 78.76 174.10

Note : Particulars of cash and bank balance not available for immediate use.

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Bank Balances (Including interest accrued thereon) not available for 224.64 228.84
immediate use being deposits pledged with bank as margin money.

Less : Amount reflected under Other Bank Balance [Note 11A] 224.64 125.44
Amount reflected under other financial assets - non-current [Note 9A] 103.40

9B. Other financial assets - Current

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
- Security Deposits 6.24 6.24
- Loans to Staff - 0.34
- Earnest Money 107.40 204.62
Total 113.64 211.20
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10. Inventories

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Inventories

Raw Materials, Stores & Spares 1,181.41 1,182.85
Raw Material in Production Department 540.10 615.07
Finished goods 182.17 271.04
Packing Material 9.37 5.84
Loose tools - -
Goods-in-transit - -
Stock-in-trade - -
Others - -
Total 1,913.05 2,074.80

10.1 The inventory includes Non Moving items of Rs 33.75 Lakhs written down by Rs 33.87 Lakhs (Previous Year slow moving of Rs 23.30 Lakhs written down by

Rs 29.67 Lakhs, Non Moving of Rs 42.06 Lakhs written down by Rs 110.53 Lakhs.

10.2 The inventory also includes Rs 14 Lakhs on account of old batteries received against sales reversal written down by Rs 56 Lakhs.

11. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and
cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related items in the balance sheet as

follows:
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Balances with Banks (a+b+c) 1,116.99 1,356.44
PNB Savings Account (a) 0.14 13.69
Other Bank Balances (b) 104.95 711.28
Deposits with Bank (c) 1,011.90 631.47
Cash on hand 1.03 217
Cheques, drafts on hand - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,118.02 1,358.61

Subsidy received from Ministry of Heavy Industries (MHI) under FAME Il Scheme is kept in Saving Bank account and these funds are not available for Normal

Business Operations.

11A. Other Bank Balances

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Bank Deposits pledged with bank as margin money (maturity more than 224.64 125.44

3 months but less than 12 months)

FDR Issued as EMD 82.94 71.08
Total 307.58 196.52

Note : Company is availing fund / non-fund based limits from Punjab National Bank, secured by way of Hypothecation of Raw Material, Stock in process,
finished goods and book debts and further collateraly secured by first charge over fixed and movable Capital Assets of the Company.

12. Other assets - Current

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Advance against expenses to employees 1.12 1.58
Deposit against GST Appeal 23.84 23.84
Prepaid expenses 11.32 10.45
Other Advances 18.89 10.03
Advances to Vendors 10.34 12.83
GST Adjustable 571.05 210.48
GST on Advances Received 87.44 49.98
Total 724.00 319.19
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13. Current tax assets and liabilities

(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Current tax assets

Benefit of tax losses to be carried back to recover taxes paid in prior periods

Advance Payment of taxes 457.68 285.47
457.68 285.47

Current tax liabilities - -
Income tax payable 18.40 18.40
18.40 18.40

Current tax Assets / (Liabilities) 439.28 267.07

14. Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Equity share capital 1,225.00 1,225.00
Total 1,225.00 1,225.00
Authorised Share capital :
1,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each (as at March 31, 2024 : 1,50,00,000 1,500.00 1,500.00
Issued and subscribed capital comprises :
1,22,50,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each 1,225.00 1,225.00
(as at March 31, 2024 : 1,22,50,000)

1,225.00 1,225.00

14.1 Movement during the period

For the year ended March 31, 2024

For the year ended March 31, 202

Particulars Number of Share capital Number of Share capital
shares (Amount) shares (Amount)
Balance at the start of the period 1,22,50,000 1,225.00 1,22,50,000 1,225.00
Movements - - - -
Balance at the end of the period 1,22,50,000 1,225.00 1,22,50,000 1,225.00

Fully paid equity shares, which have a par value of Rs.10, carry one vote per share and carry a right to dividends.

14.2 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares.

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Number of % holding in the Number of % holding in the
shares class of shares shares class of shares

Equity shares :

Government of India 62,47,500 51% 62,47,500 51%

RIICO, JAIPUR 60,02,500 49% 60,02,500 49%

Total 1,22,50,000 100% 1,22,50,000 100%
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14.3 Details of shares held by the promoters.

Shares held by Promoter at the end of the year

% of Change during

Promoter Name

No. of shares

% of total shares

the year

Government of India 62,47,500 51% -
RIICO, JAIPUR 60,02,500 49% -
14.4 Details of shares For Preceding Five Years
Particulars 31/03/2023|31/03/2022|31/03/2021|31/03/2020(31/03/2019

Number of Equity Shares Allotted For Contracts without payment received in cash -

Number of Equity Shares issue as Bonus Share

Number of Equity Shares Bought Back

15. Other Equity

Refer Statement of Changes in Equity for detailed movement in Equity balance.

Current Year
Particulars General Reserves Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at March 31, 2023 4,973.45 87.09 5,060.54
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year - 316.14 316.14
Add: Other Comprehensive Income - (40.64) (40.64)
Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings 300.00 - 300.00
Add: Transfer from General Reserves - (300.00) (300.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 5,273.45 62.59 5,336.04

Previous Year
Particulars General Reserves Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at March 31, 2022 5,973.45 95.94 6,069.39
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the year - (1,006.06) (1,006.06)
Add: Other Comprehensive Income - (2.79) (2.79)
Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings (1,000.00) - (1,000.00)
Add: Transfer from General Reserves - 1,000.00 1,000.00
Balance as at March 31, 2023 4,973.45 87.09 5,060.54

16. Other financial liabilities - Current

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
(a) Earnest Money 40.03 36.58
(b) Retention money 20.96 20.96
(c) Security Deposit 97.64 104.40
(d) Employee Benefits Payable 84.29 109.57
(e) Others 111.65 96.09
(f) Reimbursement to Staff against expenses 18.40 77.27
Total 372.97 444.87

17. Provisions

17A. Provisions - Non current

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Employee benefits 292.22 284.74
Total 292.22 284.74
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17B. Provisions - Current

(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Employee benefits 879.67 1,085.23
Provision for Warranty 50.00 50.00
Total 929.67 1,135.23

17.1 Provision for employee benefits includes provision for Gratuity, Leave Encashment, Half Pay Leave & liability for Post Retirement Medical Scheme.

The above are recognised as per the report provided by actuary.

17.2 Warranty is provided for Goods as well as for services to customers. The Company provides provision for warranty expenses in accordance with INDAS 37.

18. Other liabilities
18A. Other non-current liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
-Deferred Grant Related to asset 17.09 18.15
-Deferred Revenue 241.86 246.18
Total 258.95 264.33

18B. Other current liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Advance from customers

From Related Parties 42.39 178.78

From Others 1,674.12 2,529.68
-Deferred Grant Related to income 12.87 12.87
-Deferred Grant Related to asset 1.07 1.07
-Interest payable under Consolidated Fund of India 0.13 13.69
-Deferred revenue 54.25 30.99
-Statutory dues 168.53 196.95

Total 1,953.36 2,964.03

18.1 Deferred Grant related to Income will be recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the

related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

18.2 Deferred Grant related to Assets is recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

19A. Trade payables - Non Current

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

From Related Parties

From Others

-Total Outstanding dues of creditors of micro and small enterprises

-Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

48.52

7.59

Total

48.52

7.59

19B. Trade payables - Current

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

From Related Parties

From Others

-Total Outstanding dues of creditors of micro and small enterprises 2,214.10 2,979.81
-Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 12,161.79 11,993.06
Total 14,375.89 14,972.87

19.1 The above outstanding amountincludes Rs 3229.89 Lakhs due to M/s Suntech Industries because of non fulfillment of contractual obligations The Party
has already lost two cases in lower court in respect of Company's customers M/s Pradeshik Cooperative Dairy Federation(PCDF) Uttar Pradesh and
M/s UPNEDA. In the case of PCDF on 29.09.2023 Hon’ble High Court, Jaipur appointed an arbitrator and to decide all issues arising for consideration in
the proceeding of arbitration. In the case of UPNEDA, S.B. Civil arbitration application has been filed before Hon'ble High Court, Jaipur by M/s Suntech
Industries. Vide order dated 17.11.2023 passed by the Hon’ble Rajasthan High Court Bench, Jaipur in S.B. Arbitration Application No. 133/2021,
appointed Sole Arbitrator in the matter.
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Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024

(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than | 6 Months | 1 Year to 2 Year to | More than Total
6 Months to 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 3 Years
(i) MSME 918.92 239.28 74.33 113.65 867.92 2,214.10
(i) Others 2,532.00 294.74 249.21 2,124.88 3,628.06 8,828.89
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - 3,332.90 3.332.90
Total 3,450.92 534.02 323.54 2,238.53 7,828.88 |14,375.89
Trade Payables ageing schedule as on March 31, 2023
. Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than | 6 Months 1 Year to 2 Year to | More than Total
6 Months to 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 3 Years
() MSME 1,514.49 103.35 237.67 112.04 1,012.26 2,979.81
(i) Others 2,585.22 332.81 1,949.87 1,486.67 1,795.92 8,150.49
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Dues - Others - - 6.25 - 3,836.32 3,842.57
Total 4,099.71 436.16 2,193.79 1,598.71 6,644.50 |14,972.87

20 Contingent liabilities, Contingent assets and Commitments
20.1 Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

(a) Guarantees given by bankers on behalf of the company. 1,197.36 3,693.08

(b) Claims against the company not acknowledges as debts. 8,017.94 4,047.43

(c) GST show cause notice-pending with GST Appelette Tribunal 238.46 238.46
(Stay against demand taken from High Court)

(d) Service Tax Show cause notices/Demand raised by Excise & Service 3.82 3.82
Tax Department (2009-10)

20.1.1:- 20.1.1 Claims against the company not acknowledge as debts include claim by M/s Suntech Industries, M/s Uttam Prakash, M/s Magenta Power
PvtLtd., M/s KBS Certification services Pvt Ltd. and Ex-Employees of the Company for which litigation is pending in court of law.

Contingent Liabilities are recognised when a possible obligation arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity, One of the MSME Vendors,
M/s Gansum Global Solutions India Private Limited having outstanding amount of Rs. 14.75 Lakhs has claimed interest as per MSMED Act, 2006
and filed an application before Hon’ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh at Amaravati. On 26.12.2022 The Hon’ble High Court passed the order
directed to the petitioner to prefer an appeal under sec 34 of the Arbitration Act at Arbitration court at Jaipur. Now the matter is pending before
Commercial Court, Jaipur. As per the management, reliable estimates of the interest obligation cannot be made, Hence, the same has not been
disclosed as Contingent Liability.

20.1.3:-M/s KBS Certification Services Pvt. Ltd has filed S.B. Arbitration Application under Section 11(6) of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act 1996
before Hon’ble High Court, Jaipur for appointment of sole arbitrator in the matter. Hon’ble High Court vide its order dated 09.02.2024 has appointed
sole arbitrator in S.B. Arbitration Application No. 31/2023.

20.1.2:-

20.1.3:-

20.2 Contingent assets

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Insurance Claims lodged but not approved/settled - 4.64
Total - 4.64

20.3 Commitments

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided 6,197.17 14,624.36

for including service and maintenance contracts.

Total 6,197.17 14,624.36
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

21. Revenue from operations

The following is details of the Company's revenue for the period from continuing operations

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023
(a) Sales
Export 6,554.88 304.95
Domestic 8,962.57 8,155.71
(b) Sale of Services - -
Services Maintenance and installation Charges 3,060.61 3,536.65
(c) Other operating revenues
Grantin aid - 12.87
Insurance Receipts 5.77 4.86
Carriage Receipts 4.17 3.49
Total 18,588.00 12,018.53

21.1 Grantin aid includes grant related to income amounting to Rs Nil in current year (previous year Rs 12.87 Lakhs) in which is recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
21.2 Revenue disaggregation as has been included in segmentinformation (Refer note 34).
21.3 The aggregate value of transaction price allocated to unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) performance obligations is Rs. 296.11 Lakhs of which 18.32% is
expected to be recognised next year.No consideration from contracts with customers is excluded from the amount mentioned above.

Changes in Deferred Revenue for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows :

Balances at the beginning of the year 27717
Revenue recognised during the year (170.50)
Addition during the year 189.44
Balance at the end of the year 296.11

22. Other Income
a) Interest Income

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023
Bank Deposits 53.58 25.24
Others 52.87 72.89
Total (a) 106.45 98.13

b) Other Non-Operating Income

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023
Amortisation of Government Grant* 1.07 1.07
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (net) 71.23 0.00
Others (aggregate of immaterial items) 34.53 19.24
Duty Drawback on Exports 120.26 -
Total (b) 227.09 20.31
Total (a+b) 333.54 118.44

*Amortisation of Grant of Rs. 1.06 Lakhs ( Rs. 1.06 Lakhs in Previous Year ) is amortisation of grant related to assets which is recognised in profit or loss on a

systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.
23. Cost of material consumed

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31, 2023

Cost of material Consumed

Opening stock 1,803.76 1,669.79
Add: Purchase of raw material 10,126.90 6,307.38

11,930.66 7,977.17
Less: Closing stock 1,730.88 1,803.76
Total 10,199.78 6,173.41
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

23A. Details of material consumed

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31, 2023

(a) Details of Raw Materials consumed

Solar Energy Equipments

-Solar Cells 230.72 197.79
-Others 6,276.46 2,221.29
Electronic Milk Analysers 3,659.68 3,724.06
Consumables & packing materials 32.92 30.27
Total 10,199.78 6,173.41
(b) Value of Imported and indigenous material consumed

Imported 381.04 458.84
Indigenous 9,818.74 5,714.57
Total 10,199.78 6,173.41

24. Change in inventories of finished goods

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31, 2023

Increase (-) / Decrease (+) in Stock

Opening Stock

Finished goods 271.04 455.40
271.04 455.40

Less: Closing stock
Finished goods 182.17 271.04
182.17 271.04
Change in inventories of Finished goods 88.87 184.36
Total 88.87 184.36

25. Employee benefits expense

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023
Salaries and Wages 2,883.06 2,935.91
Contribution to provident and other funds 293.26 338.98

Staff Welfare Expenses 41.56 39.26
Provision for Medical expenses 38.73 29.31

Total 3,256.61 3,343.46

26. Finance costs

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023
Interest costs 0.96 11.96

Bank Charges 52.29 27.91

Bank Guarantee Commission 30.07 46.70

Total 83.32 86.57

27. Depreciation, impairment and amortisation expense

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31, 2023

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment pertaining to continuing

continuing operations

operations 191.04 192.64
Impairment loss of Property, Plant and Equipments - -
Less : Depreciation of earlier year written off - -
Amortisation of intangible assets - -
Total depreciation, impairment and amortisation pertaining to 191.04 192.64
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

28. Other expenses

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023
Other Expenses
Power & fuel 40.62 37.77
Repair & Maintenance

- Plant & machinery 5.30 7.07

- Building 5.65 9.56

- Others 4.72 4.84
Testing & other expenses 32.33 3.26
Component & prototype for R&D 4.51 5.48
Rent 14.75 17.00
Rates & taxes 16.50 18.36
Printing & stationery 11.75 11.54
Travelling & conveyance 92.77 134.07
Postage & communication expenses 16.43 16.82
Legal & professional fee 55.31 18.74
Security, cleaning & other expenses 77.71 74.45
Payment to Auditors 2.62 3.09
Insurance charges 7.78 5.76
Allowances for Doubtful Debts 100.93 204.78
Advertising & business promotion 16.77 21.58
Forwarding expenses 438.09 91.12
Warranty Obligation 59.05 59.88
Royalty, Discount & commission 189.39 137.12
Service, maintenance & installation charges 3,415.40 2,878.72
Foreign exchange fluctutation (net) - 16.79
Miscellaneous expenses 56.55 4217
Bad debts / Subsidy receivable written-off - 6.48
Loss on Written off of assets 0.11 -
Total 4,665.04 3,826.45

28.1 Details of payment to Auditors

Payments to Auditors Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023
(a) Statutory audit fee 1.25 1.25
(b) Tax audit fee 0.70 0.60
(c) Certification work 0.42 0.99
(d) Out of pocket expenses 0.25 0.25
Total 2.62 3.09

28.2 Miscellaneous expenses includes Director's Sitting fees of Rs.0.60 Lakh (Previous year Rs. 1.40 Lakh) and Board Meeting expenses of Rs. 0.07 Lakh
(Previous year Rs. 0.09 Lakh)
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29. Income taxes relating to continuing operations
29.1 Income tax recognised in profit or loss

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31, 2023

Current tax

In respect of the current period

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier year

Provision Reversal

In respect of the Previous period

Deferred tax

to continuing operations

In respect of the current period (120.74) (663.86)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier year - -

(120.74) (663.86)
Total income tax expense recognised in the current period relating (120.74) (663.86)

29.2 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31, 2023

Deferred Tax

items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation 16.71 1.14
Total 16.71 1.14
Bifurcation of the income tax recognised in other 16.71 1.14

30. Earnings per share

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31, 2023

Rs. per share

Rs. per share

From Continuing operations

Profit / (Loss) after tax 316.14 (1,006.06)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of basic EPS 122.50 122.50
Basic earnings per share (one equity share of Rs. 10/- each) (in Rs.) 2.58 (8.21)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculation of diluted EPS 122.50 122.50
Diluted earnings per share (one equity share of Rs. 10/- each) (in Rs.) 2.58 (8.21)

From Continuing operations

Rs. per share

Rs. per share

Basic earnings per share (in Rs.)

2.58

(8.21)

Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.)

2.58

(8.21)

30.1 Basic Earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows :

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023
Profit / (Loss) for the period attributable to owners of the Company (A) 316.14 (1006.06)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic 122.50 122.50
earnings per share (B)

Basic Earnings per share (A/B) 2.58 (8.21)
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30.2 Diluted earnings per share

The earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share are as follows.
The weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share reconciles to the weighted average
number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows :

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 | Year ended March 31, 2023
Earnings used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 316.14 (1,006.06)
Earnings used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share (A) 316.14 (1,006.06)
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of 122.50 122.50

basic earnings per share

Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of 122.50 122.50
diluted earnings per share (B)

Diluted earnings per share (A/B) (in Rs.) 2.58 (8.21)

31. Employee benefit plans
31.1 Defined contribution plans

The Company contributes to defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees of its Company maintained

at Employee Provident Fund Office, Govt. of India.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss account of Rs. 221.88 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 224.17 Lakhs).

31.2 Defined benefit plans

The employee gratuity fund scheme is managed by a policy, administered by Life Insurance Corporation of India through approved
gratuity trust fund. The present value of obligation is determined based on Acturial Valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method
to assess the plan"s liabilities including those related to retirement, resignation and death-in-service benefits.

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability (denominated in Indian Rupee) is calculated using a discount rate
which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. Since
investment is with insurance company ( LIC ), assets are considered to be secured

Interest risk
the return on the plan's debtinvestments.

Adecrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in

Longevity risk

increase the plan's liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of
plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows.

Particulars Valuation as at

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Discount rate (s) 7.20% 7.44%
Rate (s) of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Rate of Employee Turnover 3.00% 3.00%
Expected Return on Plan Assets 7.20% 7.44%

Mortality rates* (During Employment)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) (urban)

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14) (urban)

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is

as follows.
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation (1,486.46) (1,479.35)
Fair value of plan assets 655.62 783.02
Funded status (830.84) (696.33)
Restrictions on asset recognised
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation (830.84) (696.33)




Notes forming part of the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 ( Contd.)

Net Interest Cost for Current Period are as follows

(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Present value of Benefit Obligation at the Period 1,479.35 1,674.27
Fair value of plan assets at the Beginning of the Period (783.02) (1,062.47)
Net Liability/(Assets) at the Beginning 696.33 611.80
Interest Cost 110.06 116.86
(Interest Income) (58.26) (74.16)
Net Interest Cost for Current Period 51.80 42.70

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Current Per

iod are as follows

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Current Service Cost 31.43 37.90
Net Interest Cost 51.80 42.70
Past Service Cost - -
Expenses Recognized 83.23 80.60

Expenses Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)/for Current Period are as follows

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Obligation For the Period 51.33 (6.67)
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income 6.02 10.60
Change in Asset Ceiling - -
Net (Income)/Expense For the Period Recognized in OCI 57.35 3.93

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as

follows

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation 1,479.35 1,674.27
Interest cost 110.06 116.86
Current service cost 31.43 37.90
Past Service Cost - -
Remeasurement (gains)/losses : - -
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 16.39 (33.49)
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments 34.95 26.82
Benefits paid from the Fund (185.72) (343.01)
Closing defined benefit obligation 1,486.46 1,479.35

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening fair value of plan assets 783.02 1,062.47
Interest income 58.26 74.16
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (6.02) (10.60)
Contributions from the employer 6.08 -
Benefits paid from the Fund (185.72) (343.01)
Closing fair value of plan assets 655.62 783.02
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Balance Sheet Reconciliation

(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Opening Net Liability 696.33 611.80
Expenses Recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss 83.23 80.60
Expenses Recognized in OCI 57.36 3.93
Net Liability/(Asset) Tranfer In - -
Net Liability/(Asset) Transfer Out - -
Net Effect of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
(Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) (6.08) -
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 830.84 696.33
Category of Assets
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Insurance Fund 655.62 783.02
Net Liability/(Asset) Recognized in the Balance Sheet 655.62 783.02

Other Details

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
No. of Active Members 197 208
Per Month Salary For Active Members 152.56 151.91
Weighted Average Duration of the Projected Benefit Obligation - 6
Average Expected Future Service - 10
Projected Benefit Obligation (PBO) 1,486.46 1,479.35
Prescribed Contribution for Next Year (12 Months) 152.56 151.91

Net Interest Cost for Next Year are as follows

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Present value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Period 1,486.46 1,479.36
Fair value of plan assets at the End of the Period (655.62) (783.02)
Net Liability/(Assets) at the End of the Period 830.84 696.33
Interest cost 107.03 110.06
(Interest Income) (47.21) (58.26)
Net Interest Cost for Next Period 59.82 51.80

Expenses Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss for Next Period

are as follows

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Current Service Cost 31.37 31.43
Net Interest Cost 59.82 51.81
Expenses Recognized 91.19 83.24

Maturity Analysis of Projected Benefit Obligation : From the Fund

Particulars

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Projected Benefits Payable in Future Years from the Date of Reporting

1st Following Year 253.40 198.17
2nd Following Year 205.42 185.62
3rd Following Year 199.19 248.59
4th Following Year 215.96 188.78
5th Following Year 137.03 202.57
Sum of Years 6 to 10 557.44 582.67
Sum of Years 11 and above 731.85 747.38
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity Analysis

Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Projected Benefits Obligation on Current Assumptions 1,486.46 1,479.35
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Discounting (65.55) (62.28)
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Discounting 73.25 75.05
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase 38.91 39.31
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Salary Increase (38.17) (39.59)
Delta Effect of +1% Change in Rate of Employee Turnover 13.88 14.66
Delta Effect of -1% Change in Rate of Employee Increase (15.30) (16.12)

32. Financial Instruments
32.1 Capital Management

Equity share capital and other equity are considered for the purpose of Company’s capital management.

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to shareholders. The
capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgement of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a focus on total equity so
as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence.

The management and the Board of Directors monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company
may take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure.

32.2 Categories of financial instruments and Fair Values

A.) The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments by class are as follows:

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars - - . -

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
Financial assets 16,593.50 16,593.50 18,407.96 18,407.96
Financial assets at amortised cost :
Non Current
Trade receivables 102.92 102.92 149.02 149.02
Other Financial Assets 78.76 78.76 174.10 174.10
Current
Trade receivables 15,180.16 15,180.16 16,515.03 16,515.03
Cash and cash equivalents 1,118.02 1,118.02 1,358.61 1,358.61
Other financial assets 113.64 113.64 211.20 211.20
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost : 14,797.38 14,797.38 15,425.33 15,425.33
Non Current
Trade Payables 48.52 48.52 7.59 7.59
Borrowings - - - -
Current
Trade Payables 14,375.89 14,375.89 14,972.87 14,972.87
Others financial liabilities 372.97 372.97 444 .87 444.87

The Company has disclosed financial instruments such as cash and cash equivalents, current trade receivables, current trade payables and

other current financial assets/liabilities at carrying value because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of the fair values

due to their short term nature.
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

B.) FAIRVALUE HIERARCHY

Except for cash and cash equivalents, current trade receivables, current trade payables and other current financial assets/liabilities
disclosed at carrying value, all other financial assets /liabilities are fair valued using level 3 hierarchy.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 3 categories above have been determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

32.3 Financial risk management objectives

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The
Company’s senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and governing the Company’s risk management framework.
Risk Management framework is constantly updated for new and emerging risks emanating from business expansion and interests. Risk
Management framework of the company encompasses practices relating to identification, assessment, monitoring and mitigation of various
risks to key business objective. Risk management practices of the company seek to sustain and enhance the long-term competitive
advantage of the company. Core values and ethics of the company provide the platform for its risk management practices. This system

provides a holistic view of the business, wherein risks are identified in a structured manner.
Risk Management aims to ensure timely and prudent decisions to:

- Maximise positive impacts of opportunities.

- Minimise negative impacts of risks.

- Convertrisks into opportunities.

A.) Marketrisk management

The company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates (see note A(i) below) and

interest rates (see note A(ii) below).
There has been no change to the company's exposure to market risks or the manner in which these risks are managed and measured.
A.)(i) Foreign currency risk management

The Company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impact the Company’s exports revenue and imports of raw

material and property, plantand equipment.
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures like US Dollar and Euro.

As at 31st March, 2024, the foreign currency exposure to the Company on holding financial liabilities (trade payables) amounted
to Rs. 58 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. 186.61 Lakhs) and financial assets (trade receivables) amounted to NIL (March 31, 2023:
Rs. 258 Lakhs).

A.)(i)(a) Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

A 5% strengthening of the INR against key currencies to which the Company is exposed would have led to approximately an additional
Rs. 327 Lakhs gain in the Statement of Profit and Loss (2022-23: Rs. 8.30. Lakhs gain). A5% weakening of the INR against these currencies

would have led to an equal but opposite effect.
A.)(ii) Interest rate risk management

There is no outstanding Credit balance of Cash Credit/Overdraft. Thus the Company has no exposure to changes in interest rates.
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
B.) Creditrisk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the company. The
company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. The company mostly transacts with government entities
reducing the risk of default on contractual obligations. The company's exposure is continuously monitored.

The credit limits are fixed in respect of individual customers that are approved by Head of Marketing Department . These limits are checked
before orders are accepted from the customers. Also there is a system of periodic review of credit limits.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31st March, 2024 & 31st March, 2023 is the carrying value of each class of financial
assets.

The company is making provisions on trade receivables based on Simplified Approach of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model. The Company
had followed the practice of creating the provision for doubtful debts @10% for outstanding of more than 3 years and upto 4 years, @ 20% for
outstanding of more than 4 years and upto 5 years and @30% for outstanding of more than 5 years thereby totaling to Rs. 100.93 Lakhs.
The above principle is based on the assumptions of prudence; consistency in recovery of debtors as per past trends where recovery has
been delayed but debts has always remained good.

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23

Opening Balance 2,428.81 2,224.03
Changes in loss allowance :

Additional Provision 100.93 204.78

Closing Balance 2,529.74 2,428.81

C.) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach
in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In
doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions. Management regularly monitors the position of cash and cash
equivalents vis-a-vis projections. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities including debt financing plans
and maintenance of Balance Sheet liquidity ratios are considered while reviewing the liquidity position.

Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to service the financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and by having access to funding through fund based limitin Bank Accounts.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities based on estimated flows along with its carrying value
as atthe Balance Sheet date.

Particulars Carrying Amount| Payable within 1 year| 1-2 years |More than 2 years Total

As at March 31, 2024

Trade Payables* 14,424 .41 3,984.94 372.06 10,067.41 14,424,41
Other financial Liabilities 372.97 372.97 - - 372.97
Total 14,797.38 4,357.91 372.06 10,067.41 14,797.38
As at March 31, 2023

Trade Payables* 14,980.46 4,535.87 2,201.38 8,243.21 14,980.46
Other financial Liabilities 444.87 444.87 - - 444 .87
Total 15,425.33 4,980.74 2,201.38 8,243.21 15,425.33

* Trade Payable includes Rs. 9593.19 Lakhs as at March 31, 2024 (Rs. 9602.02 Lakhs as at March 31, 2023) which is payable to the

contractor only when the payment is received from customer.
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

33. Related Party Disclosures
(a) Name of the Related Parties and Description of Relationship:
As at March 31, 2024

Nature of Relationship Name of Entity Abbreviation used

Control Government of India GOl

Significant Influence RIICO RICO

Key Management Personnel Shri Rakesh Chopra MD
Shri Subhash Agrawal CFO
Shri Amit Kumar Jain (0K

As at March 31, 2023

Name of Entity Abbreviation used

Control Government of India GOl

Significant Influence RIICO RICO

Key Management Personnel Shri Rakesh Chopra MD
Shri Subhash Agrawal CFO
Shri Amit Kumar Jain CSs

33 (b) Transactions/ balances with above mentioned related parties (mentioned in note 33(a) above)
As at Mar 31, 2024

Particulars GOl RIICO MD CFO CS Total
Trade Receivable 1,284.85 793.89 - - - 2,078.74
Security Deposit - 0.40 - - - 0.40
Advances Received - 42.39 - - - 42.39
Transactions
Sale of Services under Drone Project - 1,116.62 - - - 1,116.62
Remuneration - - 46.67 39.99 15.35 102.01

As at Mar 31, 2023

Particulars GOl RIICO MD CFO CS Total
Trade Receivable 1,284.85 635.34 - - - 1,920.19
Security Deposit - 0.40 - - - 0.40
Advances Received - 178.78 - - - 178.78
Transactions
Sale of Services under Drone Project - 734.23 - - - 734.23
Remuneration - - 42.60 36.74 14.09 93.43
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

34. Segment Reporting

In Compliance of Ind AS 108 on “Segment Reporting”, the required information is as under:
Business Segments: - The Company has adopted following business segments as its reportable segment.

1. Renewable Energy
2. Electronic

Geographical Segment has been considered for secondary Segments Reporting by treating sales revenue in India and foreign countries
as separate geographical segments.
() Primary - Business Segments :

Renewable Energy Electronic Total

Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Revenue
External 10,492.30 4,281.59 8,095.70 7,736.94 18,588.00 12,018.53
Inter-Segment - - - - - -
Segment Revenue 10,492.30 4,281.59 8,095.70 7,736.94 18,588.00 12,018.53
Total Revenue
Segment results 1,125.51 (905.50) (711.76) (775.98) 413.75 (1,681.48)
Interest income (+) 106.45 98.13
Interest expenditure (-) 83.32 86.57
Tax Expense (-) 120.74 (663.86)
Net Profit / (Loss) 316.14 (1,006.06)
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Segment assets 16,902.33 10,463.47 4,953.20 9,988.23 21,855.53 20,451.70
Unallocated Assets 2,937.09 5,907.50
Total assets 24,792.62 26,359.20
Segment liabilities 11,366.27 12,589.36 4,165.11 6,375.72 15,531.38 18,965.08
Unallocated Liabilities 9,261.24 7,394.12
Total liabilities 24,792.62 26,359.20
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Capital Expenditure - - 16.72 8.90 16.72 8.90
for the year
Depreciation for the 142.06 144.54 48.98 48.10 191.04 192.64
year
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(Il) Secondary - Geographical Segments :

(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

India Outside India
Particulars Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue 12,033.12 11,713.58 6,554.88 304.95
Carrying Amount of Segment Assets 21,855.53 20,451.70 - -
Capital Expenditure/Additions to Fixed Assets 16.72 8.90 - -

35. Other notes annexed to and forming parts of the accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024

A. CIF value of imports

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Raw material & Components 357.26 450.73
Total 357.26 450.73

B. Expenditure in foreign currency

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2024 Year ended March 31, 2023
Royalty 28.78 57.89
Travelling Expenses 1.60 -
Total 30.38 57.89

C. Earning in foreign exchange on FOB value

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2024

Year ended March 31, 2023

Export Sales

6,554.88

304.95

Total

6,554.88

304.95

D.(i) Corporate Social Responsibility (2023-24)

- Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year - Rs. Nil

- Amount spent during the year ;

Nature of Work

In cash Yet to be paid in cash

Total

Construction / Acquisition of any asset

On purpose other than above

D.(ii) Corporate Social Responsibility (2022-23)

- Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year - Rs. Nil

- Amount spent during the year ;

Nature of Work

In cash Yet to be paid in cash

Total

Construction / Acquisition of any asset

On purpose other than above

E. Expenditure on Research and Development

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Revenue

336.09

417.36

Capital

Total 336.09

417.36
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(All amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

F. Disclosures under Section 22 of the MICRO, SMALL & MEDIUM Enterprises

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

i) The Principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of accounting year.*

2,214.10

2,979.81

ii) The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier as at the end of accounting year.

iii) The amount of interest paid in terms of section 16, alongwith the amount of the payment
made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year.

iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under the Act.

v) The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid at the end of the
accounting year.

vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises
for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Act.

Total

2,214.10

2,979.81

*Mainly comprising of outstanding which is not payable due to contractual terms and conditions.

Dues to micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of intimation received
from the “Suppliers” regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises DevelopmentAct, 2006.

G. Provision(s)/Adjustment(s) has not been made in the accounts for:

(a) Additional liabilities, if any, in respect of pending Indirect taxes and Income-tax assessment, being unascertained and liabilities which

may arise in future due to mismatching of input tax credit.

(b) Claims pending for settlement in court of law, being unascertained.

H. Expenditure on Technical Literature, Software, Electronic Media Stores, Maintenance, Printing & Stationery and Consumable stores are

charged to profit & loss account treating them as consumed in the year of purchases.

I. Sales does notinclude sales of spares for which service job reports from field has been received after closing of the financial year.

J. Previous years comparative figures have been regrouped wherever necessary.

36. Additional Regulatory Information in terms of MCA notification dated 24/03/2021:

36.1 Title deeds ofimmovable property not held in name of company-Under Property, Plant and Equipment

There is no such case where the company does not hold immovable property in its own name, hence no disclosure required.

36.2 Disclosure regarding fair value of Investment Property

The company does not hold any investment property in its books, hence no disclosure required.

36.3 Disclosure in case of Revaluation of property, plant and equipment

During the year the company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment, hence no disclosure is required.

36.4 Disclosure in relation to Revaluation of Intangible Assets.

During the year the company has not revalued any of its intangible assets, hence no disclosure is required.
36.5 Disclosure in relation to Loans and advances to promoters, directors, key managerial persons (KMP) & related parties.

The company has not granted any loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMP’s and the related parties that are repayable

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
36.6 Disclosure in relation to Capital Work in Progress.

There is no capital work in progress as on balance sheet date.
36.7 Disclosure in relation to Intangible asset under development.

The company does not have any intangible assets under development.




36.8 Disclosure in relation to Benami property held

(Al amounts Rs.in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

36.9 Disclosure in relation to borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets:
Company is availing fund / non-fund based limits from Punjab National Bank, secured by way of Hypothecation of Raw Material,
Stock in process, finished goods and book debts. Differences are there between submitted figures to the bank and actual in
monthly/quarterly reports due to time lag in adjustments and Balance Sheet adjustments carried out at year end.
36.10 Disclosure regarding Wilful Defaulter
The company has not been categorized as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution during the year.
36.11 Relationship with Struck off Companies-General disclosure
The company has no transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Act, or under section 560 of the companies
Act, 1956.
36.12 Disclosure regarding delay in registration of charges or satisfaction with ROC
There is no charge or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond statutory period.
36.13 Disclosure regarding Compliance with no. of layers of companies
This clause is not applicable to the company.
36.14 Disclosure of Ratios :-
Year Year
S.No. Particulars Numerator Denominator M::‘::gt Mg?:hegt Variance
2024 2023
(a) | Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.12 1.07 4.67%
(b) | Debt-Equity Ratio Long Term Debt Shareholder's Fund + Long - - -
Term Debt
(c) | Debt Service Coverage Ratio EBDITA INT+PRINCIPAL Interest - - -
means only term loan
interest not WC Interest
(d) | Return on Equity Ratio Net Earnings after Tax Shareholder's Equity 4.82% | -16.01% | 130.09%
(e) [ Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Sales Average Stock 5.16 3.03 | 70.30%
() Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio | Credit Sales Accounts Receivable 1.22 0.72 | 69.44%
(g) | Trade Payables Turnover Ratio Credit Purchases Accounts Payable 0.70 042 | 66.67%
(h) | Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue from Operations | Working Capital 8.59 8.43 1.90%
(i) Net Profit Ratio Net Profit after Tax Revenue from Operation 1.70% -8.37% | 120.32%
() Return on Capital employed Earnings before Interest, Capital Employed 7.93% | -25.19% | 131.47%
Tax & Prior Period Item
(k) | Return on Investment Net Profit after Interest, Taxes| Equity Share Capital plus 4.82% | -16.01% | 130.09%
& Preference Dividends Reserves

36.15 Disclosure regarding compliance with approved scheme of arrangements
There is no scheme of arrangement approved in terms of section 230 to 237 of Companies Act, 2013.
36.16. Disclosure regarding Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium.

The company has neither advanced any fund to intermediaries nor has received any fund with the understanding that intermediary
or company shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf

of the company/funding agency or provide any guarantee thereof.

See accompanying notes to the Financial Statements ( 1-36 )
As per our separate report of even date

For Y. Chaturvedi & Co
Chartered Accountants

Sd/-
(FRN. 001912C) ( Anju Goyal )
Sd/- Director
(CA Govind Prasad Sharma) DIN : 10558241
Partner

Membership No. 71893

Place : Jaipur
Date : 06.09.2024
UDIN : 24071893BKEREZ2773

Sd/-
( Amit Kumar Jain )
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Dr. P.N. Sharma)
Managing Director
DIN : 10729529

Sd/-
( Subhash Agrawal )
Chief Financial Officer
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Jafy & ofd # g uRGuRiat ik TRt &1
JROTA IR B agell a1 Fued &1 amem &
TR B |

3.15 fersfrgrarea

el garell # oF—<d ofFed @ dRg W
yaferd A &) W o ey oa 81 faceh
qeTll % Jeaiia Aifad gREURRT iR 1l
3 Ruifdm fafyr w (w1 srfers qa1
HHTI &R1 R AT fham SIrem & |

Aifed Fei & e IT WHFRY TR ST~ 8+
qret faferTar SfeaRT & am—eTf faaRor § Aregar <1
STl 7, Rarr 39 W1 & S faeh 9g1 SuRi W)
ST AT & FHRITSTE & W9 | HHT ST &, S
A Eh gREUREAT & srferrgor a1 fomtor & forg
R 81 & S IRFURR @) o & wu o
St faa ST 2 |

faa= 9a1 | UlcreTie aTa & ded H ITUMET Bl
S aTell IR—HIfS® A]) &I oved & fafdy
faff T R &1 SWRT FR$ <o fhar ST 2|
faeell ga1 & SIR@ Y@ W AT @ TR
R—HAIfe® A&l & ST qe7 T B A DY




3.16

3.17

fafr o= faffe )1 &1 ST RS ATt
foar Smar 2 Sfd Hew W MM @ TE
R—AIfse A&l & SgdTa R 8 dlel &4 AT 81
DI HE B S Hod H R IR ™ AT BTN Bl
HIIAT & JATHY AT Sl © (1, 59 7af &
ST e @™ AT 1 BT OCI AT AH—BIH
fdeRor & Ar=yar <) g €, 99 WR HH: OCI AT
-1 faa=or F o Aregar <1 Sl ®) |

R ST

WRANT I (FETIAT ) BT ARG
$€ TUH 20 & IR a1 ST © | SUH HI 39
¥@l 3R TR WR @R AT =12y S @1 6
TE € I S @R, 59 98 S ATl ol Uga
Rl 2 FoTeTas! wRUTS TaT & & 9§ &I ST+ 2 |
ARBR] QT Pl T T ATA el 4l Il oId
d® f g8 3Ifud e 7 & & du I
ST Trdl BT uTeld BT IR Sra™ by
ST | TRBRI SIS B Av—sT fJaRor
FIRYT AR TR I AR & IR A=l &
STl &, FoTaH Uil 3 Hafed anTdl & &g &
wﬁusulddlﬁlwﬂmlﬂ%ﬁ?ﬁmwm
& 7| fRY wU 9, WeN geE i)
I ord I8 & f6 dudl IR—are aReuff
P TRIGHT, FATOT HRAT AT ST AU HRAT
(2T, I8 oIl U= H AR oRd & HY H
AT & ST 2 SR e AUl & SudR
g IR gaRed iR daHdTd MR W
AT fqavoT § wHiaRa faar Srar g |

ast

PUAT A B ARA H € IE ATheAd PR ol &
e e Ul & A1 el | PIg 3rde UST 8, AT L,
gfe I8 fHdl ggam T8 uREURT & SUANT &l
Ufdwdl @ 9 § Udh ¥ srafdy & forv fafaa
B BT ARNPR AT 2 |

UgaR s BT H hu=T

SUINRT BT ARHR (ROU) URFURTIT BT a8 AT
LT & RH H APl UET TCHh & o dTa
# W g1 UIcaTed, afe dI B, geia Argdr o
ST 8 | ROU Ui @f a1€ # T § 3 ferd
e 3R &fd g1, afe ®Ig &, gerd o1
P S ® | ROU aRFURMN &1 <IvTd § A=l
TS TET QTR @l 71T, TR Teel oTd 3R
Tl URY dRIG TR 7 S99 8ol fhy 70 ggr
YT IS & | ROU ORI &7 Heder o1
R W) U ¥ Iafdy iR fafifed uReufal &
3T QUM Sira # | 1 1 &9 81, S9 W
TT—cllg- & MR TR fbar Srdr 2 | ug &) eafey

I @l iR uRRefoal &R faar o feriRa
P A B SN AR fAded BT WA R AT
At faded &1 AT 9 &)1 & forv anfefe
AT UaT DRl 8 | Seepliere Ul 3R ¥ Jod
P AR -z & AR R AI—8I B
fqa=or # enfiyet frar STar g |

BT U B T Bl TRIG W fhU S drel U
& YA & IAAH Hed IR 0T fhY Y ger
Sl BT AT <o B U Ugl <l ®
AR gt YA (S {6 i a1 e} R
ik 181 B1d ©) enfie =81 8 2, o 89 erafer
H 2 ® w9 H U Ol § T 7 ey S
21U @ TR R 99 <1 Ugfd BT ST
BB YTl SIal © | UST 1l &f 91g § <1t
®I gfg BT A & oIy IR 1T 2 iR fhy MY
TET YA & foIQ Terar SIrar 8 | 92 9 ogaver |
TR AT Ug DI AA & oAl H gRac g
R Ygl STl @ g8+ IrR1 A1 gAA0ET @l S
2| U QIO & UM BT ROU IR&ufral &
T H AR foar ST 7 |

3.18 WfavER3Ma

g YR HA AT B TUET HU b gfdac
RRYRD] & oY <7 A & foy &R & 918 g
AT BT AT B SRIF IHIAT Sfdac! TRRT B
qIRT aNad A= I i & &1 Sl 2 |
Iy & IRM IR FRa W1 s@EfeRl & forg
IR Sfdad] IR B WIRT a1 Bl
I IRRT oAl Tl & forv wwrifd e
ST &, AT Sfady IRRT & wuiaRvT & 7T,
g g sfaad! IRRT B G B ged e
g, et § 9 gRad= & a7 |

9T IRR M P UET & eI 4,
3fdadl IRYRDT B forv RweR e@f & forw
T oM 3R 37afd & SR THRIT UART BT AR
T XTI AT g |Tfad gfdad! IRRI &
guTal & forw TArRNTT fham SIar 2 |

3.19 faghrss foru enfa iR-—=er wufen

R—=re] uRufrat & fas & forg fog < 18
gReufal & wg # frar omar 8, afe
I g8 RN &I WU 3 ] e & aregd
A LA D S T o FRAR STINT & AR 9 |
I8 o il IR AT Sl ® 9 gREufRy sra
gaae Refd & doera 99 & g Suae =@,
BHad S 7t & T S Ot uRsufRy @ fasny
& U M= 3R JImTd © 3R sl Il
D I © | ydee &l fashl & forg ufdag



BT =1feT, T EfThRor &) aRIg | U a9 &
AR ot fIept & S H A1=1aT 9T B Bl SHIG
BT ST AR |

faehl & forg <) ¢ IR—qcfar aReuRry @1 9
Al HeeT fHar SIrem § 3R A &1 ulReres fdan
AT |

et @ forg Tt 718 IR—are) uR¥ulRIl &I S9!
I IR IR IR qou H | QA F anra
ECTEHR 0T B ST 8 3R S Jotd U H AT
H IR [T ST |

3.20 e

YA BT MY AT (S TR AR Fiwd) Bl
I I7afdy # AIar <1 STl © forad faRy @
Bl e dead gRT SrgAlfad fBar Smar g, ar
sifer @i & e H O IWRYURG gRT
SRR fopam ST 8 |

3.21 TR RARIT

g UF | e 3R The FHGST H dpi AR
e BT H IR AF 7S A7 SHA FHH DI ol
URYSGIAT dTell d& ST IR e 8, ST e
qRac & Heasl SIRgH & 31efiF € |

dhe IR I AT H |rafey 51, A1 79 ST,
dpi & AT uiRd 29 3R o= d 2w oY enfiet
g, R W) ycamads R ufey 2| Sreurafy &
el e ge # uRadd & Agas= SIked |
3P B el €, I8 APl AR Thdl FHgedl B
1 & wU § wfie T8 fhar S B |

3.22 TREA g

gReEre Tl & RUic g aReEre fFofaasdt
(CODM) &I ¥e™ &1 s ofaRe RaifdT @
3T T | DI S & | CODM, ST FTe=| &
Jded 3R uReTes sl & WaIH & AThaA
A B oIy RFER B, @1 UgaE dlaRe Tded
MBI IR ERS

el P S FAR B AR R JaRed fbar
ST & R anfiie faeredrd @ e 8 o
S IATRT AR 1Al BT Tpfa, Icara dfshamail
DI UPIA, AP B TDR AR T qAT fIa=or fafer
H AT T R & |

TR 96T B YTehl ¥ IcU~ B dlel W ol
BT fa<r faaRoT # IoRa & A YR R Rure
forar SITaT B | SfAR—ES IO B 39 oFed D
JTER 4R RUTE AT Sl & Sl &7 /U 4 d6iR
smtRa B0 21 We & uRum fad e,
iR—amdfed dURe &g R R F U8l ord
I |

"33 fed BluRe JI” | Ioivd 3R I e
g O 99y ®©U 9 Sgq & fou RmeEr
gl / ATl o AT B |

3.23 ehalydrg faerur

JEa) yarg a1 Rure mede] fAfer w1 SuAnT Rd
DI S 2, S8l BR qd A Bl IR—FHS TP &
e @ woral, fUser a1 vfasy o gReme= Fdal
oIl A Il @ R W IR Ar At
SUTSIF R Adh<) yarg & f=aer ar faawer |
TS T AT FI Pl A D oIy ARSI fham
SITAT & | 91 &1 aRare, fHaer iR fa<aryor
Tfafaferat | THel JaTg b 3Tel T fdhar ST 2 |

3.24 fusci rattrsntsfean

Ueell srafer &1 Ffeai 4 vl 9o IR Tad 9™
IS & ST favad= SITHaRY 6T SUATT B |
fAherdr & S Bl & Sl S0 99T SuaTel off
AT YT BT ST Fhet off S 39 maferf & forg
fARTRT faRoT SIRY vt @ forq arAifad b T1g o |
el JarTeTs srafyr ¥ Heftra amrfl g4 rafer
@1 FfeAT I, ST8T W MMaeID 8l, Joid uF AR
AM—EI fdeRoT & JaTctd anidsl &l R 4
IAThR FQETAT SITQT | §9 YR, el faxiig
feRoll  gHdT eI 59 TRE fBar S o
fop Zgfe €1 =11 ot |

3.25 fdifén safirehae st aeam

RAIfET e@afy & e & "eqArg’ a7 vy #

Ifiga @ ST &

* GUENE "edAm; ARG "eAg 9 8 Sl
RIS srafey & afa # wisg Reafal &1 yHroT
&I BRa 8; 3R

o TR-HHERN TeATg: IR—FHARIS "e] J 8
St RAIfT srafd & qrq S gs Rerferai &
HAbd <l B |

focfra faaRort & \=ar ur IRray &1 Raifd

AT & qrg FHRSTE geHRl &I g9y & forw

T forar Siar ® | foi faeront | Arar

g IRt a1 R emafey & qre IR—garae=

geATR Bl T B & forg FHrAT &l fpam

Sirar 7 | afe Raifér erafr & 9re IR—araer

TG #ewqul 8, a1 VAl geHrel bl "eHT &l

ypia AR IFd I g91d & AFA & A1

Yehe fopar Srar 2 |




31 HrH, 2024 Tl GHTW 9 o forg fawite faawoTt 1 fewan s are ied (asT: )

e 4 : g uREaraan
=re] 9 (@ ¥ IRg %, H, 519 dF 3rGAT T HET )
RINGKR IR GRGING e JoasTd 3 arfa ST A W Frel T
T S— e 314, T 317,
VI o || e | o [V ) O | e | frem | a2 2T
EaRb) EamgL)
uftEufs, wiie e SUehTuT
s 25.95 } ) ] 25.95 21.34 } 2.00 ] - 23.34 2.61 461
S, AIferdl gd 26.34 - - - 26.34 25.02 - - - - 25.02 1.32 1.32
o 1838.43 } } - | 183843 256.21 ; 31.39 . ) 28760 | 1,55083 | 1,582.22
TR 3R e 398.50 - - - 398.50 164.48 - 31.71 - - 196.19 202.31 234.02
BT UG 135.70 - - - 135.70 65.33 - 9.25 - - 74.58 61.12 70.37
g GHoll grolae 580.00 - - - 580.00 551.00 ] ] . - 551.00 29.00 29.00
3y {7 26.13 - - - 26.13 26.13 ] - - - 26.13 .
Wﬁ@ A = 1,519.14 ; ; - | 151944 | se773 ; 89.92 . . 977.65 541.49 63141
Wg ?@ A - 495.50 ; ; . 49550 | 302.80 . 19.02 . . 321.82 173.68 19270
BRI W Hedl 217.67 16.72 2.28 - 232.11 19051 | (2.17) 6.46 - - 194.80 37.31 27.16
wiwgtes uriET
af 127.28 - - - 121.28 19.66 - 129 - - 20.95 106.33 107.62
e 5,390.64 16.72 2.28 - | 540508 | 251021 | @1 | 19104 . . 2,699.08 | 270600 | 2,880.43
ol Rl
Yy ® ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) )
o 5,390.64 16.72 2.28 - | 540508 | 251021 [ @17) [ 191.04 . . 2,699.08 | 270600 | 2,880.43

44 HU U TS 9B H B /IR—BS SRT HHT BT A ST X8 €, Sl Ped Al & gleded, HHAT Wi, TR A1 AR q81 H0T & AgH A JRRK & 3R B I 3
3R Tt YoiTa UREURAT R Ugel MR gRT G & |
42 TETes A # BedmyRT 3enfie &, R s, STagR # Rerd 40000 a¥f Hiew iR AwRIER, SR Rerd & # 2500 a7 #iex &= i 2 |

Torge o (1 Iy @Ry . ¥, 919 b S=IAT 7 PHEl 9I)
AT AT AT AT Herd gegTd 3R afa T A ST ATt 9T
31 1T, 31 1Td,
N e S Rl Bl RS e Ll RS R I SO )
EaRb) EaRiL)

UREU, ©AE T9T SURTOT
e 25.95 ; - - 25.95 18.44 } 2.1 - - 2134 4.61 751
%W v 2634 . . . 26.34 25.02 . . . . 25.02 132 132
T 183843 } - - 1843 | 22482 ] 31.39 - - 25621 | 158222 | 161361
BeteR 3R e 174.80 - (0.09) - 174.71 130.83 | (0.09) 33.74 - - 164.48 10.23 4397
PrafeR] SR 135.61 ] 0.09 } 135.70 5593 | 0.09 9.31 - - 65.33 7037 79.68
9 Gl HIoae 580.00 ] - - 580.00 | 551.00 } ] - - 551.00 29.00 29.00
3ReTg. T 26.13 - - - 26.13 26.13 ] - - - 26.13 -
m R — 1519.14 ; ; - | 151044 | 79785 ; 89.83 . - 887.73 631.41 72129
WA o 718.81 . : . 71881 | 281.96 . 20,84 . - 302.80 416,01 436.85
et
TR Td Bied 209.25 8.90 } - 21845 | 187.22 ; 329 - - 190.51 27.64 22,03
wieTgieg uiEw
af 127.28 - - ; 127.28 1837 - 129 ; - 19.66 107.62 108.91
EeE 5,381.74 8.90 - - | 530064 | 231757 - | 10264 ; . 251021 | 2,88043 | 306417
ol Rl
el 5,381.74 8.90 - - | 539064 | 231757 - | 19264 . - 251021 | 2,88043 | 3,064.17




31 WT=, 2024 Tt TAT a4 o forg fereitar faraoTt et fewam amm et wttew (wmer: )

e 5 : WA yRuraAr

<oy o (Tt ¥y oIRg . ¥, 519 d& T 7 daEl 9)
TR AT /I AT Wi veaeTd 3 afq 3T T ST ATt [T
ferercor 1 378, 2023| 3 AR | afie fowma rg_’fqm 31T, 2024(1 3, 2023  uftviem S 31 9=, 202431 A=, 2024 31 7=, 2023
EaRL) #afg dafg Tt EaRiu) EaRL wd EaRiu) @t i EoRL]
THADI SATHRI 72.70 - 72.70 72.70 72.70
I ( 3) 72.70 72.70 72.70 72.70
IEESICL]
TR AT /I T Wi geaeTd 3 afa 3T T ST et T
ferarur 1 3T, 2022| AT R | ek forehrr :;ﬁm 31 T%,2023|1 370w, 2022 uRwHER ; 31 Te, 202331 ATet, 2023( 31 @, 2022
W v #afg dafg T EaRiu) EaRL wd EaRiu) @t &t
THADI STHRI 72.70 - 72.70 72.70 72.70
I ( 3) 72.70 72.70 72.70 72.70
6. SATIR WTfa - ) =]
faeror 31 9T, 2024 &t 31 9T, 2023 &kt
(37) SrgRfera, e A MY 102.92 149.02
£l 102.92 149.02
7. SR Wit - =me].
feaamor 319Te, 2024 Rt 31HTe, 2023 Rt
Heifera wifdat &
(37) SRIRRRE, e A U 2,078.74 1,920.19
I |
(31) SRferd, wied \ Y - -
(@) argRfard, e A Ty 13,101.42 14,594.84
(|) |fee 2,529.74 2,428.81
e : Wiy ol @l Wbridn 2,529.74 2,428.81
EXl 15,180.16 16,515.03

71
72

U 31 AT 2024 T FTAT A BT G o foTg TIIEAT T = o] 8, <ifcbT 371 U1 BT STaTd B! Pl T8l el & |

golfagd e AT T @1 B | AT #, 222 SARNTH RAMUT B B oy 680 FARITH o foTT 8.15 BRIS SU BT AT I o o7 | IIET BT SUA,
SIRNTY et fbT 71T BT 70% Tep fobam 7127 B, SARNTT & 39 SITARAT 131 & 7T 12.85 BRI BU YR TRBR I U 8 § |

PR B HROT FASIAT TG DT FAT B QAT TT o7 | 7T HoleT UTeR wrsde foifics =1 faarel & S @ forg weaer & s @ | & forg A S=a
AT, STAYR & FHeT TR SR GeTg STfAFRIT 1996 B ORT 11(6) & Tt T RAfdet ey 3Tde Wl 12 /2023, 13 /2023 1R 14 /2023 SRR A1 2 |
fid 06.10.2023 BT AT Iod =TS, SR = Y&l & dra fAamel &1 U a7 & oy Ua Tae Aeel f1geh | Tavel 7eaRer & ficell & oTgaR
Wﬁa?wm#mﬁwmﬁél%ﬂﬁﬁwwmaﬂﬁwmﬁﬁaﬁwwémé@gﬁﬁﬁmm
I fhar T e |

8. i Y uREufa (35)

o U3 H U SR R FURRET/ (S1Ricd) 1 faeryor frferiad &

feramor 319, 2024 wht 319Te, 2023 Rt
IR Y IR (368.42) (448.52)
IMRAATT HY uRGufrat 2,477.63 2,661.75
Rg: 2,109.21 2,213.23

8.1

AT IR TRAURTAT @) FIeaa=1adT H7 et S #, TEe 39 a1 IR f3aR oxar € & smeerfia smaas uReufml o g v ar adt &
AT e AT ST | STRARTT SIehs aRAurf B ife Wi S o1aferdf & SR wias o FR A1 3 & For W R Bl 2 T e stk
FERN IR B O © | JdeT S P Bl R A ARARIT rax IeIRAT, Igaifia wfasy &) ax Ay o &R o o omifosll & FeifRa
IACHR] W AR HRAT & | VTSI TR I 3T & WR AR 9 B IR I 31T B AT B MR U, o7 aferdr # e smgax aR|uRe
FHENN TR &, TG BT AT 2 S HU I FHErn AT Rl & ATl BT T Hfl | SRR gy Fufcrat o1 f axgelt a1 A/ Il 7, BTaffes,
AT A A S aTel! SRR ey uRHuRral @l i1 7 e smafd | w4 fhar S Hadr 8 Ife 3T of S &1 3/afd & SR wfas &1 ax I
31T IFFAMI DI HH B 3IT SN | Fae & AN & AR, Al a¥ B TRe 3@ HU & U I & quf § R A7y 9y & o™ 81, 79 R 59
RYFURT BT SYTRT BT ST FehelT & | YT BT IR B GRAIRTIT DT Il T & BT Hedid Tl g a9 & 3fd H yeers g7 fohar e 2, R
s & o~ A gROHT & AT Bl e # <@ e 2 |




AR yiftaar ufsT frege 31 914, 2024 &t

31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 99 o forg fawita faavor 1 fewan s aret ied (esT: )

(it Y oIRg 5. #, ST9 I STl | dEl )

ST ahi d fater | fFeafaiad srafert o (o ek
fererrer cwieE | emnd | iadd | 2a9d | sa@ | =
Ll 199 299 3ad e
(i) fAfdare MR witkrr — 3resT 79T S@T 8 3,443.58 843.63 215.41 | 3,948.56 - | 8,451.18
(i) Ffdare @R wftaal — R wfse Silkaq # - - - - 7,487.40 | 7,487.40
IeoE i gfg g8
(iii) ffdare @R witaar — #fee wxE - - - - - -
(iv) faarfed =R Ui — 38T A Sfdl & - - - - 1,771.32 | 1,771.32
(v) faarfea aamuR wiftqar — e sfse Sikaq 4 - - - - - -
IeoE i gfg g8
(vi) faarfea =R gt — @fse @RE - - - - - -
fof 3,443.58 843.63 21541 | 3,948.56 9,258.72 | 17,709.90
ger : Aew GAARI & oIy UTaeT - - - - 2,529.74 | 2,529.74
Hel AR yri 3,443.58 843.63 215.41 | 3,948.56 6,728.98 | 15,180.16
SHTUR YTt TR FTSEet 31 |re, 2023 &t
ST i o fater & Freafatad safeat o fag s
foerrm smRE | emai® | 1=9® | 2w@® | sw® | o
Xl 199 2 3ad UG
(i) Ffdare =R Wit — sreT a4 S ar © 4,869.07 1,185.87 | 3,531.81 589.02 - 1 10,175.77
(i) Ffdare emur witaar — 9 sfee Sigq - - - - 6,923.62 | 6,923.62
S gfg g8
(iii) Ffdare @R gt — Hée @_E - - - - - -
(iv) faarfed =R wiftaai — e/=sT A ST & - - - - 1,844.45 | 1,844.45
(v) faarfed =R et — ot wfse Sikaw # - - - - - -
S gfg g8 2
(vi) faarfed =R wiftaar — »fse @RE - - - - - -
Bl 4,869.07 1,185.87 | 3,531.81 589.02 8,768.07 | 18,943.84
ger : et QAGRI & ol UTaer= - - - - 2,428.81 | 2,428.81
el AR Ui 4,869.07 | 1,185.87 | 3,531.81 589.02 6,339.26 | 16,515.03
31 9=, 2024 ot TEW a9
. AT 3T AU 3 ,
feremor WRTTeE v I = T T aifaw viw
ST Y UREUraa /( S ) h dae |
HUfR, @i qoIr SUhRYl (346.29) 49.18 - (297.11)
o< uReufral &1 3faa g 9.20 (1.26) - 7.94
Jferer o & fory e 707.27 29.00 - 736.27
R oI (102.23) 30.92 - (71.31)
JIRIATT & 70.78 (27.66) - 43.12
HHARI AT B foI7 YTae= 589.96 (89.78) 16.71 516.89
BIFAT TR B @I of g TS &T0) 1,284.54 (111.13) - 1,173.41
ol 2,213.23 (120.74) 16.71 2,109.21




31 WTE, 2024 i HTW 99 o forg fawita faavut a1 fewan s are ied (husT: )

31 1T, 2023 Hi THTE a9

(@) I AT %, H, 919 d% AT T H-T OY)

. A AT 3T MUk 3 )
et R =T YTl T W=t wre sifew 7w
Imefita T uftEutaat/( ot ) s S | ¢
HURT, wiie ToI SYBIT (344.40) (1.89) (346.29)
i uReufral &1 Sfaa gea 5.90 3.30 9.20
Jfere o1 & forv yraee 645.82 61.45 707.27
S IRIRIISES] (100.82) (1.41) (102.23)
IR & 78.95 (8.17) - 70.78
HHAR] A & fofg UTaer 582.24 6.58 1.14 589.96
BRI R B) (IR o STy 7T &1) 929.14 355.40 - 1,284.54
AR Ja (248.60) 248.60 - -
A 1,548.23 663.86 1.14 2,213.23
9. 3= fa=ita uftwufat
931. 3r=1 fairar uftwafsan - i =me]
feramor 31 W=, 2024 wht 319T=, 2023 Rt
Heifera wifdat &
— yfayfa s 0.40 0.40
m - -
— yfayfd s 75.60 67.88
— FHHATRGT BT F0T AR 1A 2.76 2.42
— A%he Ud P IAY Tebld SN & o Suarey 81§ (( fewoft <) - 103.40
e 78.76 174.10
feuqutt : Tehg iR S Seiw 1 faarT, Tt Su=tT & forT SucTer =i 2 |
feeror 31T, 2024 Rt 319, 2023 i
Jb Joi ([9 R 3R =areT |fed) debiel ST & T Sueier -8 g, 224.64 228.84
i §b & g 7RE 70 & w9 #H S A S 2
TRl : 3§ dofd & ded URaferd T (|ie 111) 224.64 125.44
311 faita wufaat o qga uRafaa afdr-fR-=me (At ou) 103.40
991, 3= faita uRwufaat - <ame]
feraor 31 1T, 2024t 311, 2023 St
— gferyfcr S 6.24 6.24
— % BT T - 0.34
— g7 R 107.40 204.62
wA 113.64 211.20




31 9T€, 2024 i GHTW 9 o forg fadta faawunt 1 fewan s are ied (hus: )

10. 79 (@ R g %, H, 59 dd AT T HET i)
feaawor 3197, 2024 st 319re, 2023 Rt
Ekll

Dol Hiel 1,181.41 1,182.85
STed fUTT § dear AT 540.10 615.07
TIR AT 182.17 271.04
Yfpr armh 9.37 5.84
SNl - -

AT RS H - -
IR § ih - -

=T - B

ol 1,913.05 2,074.80

10.1 SIET H 33.75 G U @ A4 G agY A 8, T 33.87 RT $UA &I FErhl B T8 ¢ (Ul 9§ 23.30 TG SUI &1 Tl (o1 axqu off, formi
Y off, ST 110.53 TRT B &I Bkl 1 718 2 |

29,67 TR TUYY Bl Bl Bl T3 B, 42.06 G T Bl A1 FfeT

102 9 gdg) § QRN deRal & U H 14 AR S0 1 21 €, ST fasp) ufivact= & gaot # o1 gu o, R4 9 56 g S 69 9 g 10|

11. TEhE 3T The T

THE! FaTe B [IaR0T & Ie% & forg, Tha R The FAGed! 3 Y ddha 3R bl H g1 % feRSIe ST Yg M © | RAfET srafdy & oic #

TP 3IR The AHBE, ST [ Tl FaTs [qa=or H [ 11 &, DI ool U=l H Haeid qal & a1l R Aar far S AT e

feramor 31 W=, 2024 wht 319r=, 2023 =t
ST oh AT IIW T (31+3+ ) 1,116.99 1,356.44

g EIam (3) 0.14 13.69

=1 ¥ o () 104.95 711.28

5 & o o () 1,011.90 631.47

Y NIy 1.03 2.17

qp, gIUS BT H - -
WWWW 1,118.02 1,358.61
FAME [l I1ISTHT @ Sfata 9T SeT #3rerd (MHI) 3 T afed<] &l gad @it H @7 737 € 3R F gFRIRT A= 0dard Fare @ foy Suere
TEI B 7 |

11T, 37 e St

feraor 31 9=, 2024 wht 31 9=, 2023 Rt
d& 1 B W 7 & wU H 96 & g AR <@ T (qRagaarn 224.64 125.44

3 HEM ¥ 31 ofd 12 7EM | &H)

UHIIRIR BT SYASI & ©U H SN fasar ran 82.94 71.08

et 307.58 196.52

femuft : Ul USiTe e 9 A S/ IR—6S AR WA BT 1 TST V& &, Sl ded Hiel, Ufhar § iep, TR AIel 3R g ¢ & gfeaed &

AT ¥ GRIE & 3R SUAI a1 3/ iR Tl YoiiTd RFURTE! IR T TR gRT WuTR{ad w0 & FRfard 2 |

12. 3= uREufaa - =]

faaor 31T, 2024 Rt 31HTe, 2023 i
— HHAIRAT BT @d & gaof AW 1.12 1.58
o) ot & Raairs ST 23.84 23.84
s @ 11.32 10.45
=g A 18.89 10.03
famaret &1 i 10.34 12.83
SNTET AR 571.05 210.48
I IR W ShgNe 87.44 49.98
w_A 724.00 319.19




31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 9 o forg fawite faavoT 1 fewan s are ied (asT: )

(it TIf¥ o 5. #, ST a9 STl | dEl oY)

13. SHE Y gRETra U g

faemor 31 9T, 2024 Wt 31 9T, 2023 Wt
TAHT ST uiEaa
TG 37 H I fBY MY HRI B aGell B o PRSI B A Ao forar g - -
I BT SR A 457.68 285.47
457.68 285.47
AU T S - R
JAMMITR < 18.40 18.40
18.40 18.40
A Y utEataet / (it ) 439.28 267.07
14. giaaet viom Uit
ferawor 319Te, 2024 Rt 31HTrH, 2023 i
ST R Yol 1,225.00 1,225.00
gl 1,225.00 1,225.00
1,50,00,000 SfFAET A UAH 10/ — B. B (31 AT, 2024 TPH: 1,50,00,000) 1,500.00 1,500.00
Frifie oiT @¥ie T gST 6 e § ¢
1,22,50,000 Sfdedl R IoT &<, URP 10,/ — B, & 1,225.00 1,225.00
(31 9T, 2024 T : 1,22,50,000)
1,225.00 1,225.00
14.1 1Aty o S SgTE
31 T, 2024 i GHTA 8 o feTq 31 9re, 2023 ot Gt 96 o g
VIRl Rt W& (xfT) VIRl Rt W& (i)
Ay & ARM H Iy 1,22,50,000 1,225.00 1,22,50,000 1,225.00
Aty & ofd H Uy 1,22,50,000 1,225.00 1,22,50,000 1,225.00
ol yet Sfaacl BRR, RTFaT 10 30 & a_1eR {4 2, Ui 2R TP die R § IR AriE BT AR W ¢ |
14.2 Uieh IRREeh GRT 1@ T 5% | 21feres 919w aat faemor
31 9T, 2024 Rt 31 9T, 2023 &t
faeror aTiE st Vo’ i aTia JrEt RRUED]
EaRsEeall stuit & % gifesn EaRsEeall Sttt | % FifesT
SR v
HRA IRBR 62,47,500 51% 62,47,500 51%
!, SR 60,02,500 49% 60,02,500 49%
w5 1,22,50,000 100% 1,22,50,000 100%




31 HTE, 2024 Tl GHTW 9 o forg fawite faavoT 1 fewan s are ied (usT: )

(@it TR o %, #, ST @ ST | dEl SIy)

14.3 YHIERT GRT &R $IERT ot farawot
T < 3id | yAie gRI 7@ T IR o & G %
HIET T A I ot wE A A HT % ftem=
TRA TRBR 62,47,500 51% -
AR TSR 1Y i [ vd e e fafics, sagR 60,02,500 49%
14.4 geard aie at e fer grent ot faamor

faawor 31/03/2023(31/03/2022(31/03/2021|31/03/2020(31/03/2019

THe H YA Ut ey 3 ergedl & forg smdfed sfaadt R @1 e

9 IR B w/Y § SR SfFac] IR BT A=

IO RIS Y sfdac! IRRT B AT B - -
15. 3 gferaet
st seie o forga Sar-wieTd = fog sfert o agea w1 faarur g |
o] a9
fararot A Go yfaenfia e e
31 9T, 2023 ek 919 T 4,973.45 87.09 5,060.54
SIS : 9¥ @ fog @/ (819) 316.14 316.14
SIS : 39T UG MY - (40.64) (40.64)
Tergy ;- ufaenRa Iy § eeiaReT 300.00 - 300.00
SIS : AH e H IR - (300.00) (300.00)
31 HT=, 2024 ek 919 T 5,273.45 62.59 5,336.04
ICESIRCL]
ferazoT [T G gfaqenia st A
31 1T, 2022 deh 99 T 5,973.45 95.94 6,069.39
SIS a¥ & forg o/ (@19) - (1,006.06) (1,006.06)
SIS @ 37T AUS T - (2.79) (2.79)
Tergd : UfaemRd oM # eIHieRor (1,000.00) - (1,000.00)
SIS : M Ao ¥ AR - 1,000.00 1,000.00
31 9T, 2023 deh 9t T 4,973.45 87.09 5,060.54
16. 3= faita SeTian - =e]
feeror 319, 2024 Rt 31 9=, 2023 wht
(31) g IR 40.03 36.58
@) Rem wfyr 20.96 20.96
() ufergfa s 97.64 104.40
(T) HHART oA < 84.29 109.57
@) s 111.65 96.09
(@) @@t & favg wHaiRal o gfagfd 18.40 77.27
el 372.97 444.87
17. 9t
17 T graem - ) 9]
feraor 31 9=, 2024 ht 31 9=, 2023 ht
HHANY T 292.22 284.74
wA 292.22 284.74




31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 99 o forg fawite faavoT 1 fewan s are ied (hasT: )

(it IR oI %, #, ST @ ST | dEl oY)

17 . WTae - =ne],
feramor 31 W=, 2024 i 319T=, 2023 i
HHARY AT 879.67 1,085.23
IRET B foTT graem 50.00 50.00
e 929.67 1,135.23

17.1 HHARI A4 & orQ TTaer § Y=Y, STaapreT THaTdhRYT, M I S iR ATy & are fafeear Ao & o <aam o1 Jrae wnfid € | Uager)

ERT IS &1 T8 RUIT & AR SURNH Pl AR &1 78 & |

172 TTEP] I < ST aTell 131} & AIF—HAT AT & folg W1 GRS TG &1 SRl & | $UN $ UGH 37 $ IJAR dR] @i & foTg Jraens Hel © |

18. 3T TIfIrea

18 T, 37 TR -=11e] arfared

feaaor 31 HTE, 2024 SRt 31T, 2023 Rt
— 3T | A SR srgaT 17.09 18.15

— JIMRIATT Ioa 241.86 246.18
A 258.95 264.33

18 it 311 =] STt

feaaor 31 T, 2024 SRt 31T, 2023 Rt
Dl o IfUH

e uell 42.39 178.78
=T | 1,674.12 2,529.68
— M ¥ Had Mg 3rge™ 12.87 12.87
— REYRT I A& AT e 1.07 1.07
— MRT 31 Sfad [ & sfaid <7 |t 0.13 13.69
— IR o 54.25 30.99
— quTe gHRT 168.53 196.95
H_A 1,953.36 2,964.03

18.1 37T W AT MR S BT I SaferRIl # FGREIT IR UR o AT B H AT &1 S, R H7e 39 Hafdd oiTdi &I < & Wy H ygardr

2, T foTT ST @Y WIRUTE e T SRTeT 7 |

182 URFURTT I HfAT SReIfTT oTgaT &I IREURT & ST Sia IR SaReId AR TR ST IT 8T H A=A &1 SRl & |

19 . SR 37 - I =]

feamor 31 HTE, 2024 T 31T, 2023 Rt
Haifera urfeat & - -
Skl

— &9 3R g SEMl & oFIaRI BT Kol 1T - -
— &9 3R g Ml $ Al A oaRI P B b 48.52 7.59
RS 48.52 7.59
19 . SR 89 - =]

faamor 31WTH, 2024 Rt 31T, 2023 ht
Heifera wiféen @ - -
=’

— & 3R oY Sl & WFaRl Bl el THrT 2,214.10 2,979.81
— e 3R oTg STl & ATl 3 o GRI B ol ThRIT 12,161.79 11,993.06
gl 14,375.89 14,972.87

19.1 SURITH JHTAT I H e SR BT YR 7 B S BROT HE FCH SO0l BT T 3220.89 G S IMASA & | UIET Ugel &1 HU & ATEdh! 19
RIS BI—3TRICT SR HEXT (PCDF), TR U9 MR 7 JUITET & Hae # el sraTerd # &1 Aet 3R gast 2 | YASIU® & Arel 3 29.09.2023 &1
A Sod <RI, STIQR 7 Vs FedRef fFRyeh fohan ofik FegRerdt &1 rjare] # AR & fofg Sea=1 8 arel 941 9ei WR fHoi form | (UPNEDA) @& ATl
H IR FCH gSwIol gRT AMAR Iod AT, SAYR & et U1 RATIeT Heg=erdT Jfae SRR fBar 131 € | A JToReie e <amTerd Fsuls,
STIYR §IRT UTRT AT 31 17.11.2023 FIRT U1, HEIRIT SIS HRAT 133 /2021 & HHel H UHHATH AL F1Ih faam 3T |




IR ST Ui f¥Tege 31 Wr, 2024 @t

31 W€, 2024 i GHTW 9 o forg fawita faavon =1 feean s aret ied (asT: )

(it IfY oI’ 5. #, ST9 a9 STl | dEl SI)

ST et 2 fater § ftaiaa srafei o fag sermn
e sTEAE | ewdd® | 1a9® | 2a9® | sm@® | o
EXl 199 2T 3Ty SRIC
(i) THTAUHS 918.92 239.28 74.33 113.65 867.92 | 2,214.10
NER 2,532.00 294.74 24921 | 2,124.88 | 3,628.06 | 8,828.89
(i) faarfed gHraT—vHTHUAg - - - B B B
(iv) faared garT—sar= - - - - | 3,332.90 | 3.332.90
Loyl 3,450.92 534.02 323.54 | 2,238.53 | 7,828.88 |14,375.89
MR FAETRE UhT RTeget 31 rel, 2023 it
T okt 2 fafer @ Frefafaa stafaat = fag sermen
R cTERE | ewaR® | 1998 | 2988 | sw6d kil
El 199 29 3@ SelC

(i) TITaTHS 1,514.49 103.35 237.67 112.04 | 1,012.26 | 2,979.81
(i) 3 2,585.22 332.81 | 1,949.87 | 1486.67 | 179592 | 8,150.49
(iii) fdarfeaq qprT—gagaHs - - - - B B
(iv) Tared garT—ar= - - 6.25 - | 3,836.32 | 3,842.57
e 4,099.71 43616 | 2,193.79 | 1,598.71 | 6,644.50 |14,972.87
20. 3TTeh{Eeh ST, 3Teh{&eh TREUT AT Afdergar
20.1 3R ST

feamor 31 W|TE, 2024 &t 31T, 2023 Rt

(@) B BT IR A THRI gRT & TS TR 1,197.36 3,693.08

@) Ul & fa%g @1 B R B wY H WIEHR T8l B T 8,017.94 4,047.43

(W) SIGEET SR gt AfieH—sigae! sidiee foera & u™ 238.46 238.46

ST (ST =rarerd | ol g AN & 4% W)
(3) AT B HRT gAqmel A /ITE Td ¥aT $R 9T gRT 3.82 3.82
feris @1 T2 (2009—10)

20.1.1 UM & R T BT 0T & ©9 H WHR el fhar Sram &, Rrad 1/ e S, T/ ST UdhIe, 799 Hoiel UreR wrgde fofics, aa
HIgE A fhae afdust wgde fafics &R du & qd dHaniRal & 14 e 8, f51a forg gaeH srered # dfdd 2|

2012 3MHRHAG AR BT 79 UgaT AT & Td Sl TRl | HIE W9 a1 Sca= 8T 8 iR e siRaw @) gfte dad vs a1 ifds sifafdad
=T P51 Teel & afed 89 a1 7 8F I Bl & 9 X ORE A WA & A0 # T € | TAUHHs fasmharei # A Ud, HEY T @ Giegd i8]
ATgde fAfCS & 14.75 AT SUY IHRT & 7 MSMED 3187213, 2006 & STJAR TS BT &TaT BT 8 AR ARG 3 37 9T & A1 Sod ATy &
HHeT SIS SR 5T 2 | 26.12.2022 PY A Soa ATATA T ATABTRAT DI STIYR H FEIRRIT STaTeld H FeReydy A9 31 gR7 34 & T8 o1died
P P {19 a1 | 3@ g AMel v =rred, SR 9 dfdd € | FEe & I ER, TSl &1 $I favaw= g 3FgAM T8l ol I Hehdll © |
gfery, 9 MHRAS <RI & ©U H Uave 718! fpar mar 2 |

201.3 O HAIQw Ao AR wgde ffice 5 AMet § AT ST TITer, SRIYR & el Ae=erdT 31k Jog A 1996 @1 e1_T 11(6) & ot
THHTH HeAReT Bl FgfRh & forg o d). Hearerd anded S1Radt fBar € | A9 Sod =A1aTerd 7 S1U+ 37T faid 09.02.2024 FRT UH.4). HEART &
AT 31 /2023 H YHAT HewRel F a2 |

20.2 MR gREaraan
feaaor 31 W|TE, 2024 T 31HTe, 2023 Rt
941 T Tl Y Y ST Wied /e 78 5 e - 4.64
Eag) - 4.64

20.3 Yfaagarg
feaamor 31 HTE, 2024 i 319re, 2023 Rt
yfegaTg
i fhy S & fou 9w srgael @l srgarfa IR iR T SR IERErg 6,197.17 14,624.36
3rEel Bl WMAA PR & ol ya™ &1 fpar 1 2|
HA 6,197.17 14,624.36




31 1T, 2024 i U 79 & o fawita faerott ot feeam s aret Atew (FasT: )

(it TIf¥ oI 5. #, ST a9 ST | dEl o)

21. U= B e
foRaR aReErer= 9§ oraf @ T Hul & Yoia &1 faaror fRe=farfad 2

feeror 314re, 2024 K AT SE | 31 |TE, 2023 St THTE T8
(a1) faspr
IBRIK] 6,554.88 304.95
el 8,962.57 8,155.71
@) arti @1 famr - -
HIT YEREG 3R AT Yo 3,060.61 3,536.65
() 3 uRaTe™ Irod
I FETIAT - 12.87
7 g 577 4.86
gRag=T urftaat 4.17 3.49
e 18,588.00 12,018.53

211 RT3 ¥ A1e] a9 # I SUY B AT W [T 1ga™ WiAe & ((Uoel av # 12.87 dRg 93) Fo7aH S Fafdri 3 @rafRerd SR U= o1 a1 811 4

AT S 2, T Ao Hafrd anTal ol 1 & WU H ugEr © forad forg argam o Seed afiyfd aRAr g |

212 Yo FEAQe ST &5 e o # wnfivet f5am 1am & (e 34 <) |

21.3 I (37 311 wU F AIR) YewH SR & oy Mmdfed oFe Jed &1 ol e 296.11 ARG Y & fSTH H 18.32% &1 U 3ol a¥ 87 & IR

2| UTEDI B WY AT J BIE ATt SR SfectRad If | arex g w@r war |

31 e, 2024 ot TUTA 98 o forg st o § uRed sa U §

Y & ITEATA W 919 09T 277.17
9 P SR J=IAT YT TSI (170.50)
9§ & IR gfg 189.44
ELEZECRRICEUN 296.11
22. 3 3
3) ISl 3
faawor 314, 2024 SMiEUTEA S | 31 HTE, 2023 i TENE TH
g% S 53.58 25.24
iR 52.87 72.89
/A () 106.45 98.13
9) 3T IR—URETAT Mg
faaror 319, 2024 R EATASY | 31 W, 2023 it THIC a8
WRBRI 3T BT IR 1.07 1.07
faceh a1  SAR—Te™ (Y=) 71.23 0.00
3 (Frifeep avgall BT B 34.53 19.24
R ) SIS gldD 120.26 -
HA(H) 227.09 20.31
A (3 ) 333.54 118.44

*1.06 TRI $UY & MFaT BT RN IRFURT | HEfRd srjar &1 uReie= & (e a9 # 1.06 og $ud) oy aRFufRrl & Suarft sfed w®

AR LR UR o1 AT BT & U= ST & |

23. YT ki T3 ATHIT St STRTT

faazor 3197, 2024 AT IH | 31 HI=, 2023 Tl THTA o6

ST ht 713 AT ekl ARTT

URM® ih 1,803.76 1,669.79

SIS : Ped 7Tl ) @G 10,126.90 6,307.38
11,930.66 7,977.17

e : eifqm wie 1,730.88 1,803.76

& 10,199.78 6,173.41

2




31 e, 2024 i GHTW 99 o forg faite faawoT 1 fewan s are ied (asT: )

23 T, UM et T8 AT oAt faamoT (@l IR ARG 6. W, W9 b I 7 BEl W)
feararor 3196, 2024 T AT EY | 31 W, 2023 i GG a8
(31) @ud fehT TT sHeat | ot faaRoT

AR ol SUHRT

— WIeR e 230.72 197.79

— 31 6,276.46 2,221.29

soldei=1d fHed TATSoR 3,659.68 3,724.06

SYATT &R fpT Al 32.92 30.27
HA 10,199.78 6,173.41
(&) STt 3T TRy AT shi TUd T Jo

SIDIRK] 381.04 458.84

waeeh 9,818.74 5,714.57
A 10,199.78 6,173.41

24, I U1 hit 36l ¥ uliaa
faawor 314, 2024 miEUTE S | 31 HTE, 2023 i U T
Wi § 9f& () /P
TRMAS Clh
IR #1e 271.04 455.40

271.04 455.40

gersy : ifoH wid
IR 1 182.17 271.04
182.17 271.04
TR AT S g el 9 uftada 88.87 184.36
£l 88.87 184.36

25, SHE=R T &
faaror 31 |T=l, 2024 St TATE T4 31 HT=l, 2023 T THTE T8
I 3R AN 2,883.06 2,935.91
afysr ffey ok e At & avrem 293.26 338.98
BHARNT ST &g 41.56 39.26
fafere e & fore graum= 38.73 29.31
Hel 3,256.61 3,343.46

26. fa @
faawor 319Te, 2024 AT | 31 W=, 2023 o GHE oY
TS T 0.96 11.96
4% Yob 52.29 27.91
d® TR HHRE 30.07 46.70
Eas) 83.32 86.57

27. UeagT™, &fa iR ufignem =

faaror

31 |T=, 2024 St THTE T9

311TE, 2023 Tt THW 98

RO} Sared 9 Hafd uReufty, 993 iR Sudrvil &7 Jedgrd

191.04 192.64
Tersd « fUwel a¥ &1 {eded 9 @Id | STl - _
et demer @ Hafera et goaer™, afd 3T aitenea 191.04 192.64




31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 99 o forg fawite faawoT 1 fewan s are ied (asT: )

(it IR oI %, #, ST @ ST | dEl oY)

28. T =T
faawor 319re, 2024 W EATEA Y | 31 WA, 2023 kit THIE 99
AT
fie ud Sad 40.62 37.77
T UE TE@d
_ e vd 7 5.30 7.07
- 5.65 9.56
— 3= 4.72 4.84
2R 3R 3/ wd 32.33 3.26
Y vd fde™ @ fog gca iR dieiersy 4.51 5.48
T 14.75 17.00
R AR 16.50 18.36
BUTE AR IR 11.75 11.54
RIESEESICIRGE] 92.77 134.07
I[P AR AR W 16.43 16.82
BT T U3 b 55.31 18.74
TREAT, FHTS AR =T W 77.71 74.45
SIET WRIeAD] BT I 2.62 3.09
T Ieh 7.78 5.76
AT TR B BRI 100.93 204.78
s 3R @mUR y=R 16.77 21.58
ST & 438.09 91.12
IR TR 59.05 59.88
A, B IR FHHEH 189.39 137.12
AT, IERETT 3R AT Yodb 3,415.40 2,878.72
facel ga1 # SAR—d%a (=) - 16.79
fafoer e 56.55 4217
$Id / UT ASFS! BT T - 6.48
gReufcrat &) g1 &1 gerr 0.11 -
A 4,665.04 3,826.45
28.1 FETUII&TeRT ohl ITATA ohT farauT
T URT8TahT oht ST 317d, 2024 S EAT@ES | 31 W7, 2023 S G 96
(a1) wifafere o udie e 1.25 1.25
@) <aw Sfifse gob 0.70 0.60
) yAOE BRI 0.42 0.99
() o9 @E ¥ A 0.25 0.25
HA 2.62 3.09

28.2 fafay el # fAeere @ 956 BN 0.60 T TUY (IS a¥ 1.40 dRg TUA) iR 9IS NfST &7 0.07 oG T (et 99 0.09 AR TUL)
MAAE |



31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 99 o forg fawite faawoT 1 fewan s are ied (asT: )

(it IR oI %, #, ST @ ST | dEl oY)

29. Had e | Hatad 3™ s
29.1 T AT TR | HI=IGT YT 3T T

faaror

31 |T=, 2024 St TATE 9

31 WT=l, 2023 & THTA 6

TAHT T

qAATT I B HeeT |

ool a8 I GO BR BT THRITSH

EIECIRESCE]

fUoell arafsy & dder |

ST &

RGBS CICEC AN EC ] (120.74) (663.86)

el a9 | Hefd B BT FTHRISH - -
(120.74) (663.86)

Te] WA | W T aaT Tafer § WI=rar YT shel STt I (120.74) (663.86)

29.2 3T=1 SHTU ST H W= UTed STTIehT

T A T8 @M A7 81N & oY Yo aligpd el fbar SR

feararor 3196, 2024 T G SY | 31 T, 2023 i GG a8
SR T

aRYIRT o SR BT gH:3Tde 16.71 1.14
el 16.71 1.14

3 ATUH 3T H AT WK 3MADBR Bl I — 16.71 1.14

30. Ufd IR 3
faawor 319, 2024 H A EY | 31 W, 2023 i GG a8
L IGRIR % gfq o=
HAd G &
PR ggATd o™/ (B119) 316.14 (1,006.06)
e SUITH BI T0MT & T SISl RRI BT ARG 3iRId ] 122.50 122.50
Jfe FHE) et 31 ( Uik 10/~ FU3 ohT Ueh Sferaet 9w ) 2.58 (8.21)
TEges U @ 0T & oy sfaadt IRl @1 iR siad ww=n 122.50 122.50
YT TR STECIE S 3T ( Uedeh 10/ - €U SRl Ueh Srolel I1aT ) 2.58 (8.21)
T Hee™ | %. Ui 9o %. Ufd 9’
ol M U IR 2.58 (8.21
SIEdCS A UfT IR 2.58 8
30.1 el StaR et 3"

Ui ¥R e AR BT TN H SUANT By Y SfaadT ARt @1 My iR IR T HEdT 39 UK © |

faaror 319, 2024 H G SY | 31 W, 2023 St GHIC a8
BT ® APl & BRI A & forg @/ (B119) (37) 316.14 (1006.06)

T ¥R A I & Se¥g & (o SfdacT WRT Bl ARG AT 122.50 122.50
HeET (&)

i SR O 3 (31/9) 2.58 (8.21)




T
31 W€, 2024 i GHTW 9 o forg fawdta faawon a1 fewar s aret Hied (EsT: )
30.2 Ufd 912X SEee e 3 (@ I =g . ¥, 9 qH AT 7 P M)
gf ¥RR SIgges M B TUET H IUANT & S arell 3T 39 UK ©
Ui ¥RR SEges 3 & 9o D oY giaac! 2RRI B ARG Arad G1 Ul 2RR qd 3 &1 q0ET 3§ IuART by 7Y
ST drel Sfaadl BRIRTE @1 HIRG Sd W& & W1 Hel Wil 2

feraor 311, 2024 R EATEAY | 31 A=, 2023 i GUTA a9
gfr SRR el I 1 AT H STAN B S arell A 316.14 (1,006.06)

Yfd JIER STEAL S 31T ohi TUTHT H SUART bl ST aTelt 3179 ((37) 316.14 (1,006.06)

Oy BRIR & S Bl TUET H UGwh gfdac] WRI B ARG fHd 122.50 122.50
REEN

Qe SToR Tt 31T ol TUTHT | Wk Sferel 91adl oht AT irda 122.50 122.50
HqEAT(F)

Yfd JIER SEEE S 3 (31/9) 2.58 (8.21)
31. TSR AT AT
31.1 URWTYE FRTEH FST

HUHl ART FRBR B HHAR] A (Y SR § I Y 30 F91 AT HHATRAT & oI TRHINT e dar-ghy
ST AR H IRTE <l 7 |
ST AT BT | AT I Gl @9 221.88 G YU (Bl a¥ 224.17 @Rg TW) T
31.2 g AT I
HHAR] UCT B AT Bl YGer= Geb UTTerdl gIRT febdT ST &, Fo WIReig Sitas i1 A gIRT SrgHifad U=gel g% % & Ared |
SRITRAC fohaT ST & | TR &1 9aidT Hed AT @l SaTRAT BT ATdheld B @ oY JIFATHT YT HIST Tghd BT IUANT B
i Jedie & R IR (R fobar Sirar €, f5r Janf-giy, st iR a1 § 9g | Faerd o 2 & |
fArerer SifRew RIS ATSHT ST1RIT & g Hed (WRA S0 | Jegafiia) &1 T0MT f$bree &% BT SUINT BRS B SRl § S|
TRBRI qie TR R @Sy o FHIT TR 916X & Hew 3 FeiRd Bl & | Ffds e §/1 Sl (TAssHl) & UTd ©, Sy
R BRI AT STar 2
TSt SR e ToT &R ¥ AT A IS 1Mcd ¥ gl BIH; BTeAifch, TS & 207 (e R Rew # glg A s A wRurg
&1 Sy |
Jrafafer SiReA | R o AT <1 @ IcAT o 1 VT AT STt @) S99 ISR @ SRT fR a1 7 AReferd
& FaATTH AT & FeH H B I 8 | AT FHTRRI T Sieas JeTen H gig | Ao & SHaRI 9 STgT |

EREASLECE RV A ATSTT Q1R & acHT e @l 0T ATorT1 TRl a1 S97a JAISTTR & SR 31k 918 3§ 90 R &
AARTH SFA & AH H DI ST & | ATSTHT TRHTRIAT BT Sia YR H giag A AT B QIalR] 98 S |

SHIfeheh Yodieh oh 3294 oh [CTU SUANT ohl ST ATelt UHE &TUTT 36 Tehm off |

feawor TodtehT
319w, 2024 &t 319, 2023 &t
Swhise & ) 7.20% 7.44%
99 | gig @ R 6.00% 6.00%
HHART THIMAR BT TR 3.00% 3.00%
AroRTd aReafrl W e Req 7.20% 7.44%
AT e IR & SRM) IR G g Jog ) | IR G Siia gcg )
(2012—14) (IrE)) (2012—14) (ar=9))
ST TR AT AT TSI o Wt § FhTE oh A | Seq= Bi7 ATt GoT Ut | yiHet i H YR ¢ |
ferawor 319, 2024 @t 319w, 2023 st
O aIiva verfid o™ <1iRicd &1 aaq g (1,486.46) (1,479.35)
Ao aRETRR @1 Sferd qea 655.62 783.02
fa wifya Rerfa (830.84) (696.33)
A=A UT aREuR W) ufEe
eI TreT ST | 3= &1 el 9Teg erfare (830.84) (696.33)




31 T, 2024 i GHTA a6 & fo1g fawite faeron a1 fewar s aret ied (a9 )

FAHT AT o 7T Y5 a7t ARTe FeTTa €

(it YT oIRg 5. #, ST9 I STIAT 7 dal )

faaror 3194, 2024 St 319, 2023 &t
Al § ™ TR BT aHE o 1,479.35 1,674.27
AT & URH H Ao UREURT HT I Jod (783.02) (1,062.47)
YR H 915 qrtaa/( uiEut ) 696.33 611.80
S ISR 110.06 116.86
(Tt 31ma) (58.26) (74.16)
AR AT o T 95 AT NI 51.80 42.70
=Te] Aty o for ery-gif faavor € wr=rar yra o e ®
feararor 319w, 2024 &t 319, 2023 &1
e |aT AT 31.43 37.90
g TSl AT 51.80 42.70
T AT AT - -
Tl YT &3 83.23 80.60
TTE] AT oh T 3177 STk 1 ((3THIeE ) H Wr=en Wi = e ar €
faaror 319w, 2024 &t 319w, 2023 &1
afy & forg <1 R difss () /=1 51.33 (6.67)
TST 3R BT BIsHR ATl yR¥url R Red 6.02 10.60
gReafrat & A & gRad+ - -
ST § 7a o FeTu Hr=Ten Ured 915, ( 3119 ),/ 57.35 3.93
Teifa Ty S o SAH 9o | uiad METER €
faaor 319w, 2024 &t 319w, 2023 &1
RS eIl e <1 1,479.35 1,674.27
TS AT 110.06 116.86
=Te], HaT AT 31.43 37.90
T AT AT
1aff:‘lTlTl'-lT(FiT‘lil')/E'l'ﬁl:
SR DI gRvMe H qRaa | S~ dHifhd o™ &R 81 - -
faxir aomelt & aRade & S~ dWifed @ &R 819 16.39 (33.49)
39Hd FHRIISH ¥ S diHifehes o SR BT 34.95 26.82
B8 X e I (185.72) (343.01)
e waifa wmes et 1,486.46 1,479.35
T uigutaEt @ 3fea gt | uftad e #
feareor 319, 2024 &t 319, 2023 &1
Ao aREURTE! BT IRS SR 9o 783.02 1,062.47
TS 3T 58.26 74.16
IrorT aREuRial W REA (g <t @ & i R @ srea) (6.02) (10.60)
fIhT gIRT 3freT™ 6.08 -
He | YA fHAT T AT (185.72) (343.01)
Fisrn arEutEt v it st e 655.62 783.02




31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 99 o forg faita faawon 1 fewan s are ied (asT: )

o o fres (@ IR g %, W, 19 qb AT T HBl SIY)
feaaror 319w, 2024 &t 319w, 2023 &t
RS g IR 696.33 611.80
A8 fJaRoT § J=ga1 U ey 83.23 80.60
MRANeNTE | AT UTd Y 57.36 3.93
IRV # ¥g <1 / (R fT) -
TE SR /AR & dex (TRHURT) -
faell g1 <xf 4 gRec &1 g g9 -
(FraTaar grT AW T fear T o) - -
T & 3fereT (6.08) -
T U | WA YT Y1g qrrae/( aReure ) 830.84 696.33

ufrHufaat st stult
faeror 319, 2024 &t 319w, 2023 &t
9T He 655.62 783.02
T U W WI=an UTe 95, arfaedt/( aReut ) 655.62 783.02

3T SIFeRTET
faazor 319Td, 2024 &t 319, 2023 &t
Al ARl DY G 197 208
afrg A=t & fog gfa Arg 9a9 152.56 151.91
YeIfd & TR & SR IR o a 6
airad sruferd wfasy &1 Jar - 10
AT o™ <1y (drdiai) 1,486.46 1,479.35
Tl af @ forg FERT e (12 #18) 152.56 151.91

31TTet a1 o FoAT 915 =T T Foergan 2
faaror 3194, 2024 St 319w, 2023 &t
AT & 3T H M ST BT Id9 oo 1,486.46 1,479.36
afyy & R¥ H AreT uR¥uREl &1 Sfad o (655.62) (783.02)
3rafy @ At W gg <1 / (gt 830.84 696.33
TS AT 107.03 110.06
(=TT 3T) (47.21) (58.26)
3TEAT 3d® & oY T TSl AnTd 59.82 51.80

3T 3rafer = fere wrr-grt faeror o wrerar wra = fFerger §
faawor 31T, 2024 i 31 W, 2023 @t
T AT AT 31.37 31.43
g AT AT 59.82 51.81
Tl UTe &5 91.19 83.24

it @ erfere ot aiteaar faveyor: we g
faeror 319, 2024 &t 319w, 2023 &t
RardT & aRg 3 9t a8t § <7 yefd o
19T Sgadi a¥ 253.40 198.17
2T e a9 205.42 185.62
3”7 3 ay 199.19 248.59
4917 3rad! ay 215.96 188.78
5ai argadi ay 137.03 202.57
6 9 104 Y &1 INT 557.44 582.67
119t a¥ R HW BT INT 731.85 747.38




31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 99 o forg fawita faawoTt 1 fewan s are ied (asT: )

Haagfterdr fagetoor (@ I o . H, 59 d@ g 7 HET i)
faaror 319, 2024 &t 319w, 2023 &t
Te], TROTRIT R G&fd o™ <R 1,486.46 1,479.36
SPI&HieT TR # Sl YT BT +1% TRac (65.55) (67.28)
fewprafeT ) # Ieel uWIa &7 -1% uRad+ 73.25 75.05
Iq9 ghg B TR H ol TId BT +1% aRac 38.91 39.31
I99 ghg B TR H ol J9Td BT -1% aRad (38.17) (39.59)
HHARI THIINAR T & H ol YA BT +1% gRac 13.88 14.66
HHARI THIMNIR T SR H ol UMTd BT -1% IRac= (15.30) (16.12)

32. fa<iaaEm

32.1 gt yeiEA

FHUA B goN T & e W SIS IR goh iR o 3t wR AR favar S 2 |

HUAT YT Goll BT FdE 59 TRE Bl & [ I8 Yo dle], I & WU H fU AT DI GRIEK I A 3R AIRYRDI DI feHcH
Rest < 9 | U @1 Goll F9amT, Gt 3] IR &4 dfad Sd gU, 9! WIS 3R fiF—ufafes o siexdl & ydeq & Ao )
JMETRA & dTfehs 92T, FQRI 3iR TSR BT fIeard I1Y I@T S 9 |

g&ee IR e At goll R REA & H1—H1T IRRYURS] DI AT & IR DI R ST © | S A1 ol FeT DI F1Y
G 7 IS A 81 A1 ARSI $He & fory Sfd e ST dad & |

32.2 fasfraarei ot siforat siv sfeagea
31) T & AR I |l &1 g8 Jd 31R Ied oI §9 UPR B -
" 319, 2024 &t 31WT=, 2023 &t
ERak Gl faa gea EEER: ] faa g

fara uftEutaat 16,593.50 16,593.50 18,407.96 18,407.96
RN drFTd R o< aRGuRRr ¢

R rRenEel

IR YTt 102.92 102.92 149.02 149.02
= fadig aReukrn 78.76 78.76 174.10 174.10
ErRbie

IR YTt 15,180.16 15,180.16 16,515.03 16,515.03
FHg AR THe T 1,118.02 1,118.02 1,358.61 1,358.61
I fa<ia gReufRrn 113.64 113.64 211.20 211.20
fa~ia aifaa

aR9Y avTd W ¢iiRd fa<ii <ifieg 14,797.38 14,797.38 15,425.33 15,425.33
R Fdae

AR T 48.52 48.52 7.59 7.59
A=

AR 14,375.89 14,375.89 14,972.87 14,972.87
= Y Tl 372.97 372.97 444 .87 44487

B 7 FHE AR Tha T, ITA TR T, TaHH SMAR 43 iR 1= gaA foiig gReufrar / il S facia A o
T oI WR U (a1 8 aifds Sa! g8+ I S9! STeudhificld Ui & BRYT Ifed i &1 Udh Sfad 3T 2 |




31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 9 o forg fawita faawon 1 fewan s are ied (esT: )

(it If¥ oI 5. #, ST a9 STl | dEl SI)
) S oA
qPhe AR ThE FAGed, AN AUR UG, I0HM AR IR R d8d Jed W UdHe dl T8 3 aadE faxig
aR¥fufcrat / <aarsii o Breds, g Al fa<irg uReufrat / <admil o Sfud Hedid Wk 3 TR BT SUANT $HRa 6T ST 8 |
IIRITh R 3 AR H enfiet faxii aREuR &R o= <1l 1 S Jea 1 ge arel Tahdl JaTe favelyor & SR W M
AR IR Ia e FrriRer died & AR fFReiRa foar ar 2 |
32.3 fastasifen yaaaseya

HU B AgATE Tt = yer & faxia SiRewt | gwifad g €, o o arerar SiiRew, aroTR SiiRaH 3iR ko
SIREH | HU & IR UaET & U HUHT & SIRgH Jed id dI RIUd $-4 iR S Farferd H ol F97 RTHERI 2|
ARG fORAR 3R 2l | S 819 aTel 7Y 3R SR SIRgAT & fory SIIRaw UeeM g T SR 3Tera fhdm ST & | U=
@ SIRgA Y§ed o ¥ THE AEAiS S & oy faf=r SiRkawi @1 ugar, sffdhetd, PRI 3R K60 ¥ H&ferd gemg
SRS & | B BT SARIA TEe T HUYT & STl FIIeTcid o Bl 91T @ IR T BT TITH Sl & | S & el
A 3R ATHdT g9 SIRgH Yaed ¥orsil & oIy #9 Ua &R © | I8 J0Tell IqdR BT FHY GRehIv Y& Bl o, o
SREAT BT g U IRfed a¥id | &Y STl § |

SIRIH Faer o1 e e FfeiRad & fofg w9 W iR fadeyef i gied &= &

— JTARI B THRIHD YT DT TSI

— SIRIAT & THRIHD JATdT Bl HH BT

— SIRET BT SaERT H et
31 ) AR Sy yeier
HUAT BT AR 39 g wu 9 el ga1 faftm <=1 (| A1 T () 7%) oiR &9 &)1 (|9 A1 T (i) <) 3 aRada &
i SiRaw! & dfey SR vl € |
B B TR SIRGAT B TRT SARIA AT 59 SARGAT DT T B IR 0T & T H Blg daeld ol gon @ |
3)(i) fadstamraifanysea

HUT 39 SIRIH & 1l 2 o faceh ga1 goai # uRad™ du & i Tora iR ded A1et iR Huft, 933 iR SuaRvl &
AT TR SRR ST |

FHUA BT SR Sl MR TR SN faf=T 7a1 TRew! & Iaa 89 arel facei a7 SiRaw &7 AT 6T U € |

31 #T4, 2024 T, A TRIE (@TUR <) 3@ R FHu 71 faqeh 9571 SIRew & 58 @Rg $UU (31 AT, 2023: 186.61 oG
T0Y) 3fR faxira Fufl (@R Urwn) & 3 B0 (31 AT, 2023: 258 oG $93) @4 {6 & |

31) (i) 31) faevit gz HaeTes favawur

FHUAT 5 T qo1all A S 88 ©, SIP Gh1del IR S0 H 5% BT AT I ATI—ST fIaR0T 3§ AT 327 ARI SU Bl
3TeTRTh T BT (2022—23: 8.30 TG BUY) | 1 &1l & b1l AR B B 5% HHGIR 8+ A HA olfh [JuRId J1d
ST |

31) (i )T T AR IS

DI BT / JNARGIIC BT BIS THTIT HIST Tl &1 8 | $H UBR HU Bl IToT &1 H IR BT HIg SR 7121 2 |



31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 9 o forg fawita faawon 1 fewan s are ied (asT: )

(it IR g 5. #, ST @ Il | dEl SI)
o) s wifeasa

Piec TIREA ¥ AT I SIRgH | & R fuet oiq+ Hfdareqsd qiicdl & O & H g dT, o aRumRasey
FHU BT AT JHa™ BRI | BU 7 dadl sfec AT Ufauell & A1 8 oF—ad B DI T YA & | HUHI AT
TRBRI AL & AT olF—ad Bl &, T Aldarcdd SRl IR gdb BT ST HH BT © | DU & SIGH DI AR
R & ST R |

pec WG ARKTT TTEd! & folt T &1 Sl & [2 fauore favmT & wigrg gRT rgAifad fhar Sirar 2 | 3m8di 4 sifex
THR BT A Ugel 39 AT &I S BI STl € | 39D 3TATdT shfSe W1 &) THI—THT TR FHIET @l erawen i 7 |

31 T, 2024 31K 31 A1, 2023 Th BUT BT HIST SRIA B UfeT S SR i aRFuRRI & Fie 9 &l 989 Fea © |
HUT SRR B T (S¥ITe) A & WReldhd REDIT & SR TR AR TN R HTaeT= B W& 2 | HU -1 Hfee
FO & ol 3 99 A 1% 3R 4 96 TF & BT B T @10%, 4 T9 3 31ferd 3R 5 99 TF & gH1T B folv @ 20% 3R

5 991 ¥ AfAH & BT B fIU @ 30% A Iae {51 &, FT99 Gt 100.93 ARG S BI RN a1 2 | SWRIh Rigla faaed
DI YROT IR ETRT 23 fUwel Tl & AR ITGRI & a¥Jell # FRARdT, STef a9ell § <%0 88 ©, olfd S Sl 3reel

e
faaror 2023-24 2022-23
yrfires oiw 2,428.81 2,224.03
B Tqpriar # aRadH:
arfaRad waem 100.93 204.78
sifamviw 2,529.74 2,428.81

) WAarsiianyeeT
TRl SIRgA 98 SIReA & T U &l e foxii 1Rl | 9SSRIl &1 qRT $_e1 § A1 U7 | TReAdl & Jaerd H
BT | VAT R H, Faer A R qAraqel a1 Rerfodl wR faR $Rar @ | gy Fafa s | igarl @1 gt 3 Taa iR
The TGl DI RART B IR BRAT © | TR DI RAA &7 FHIAT B FHI F0T GUIor Jrorrdi iR el 0 aRerd]
3TUTd & YERETd |fed foxirg uReufrr oiik fo<ia il a1 uRuaadT ddrse &7 AThe (T ST @ |
gfRere Tfafafert & ure Fedl yars, RF—ufifed & MR wR A< <aTRal & 91 & & fofg 99 Suee SR & |
B TG Fha! Y IGHR AR b WAl H BS AEMRT AHT & A A [IquIyor 9 Ugd q1hR aReldl Sigd Bl Heer
FRAE |
FfoRad drfereT Jervt U= 1 ARG & TR SIAT HaTe & ArRI—HrRT Bul ol fRi a1t & uRudaar faeeiyor &l gemiil 2 |

faeror g o 199 @ AT T 1-2 98 2 98 | ST H_A

31HT=, 2024 <kt

AR <g* 14,424 .41 3,984.94 372.06 10,067.41 14,424 .41
I foxi <R 372.97 372.97 - - 372.97
Eacl 14,797.38 4,357.91 372.06 10,067.41 14,797.38
31 W=, 2023 &t

AUR I 14,980.46 4,535.87 2,201.38 8,243.21 14,980.46
I foxi <R 444 87 444 .87 - - 444 87
& 15,425.33 4,980.74 2,201.38 8,243.21 15,425.33

TR I ¥ 31 AT, 2023 BT 9593.19 T SU A 2 (31 A 2023 DI 9602.02 ARG FU) S ATEH A YA T B+ UR & SHIR

PITTE |



31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 99 o forg fawite faawoT 1 fewan s are ied (asT: )

(it IR g 5. #, ST @ STl | dEl SI)

33. Gaferd ey shl Yehe (ehiuT
( 31) watua gt =t = 47 frga = faemor
31 9T, 2024 &t
Teier oht Wehid TRTE ol AT T e weta -
IGRENI YRT WNHR GOl
LESPUIERIC] REQl RIICO
Y JdIT BIHD S THI TS MD
21 Gy 3arel CFO
1 AT FAR SIF cS
31 9T, 2023 &t
RECKEINCIG] SIS ohT AT T feran watg -
IBEELI TRT ARBR GOl
LESPUIEGICS RERI RIICO
T Yaed HIHD s DT TS MD
I CICESPEISH CFO
1 3T FAR oI Ccs
33 (S ). SURTaRT WaTerd Ul oh 91l @-e,/ 919 (7iE 33 (T ) H Hu Seattad )
31 9T, 2024 &t
faawor WA TR Trent TwE Hrawat i Eagl
L)
AR grfet 1,284.85 793.89 2,078.74
gfergfa st - 0.40 0.40
I =T 42.39 42.39
e
SI9 IR & dgd ddreil a fashr - 1,116.62 - - - 1,116.62
RIS - - 46.67 39.99 15.35 102.01
31 9T, 2023 &t
ferauor WA AR Trent et Hruwett Eaijece) Eagl
oY
AR gTfeat 1,284.85 635.34 1,920.19
gfefa S 0.40 0.40
IR 178.78 178.78
e
I URITSHT & d8d sl &I fah - 734.23 - - - 734.23
IR H® - - 42.60 36.74 14.09 93.43




31 T, 2024 i GHTA a6 o fo1g fawite faeron a1 fewar s=1= aret ™ (9T )

34. @3 Ufada

(Tt YT oIRg 5. #, ST9 I STIAT | dEl )

" AT IR IRAR ol AH9® 108 & AJUTel H, MMaeIdH BRI R © -
IR We: HUAl o 0 Rl Iy W & wu § A=fRad ey @si &7 7= 2 |

1. 3T Sl
2. glggIfD
AR 3R fagen # A IoRa BT e T—_TelT ¥INferd Wl & ®U § AMa} fgae Ws RufdT & foru ¥imfers @s «w®
faa fopar T 2
(I) Tt - FaEET @S :
37T Helt EgCouscsy &
faazor 319, 2024 | 3149w, 2023 | 319w, 2024 | 319, 2023 | 314w, 2024 | 319, 2023
HOAATATE | HIOATATE | R AATA T | HAO@ TS | hiGATA TS | ot GHT a6
T
T 10,492.30 4,281.59 8,095.70 7,736.94 18,588.00 12,018.53
SRS - - - - - -
T e 10,492.30 4,281.59 8,095.70 7,736.94 18,588.00 12,018.53
EINSES]
@ o 1,125.51 (905.50) (711.76) (775.98) 413.75 (1,681.48)
RISESIRES) 106.45 98.13
o @) 83.32 86.57
R (=) 120.74 (663.86)
e @/ (@TF) 316.14 (1,006.06)
feraor 319, 2024 | 319w, 2023 | 314w, 2024 | 3149, 2023 | 314w, 2024 | 319, 2023
H AT | HIAUA TS | HIAATA TS | HI AU TS | KiAATG TS | okl T 99
e uftgufar 16,902.33 10,463.47 4,953.20 9,988.23 21,855.53 20,451.70
arafed 7t @ T8 yRwufrat 2,937.09 5,907.50
el qREUfRTRIT 24,792.62 26,359.20
T 11,366.27 12,589.36 4,165.11 6,375.72 15,531.38 18,965.08
adfed @l foar a1 <l 9,261.24 7,394.12
el St 24,792.62 26,359.20
ezt 319, 2024 | 3149w, 2023 | 314w, 2024 | 319, 2023 | 314w, 2024 | 319, 2023
HOAATATE | HIOATAT | R AATA T | HAUE TS | hiGATA TS | ot GHT a6
oY oh {0 YSTTTd - - 16.72 8.90 16.72 8.90
Y & T goae™ 142.06 144.54 48.98 48.10 191.04 192.64




31 T, 2024 i GHTA a6 o foTg fawite faeron a1 fewar s aret ied (9T )

(1) wreafheas - Wit TS :

(Tt Y oIRg 5. #, ST9 I STIAT | dEl )

R WA @h aTgY
feraor 31T, 2024 31, 2023 31, 2024 31, 2023
it FHTE o9 it FHTE o9 it THTE o9 it FHTE a9
R 12,033.12 11,713.58 6,554.88 304.95
W uR¥ufrl o ag9 i 21,855.53 20,451.70 -
YolivTd =43/ 3raret aRwuRmEl 4 giy 16.72 8.90
35. 31 TTE, 2024 it THTE T4 & AT 3 AteH, G 31T @i o 6w &
31, AT ol HAEUH AT
faawor 31 W=, 2024 i T I8 31 9T, 2023 i T 9
Fed] AT Ud Uy 357.26 450.73
wA 357.26 450.73
9. foesi qgr i =g
farawor 31 W=, 2024 i T 9 31 9rel, 2023 i AU 9
et 28.78 57.89
I T 1.60 -
A 30.38 57.89
. TweEt o WX fagyit qeT | otsiq
faeror 31 1T, 2024 hit ATE I8 31 1T, 2023 it THTE T8
frafa faas 6,554.88 304.95
gl 6,554.88 304.95
<. (i) e wmanftes grfera ( 2023-24)
— g4 & IRM HUH gRT G DI S dlell qebel XM — Y B4
— af & AN wd @ T
EaekaNcac THIH | 3 T TG T (ohell AT & w/A
fooedt Y aR<ufRRy @1 =TT/ Srferrgor - -
SIRIGT B ITATAT T e TR
<. (ii) FrTta wrtses gifae ( 2022-23 )
— Y & QR BUAl §RT W9 B I dlell Abdl AT — IR I
— 9§ & <RE W P TS A
T Bl Tehid THSH | 1ol e g ST feRe ST € wA
fosdt o1 uReufRy &1 fHTor / srfersor - -
IRIFT B 3Telldl I Ie3T |’
7. THAT iR farm ww =
319, 2024 &t 319, 2023 &t
farawor T a9 HTE Iy
RToTd 336.09 417.36
H_A 336.09 417.36




31 T, 2024 i GHTA a6 o foTg fawite faeron a1 fewar s=m= aret ied (9T )

. ga, o1 AR wean 32w ferent atfufam, 2006 St 91T 22 & T&d TehelehTuT (@0 R o v, #, 9 q AT T HET A1)
31 9T, 2024 3194, 2023
fereror it T TS i qUTE TS

i) olRaT 9y @ 3fd H SMYfciahdl dI v Hel rr 2,214.10 2,979.81

ii) oRIT ¥ & 3 H SMYfidpal Bl W AY RN R T =TS - -

iii) €TRT 16 & SIFAR YA Bl T3 ATol HI AR, AT & a9 & R g faF & a1
JMYfefepdt @I fBg TQ I &I iy |

iv) T H SR @ Efy @ fU <7 IR A Ay @ @) I (S 9 & SR frad
T & W A @1 72 R) Afdee sifdfem & dea fFAifde e &1 o )

v)ad & SR 1RSI Tt &1 If¥r 3R oar 9 & ofd # 3reT TR @ TS

vi) IR st # +ft g iR < @re @ Iy WY, S9 fafy 9% w9 a@ 6 SwRb
1ot <7 IR aad | AR @ aRT 23 @ SfAd dwerd Ang g & wU H
AP & ATl oY SeMl Bl YA T8l HR &l Sl |

Eagl 2,214.10 2,979.81

*3AH I WU I 98 IHRIT IS 2 S B el | Heierd ST 1Al iR 2ai & HROT I a0 8l © |
GeH AR oY Sedl & o <garell &1 MR g1 AW 9@ fhar =1 © 6 U el @1 uger ged, g SR wenH Sed e sifafte,
2006 & I I@] Ry & Hae § “® SHIRI” ¥ UG ol & MR W BT TS 2 |
@ @ A efated & o g ot T2 fonar we g

@) smE HRI SR FaR R & Hey # faRw <A, af #1g 8, e uar T8 SR o W ® SR gy o™ wfee

@ I B B R 9IS H IO g dTell ST |

@) =rarerm | fued & fou @fed e, RS gdr w81 o S e © |
T TEe] AR, AR, Selagid HIfSAT TR, IE@RWEME, 50T Ud IRl 72T SUHSd AMEl 1R &g & 53 9y § IuHRT by
T & W H AT Y A R B @ # aof faar e g

q. 91 9§ 39 W 31 9] wnfie 81§ e forg fa<ig ad &1 9| & 918 wies ¥ |49 Siig Ruie oI g8 & |
ot oTet A enawass 81, fed avf & JoreTd snidst & g SHEIGd fhar T 7|

36 THHT =T eI 24 /03 /2021 T HeH | 3tfafi<h famaes 9= :
361  3TIcl AT Pl ¥GIHE fJolvg HUHI & 91 U= el & — AU, HI5 IR SYIPRY & dad
U1 B ATHAT TE1 & ST8T BT & IR 3TI AT UR 37l HURT 71 2T, A(TT AT Y Tagaahal 781 2 |
362 e HURT & I o & [ H UbeIprol
S & TR H Bg (a9 FURT TEI @ &, A (bl GART B AMaTeIhdT 8] & |
363 WU, WA AR SUBRYT & YAHHIDH B ATl H GARI
“qY & SRTT HUT = A1 feT T FURT, FIH IR SUBRYT BT I B el [T &, ST (¥l GeTH B ATaeaehd el
g1
364  3Fd AURT & JTHcdidhd & Hae H Tl
Ty & SR HUHT = 37T AT W1 S FURT BT G el (5T 8, $alery fhdl el &1 Argegehdl 781 © |
365  UHICR, Mol Uid yeeanyg St (@uad) ik Heferd arféat ol Sor oiR 31 & Wdy # g
HU A FHICRT, e, Huad ok Hefid wiidat o B1g Feor ar aifiw 7€ i @ S AT W a1 g @ B e ar
3rafer fAfde fopy fa=T gepran S 6 |
366  YSITd BRI W H & WY H AR
oI U= @l ffY T D1E goieTa o werfd R 2 |
367 3P WU AP & d8d & Hag H G
FHUA B I fABTATedIE BIg Jret AUty T ¥ |




31 HTE, 2024 i GHTW 9 o forg fawita faavon 1 fewan s are ied (asT: )
T T2 99 HURT & Hag H WAl (@l I g %, H, 56 q AT T BEl )

36.8
gAY oA () rfiferam, 1988 (1988 @1 45) SR UG ded &9V Y sl & ded fsdl f a9t Fufky &l w@w & forg
U & RITH BIg BRIATE YK el DI g & I dAfdd T8l & |
369  IUAM UREURTIT @) RN & SR WX bl ¥ SR oI & el H Gardr
P USTTd T 4 A Bs / TR—BS ARG AT BT 1 ST I8 ©, Sl dbed Al S greeded, TihAT Wi, TaR ATl
3R g Y Y STaRT & ATegq | GRIE € | a9 & 3fd H AT 3R T U= FHRIS H 9 3eRTeT & DRI db Dl
ST fhU 1T affder 3R AR / 491y R # aradide sfidel & are R g e |
36.10  SXIGAH [Shlcex & el H eIl
ay & QIRTH U DI BT A dep a1 fa=iiay wRer §RT SRIaa fShieer & wU H a¥figd T8l fban Tar g |
36.11  BCIS T8 HUAl & AT AEg—ATHRI YA
BRI Yol T 29.05.24 BT FIT BT T 7 3R YR # A I 97 R <1Raet fovar e |
36.12  SMR.3NJL. & AT Yoobl AT AE & GoHHRU H < & R H GARIT
RSN, & AT I A H IR US{hd Bl &b (o1 3T T DI Yo AT AYME T8 & |
36.13  HUMAT DY URAT DI AT B SUTAT B Nisel H YA
T8 W HUN UR AN T8I 7 |
36.14  3TIUId BT G
8. farawur JHYT-TT0TH fawrste 31/3/2024(31/3/2023| uRedT
(31) | g 3rguTd o aREfT oA SRTRAT 1.12 1.07 | 4.67%
@) | TTER—sfFEE /U dedIfeid AR IRYRE BT B + - - -
QdbIferd AR
(@) | 3R W1 sarer s EEISISIFEIY AT+ Ter
T X 31 dael Arafy For
TS 8 A b Sl
(?) | sfdt Rest wR srgu PR gTAd YE A IRRERDI Bl AT 4.82% | -16.01% | 130.09%
@) | 3l THaER SrguTa faspr @ AmTa 3T efd 5.16 3.03 | 70.30%
(8) | SR e iR iU SR fas LI IRCIR] 1.22 0.72 | 69.44%
R®) | YR T eHAER U BfSe W EURCIG] 0.70 042 | 66.67%
(@) | g€ don csieR Jrgurd RIS | o Hriele golt 8.59 8.43 1.90%
@) | = o 3rgEa B LT GG oA aRerer # ToRd 1.70% | -8.37% | 120.32%
W) | Frafsa 4o w® Red T, R 3R gd srafd frnfora goit 7.93% | -25.19% | 131.47%
LER RS IR
(&) | 9w w® ufawa AT, IR AR WIAT AT | 3fdadt IRR Bficd o 4.82% | -16.01% | 130.09%
RREISIEIC) Rerd
36.15  STARRAT Pl AT TSI & AFUTAT D HdeT H Gl
DU AT, 2013 BT TRT 230 I 237 B ATAR DIs HARAT AT W T8l © |
36.16  SYR ol TS EFERIFY 3R IR WA & SUANT & Heel H FATT

“HIHT | 7 dr fIAIferl BT pIs Be AUH 337 B IR 7 81 0 I9sT & A1 BIs B UK [har 8 b 7eg=er a1 wu= el a1
VLT BT I HUHIE AT G0 okl gIRT AT ST IR A B ot dve & Y=g U =g ARhAT A7 Feenmal § SuR <3 a1

frder Bl AT SHBT BIS TRST UaTd BT |

fo<ira faavoll & <rer Aicw <@ (1-36)

TR TGS ARG Wi e Rt & 3E | Tl T 9T Wee i IR Y
%ag‘@w' T s e TR e

FRN 001912C (EEEC)) (= . w3 vl )
BNGING frewrR Yarer frderen
wm"ﬁ) TS : 10558241 ST : 10729529
e 71693 _— —
feTien : 06.09.2024 (St AR S ) (G et )
YIS : 24071893BKEREZ2773 ot werer T fawita sttt



NET PROFIT / (LOSS)

(Rs. in Lakhs)
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2021-2022 2022-2023

2023-2024

( Rs. in Lakhs)
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TURNOVER
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Registered Office & Works

Rajasthan Electronics and Instruments Ltd.
2, Kanakpura Industrial Area, Sirsi Road,
Jaipur-302034 (Rajasthan) India

Tel : 91-141-2470363, 2470062
E-Mail : reiljp@reiljp.com
CIN : U51395RJ1981G01002249

Corporate Office

Rajasthan Electronics and Instruments Ltd.
REIL House, Shipra Path, Mansarovar,
Jaipur - 302020 (Rajasthan) India

Tel :91-141-2888400
E-Mail : mdo@reiljp.com

Regional Offices :
Jaipur | Anand | Bhopal | Chandigarh | Patna | Lucknow | Bangalore

Laxmi Printers # 9829125258
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